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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEE

Results and financial performances $EBERMERE 2024 2023
Results *E

Revenue (HK$'000) WA (FETT) 2,358,290 1,945,721
Profit for the year (HK$'000) F A (FHIT) 261,850 204,191
Basic earnings per share (HK$) FREREFNGET) 0.32 0.25
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) 3 &R AREARE GBI 8.8 7.5
Proposed special dividend per share (HK cents) Zix & RIKRE GBM) 10.0 10.0
Gross profit margin EFIE 26.5% 26.4%
Net profit margin SR = 11.1% 10.5%
Return on equity (Note 1) AR A Bl ¥ = (At 1) 15.3% 12.1%
Return on assets (Note 2) BERBWRE(MFZ2) 10.2% 8.3%
Inventory turnover days (Note 3) GEEREXE(HZ3) 87 102
Trade receivable turnover days (Note 4) B 5 I I FE K e (A iE4) 56 58
Trade payable turnover days (Note 5) B N SIARS R E(H7E5) 55 61
Financial position B H AR R

Net current assets (HK$'000) MBEEFE(TFAET) 1,264,692 1,193,086
Current ratio (Note 6) MBI R (f15E6) 263.4% 276.0%
Quick ratio (Note 7) RENEL R (ff7E7) 209.2% 222.9%
Gearing ratio (Note 8) ERBELREMES) N/ATEH 1.5%

Notes: Bt -
(1) Return on equity ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total equity and (1) BRA[EIHR 1L F 12 B 7 18 )15 FUIBR LA #E 2m 48 BB B A BT 12

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

Return on assets ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total assets and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the average balance of
inventories divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365

days.

Trade receivable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

Trade payable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade payables
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets less inventory by current

liabilities and multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%. The Group had fully repaid the bank
borrowings during the year.
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Financial Highlights (continued)
MBREE)

Five Year Revenue — by business segments

EFERA—ZEBKD B

HK$'000
FHET
2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
500,000
0
Year 2020 Year 2021 Year 2022 Year 2023 Year 2024
20204F 20214 20224 2023%F 202445
Mold fabrication Plastic components manufacturing Total
RERIME SRR LS Bt
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHET FAT FET
Mold fabrication 1B BlE 700,198 706,025 606,235 619,626 698,170
Plastic components JEBAEM RIS
manufacturing 1,333,221 1,698,373 1,673,086 1,326,095 1,660,120
Total 1EET 2,033,419 2,404,398 2,279,321 1,945,721 2,358,290
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
IEBESE

CONQUERING CHALLENGES INTIMES
OF ADVERSITY, AND RISING WITH
OPPORTUNITIES INTIMES OF PROSPERITY

Stepping into 2025, despite the continuous recovery of the global
market, the industry environment remains challenging. On the one
hand, domestic manufacturing competition is becoming increasingly
fierce, and industry standards are constantly improving. On the other
hand, the uncertainties of the U.S. trade policy, especially potential
protectionist measures, may have a certain impact on the supply chain
and international trade. Nonetheless, TK Group has been focusing on
the plastic injection industry for many years. With its high-precision
mold technologies and high-standard product quality, TK Group has
continuously gained the trust of world-renowned industry leaders and
has become the preferred partner of many leading companies in high-
end industries. In the face of uncertainties in international trade, the
Group has already started to deploy production capacity in Vietnam,
successfully dispersing geopolitical risks, providing global customers
with more flexible and reliable production solutions, and effectively
responding to potential changes in trade policies.

Li Pui Leung ZH R
Chairman /&
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

TEHEE(E)

To All Shareholders

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of TK Group (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “TK"” or the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Year").

CONQUERING CHALLENGES IN TIMES OF
ADVERSITY, AND RISING WITH OPPORTUNITIES
IN TIMES OF PROSPERITY

The past two years saw the twists and turns of post-pandemic
recovery. The escalation of geopolitical conflicts and the
recurrence of wars, coupled with the aftereffects of global
supply chain imbalances and quantitative easing financial policies
of various countries, created severe inflationary pressure and
prompted the U.S. and European economies to enter a tightening
cycle, resulting in a slowdown in global economic recovery and
a weak consumer market. Faced with the ups and downs of the
global economic environment, TK Group responded to challenges
with both offensive and defensive strategies, always adhered to
its strategic layout, and did not waver in its development direction
amid short-term fluctuations. Instead, TK Group went against the
trend in the trough, actively expanded the “China + Vietnam”
dual production layout, continued to invest in improving its high-
precision mold technologies, invested in the development of
diversified plastic injection molding-related technologies and
service solutions, and insisted on process and product innovation,
in order to lay a strong foundation for TK Group’s long-term
business development, enhance the solidity of its technologies,
and create favorable conditions for its long-term growth, thereby
being able to seize development opportunities when economic
recovery arrives.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEREEE)

Despite this slump, a silver lining was finally seen. The year 2024
witnessed market recovery, and TK Group’s deployment in the
past few years has shown significance. As the global market
picked up and customer order demand rebounded, TK Group,
leveraging its previously established layout and foundation,
swiftly seized the opportunities and provided customers with
more competitive solutions. This was not only attributable to our
leading technologies, cross-regional production capacity layout
and continuous product breakthroughs and innovations, but also to
our long-term deep strategic partnerships with and trust from our
customers, which enabled us to profoundly understand changes
in market demand and make response flexibly and quickly. This
strategy of proactive layout and flexible response has enabled TK
Group to not only gain a firm foothold in times of adversity, but
also rise with opportunities in times of industry recovery, thereby
further expanding its market share and customer portfolio, and
consolidating its market leading position.

DRIVEN BY HIGH-PRECISION MANUFACTURING
AND INNOVATION TO CONSOLIDATE
TECHNOLOGICAL LEADERSHIP

Shaping the tangible to create the infinite. In an era of rapid
development of smart devices, consumers’ requirements for
products have been constantly increasing, and refined appearance,
personalization and functional innovation have become necessary
elements of product iteration. From smartphones, wearable
devices, portable video equipment to emerging augmented reality
(AR) glasses and other high-end electronic products, TK Group
has always been at the forefront of high-precision manufacturing
and technological innovation. With its excellent mold precision
and industry-leading engineering technologies, TK Group provides
customers with one-stop solutions and has become the preferred
partner for many industry leaders to develop new products. We
focus on high-precision technologies and constantly push the
boundaries to ensure that our products remain at the forefront
of the industry in terms of precision, strength, aesthetics and
comfort, even in micro and complex structures. In the future, we
will continue to increase investment in research and development,
and strengthen the integration of mold injection technologies and
intelligent production, thereby further consolidating TK Group's
industry leading position.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Despite the fact that there are still uncertainties in the global
trade environment, including the policy changes after the U.S.
election and the impact of potential trade protectionism, we remain
cautiously optimistic about the market outlook for 2025. As market
demand continues to pick up, we will continue to uphold the spirit
of craftsmanship, focus on technological research and innovation,
and promptly expand our production capacity and deepen our
diversified market layout, so as to ensure that TK Group can grow
steadily in the fiercely competitive market, and continue to create
greater value for our customers, the society and shareholders!

BUSINESS REVIEW 2024

The global market has finally witnessed recovery after being hit by
the pandemic. Inflation levels have continued to fall, and economic
austerity policies of various countries have gradually been relaxed,
with the overall market atmosphere being significantly improved.
Moreover, after a round of industry consolidation on the supply
side, there emerged the phenomenon of survival of the fittest and
elimination of the weak, allowing strong companies to capture a
larger supply share. TK Group, with its prudent business policies,
flexible market response strategies and close cooperation with
diverse customers, has seized the initiative in the market recovery
and accomplished prominent achievements. In 2024, the Group's
revenue increased by 21.2% to HK$2,358.3 million, with gross
profit margin and net profit margin increased to 26.5% and 11.1%,
respectively, and recorded a net profit of HK$260 million.

TK Group has always adhered to a prudent financial strategy,
ensuring steady business growth while also striving to create long-
term value for shareholders. In order to thank shareholders for their
trust and support over the years, the Group continuously gives
back to shareholders on the basis of maintaining ample cash flow
and stable profits, hoping to share the results with everyone. The
Board has decided to recommend a final dividend of HK8.8 cents
per share and a special dividend of HK10.0 cents per share for the
Year. Together with the interim dividend of HK4.0 cents per share,
the total dividend for the Year amounted to HK22.8 cents per
share, representing a dividend payout ratio of 72.6%.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEREEE)

PROSPECTS

Stepping into 2025, despite the continuous recovery of the global
market, the industry environment remains challenging. On the
one hand, domestic manufacturing competition is becoming
increasingly fierce, and industry standards are constantly
improving. On the other hand, the uncertainties of the U.S. trade
policy, especially potential protectionist measures, may have
a certain impact on the supply chain and international trade.
Nonetheless, TK Group has been focusing on the plastic injection
industry for many years. With its high-precision mold technologies
and high-standard product quality, TK Group has continuously
gained the trust of world-renowned industry leaders and has
become the preferred partner of many leading companies in high-
end industries. In the face of uncertainties in international trade,
the Group has already started to deploy production capacity in
Vietnam, successfully dispersing geopolitical risks, providing global
customers with more flexible and reliable production solutions, and
effectively responding to potential changes in trade policies.

The global market sentiment is generally positive. In particular,
along with the advancement of technologies, there emerged
incessant and ever-changing product applications, and the market
has an increasingly urgent demand for high-precision plastic
components manufacturing. As such, TK Group is confident in
its future development. In 2025, TK Group will invest resources
to fully expand its production capacity in China and Vietnam
and provide more comprehensive one-stop services in relation
to plastic injection molding. In addition to meeting the order
demand of existing customers, we expect to seize more markets
and high-quality customers with a more aggressive approach.
The management is also actively looking for M&A opportunities,
hoping to expand the business scale and territory more quickly
and consolidate TK Group’s leading position in high-end markets.
We will continue to explore opportunities in emerging industries,
diversify our customer and industry distribution, and continue to
invest in the development and incubation of emerging projects,
especially in high value-added application areas, so as to ensure
TK Group's leading edge and long-term development in the field of
high-precision manufacturing.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2024
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

The Group is actively deepening Industry 4.0, digitalization and
automation technologies to comprehensively improve production
efficiency and product precision. The Group combines artificial
intelligence (Al) technology with big data analysis to integrate
digital applications into the entire production process, including
key stages such as intelligent scheduling, quality inspection and
automated assembly, in order to further improve production
efficiency and speed and ensure more stable and reliable product
quality. Digital applications can not only improve production
efficiency, but can also free up more resources, allowing the team
to focus their time and energy on the research and development
of high-end technologies, adapt to market changes more quickly,
and develop more innovative products that meet market demand,
thereby helping customers seize the initiative in the highly
competitive market environment.

TK Group adheres to the development strategy of emphasizing
both technological advancement and diversified layout,
demonstrating strong competitive advantages in the market. In
terms of finance and operation, we always adopt a prudent and
sound approach to ensure stable business operations. In terms of
scientific research and innovation, we dare to make breakthroughs
and use forward-looking technological research and development
to push TK to even greater heights. Looking ahead, the Group
will continue to uphold the spirit of craftsmanship and pursue
technological excellence with the utmost professionalism, while
actively exploring emerging markets and application areas to create
greater value for our customers, the society and shareholders, and
continuously maintain a leading position in the global high-precision
manufacturing industry.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEREEE)

CORPORATE CULTURE

With a corporate culture unanimously recognized and supported
by the public and all staff, every decision and every order of TK
Group are determined upon thorough consideration in terms of
customers, suppliers, staff, natural environment, the society
and TK Group itself to ensure that all parties are treated in a fair
and equal manner, as well as profit maximization. Such culture
is consistent with TK Group's operating concept of “concerted
In addition, the Group
places high emphasis on integrity, and believes that the “Three
Principles”,
will facilitate our healthy development and growth. Under the

development, concerted growth".

namely, “Fairness, Equality and Transparency”,

corporate culture of mutual trust, all of our staff are able to
concentrate on the creation of corporate value and provision of
better services to our customers, thus protecting interests of the
Group and the customers as a whole.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, business
partners and customers for their steadfastness during the
testing time and their continuous support and trust in adversity.
| would also like to give special thanks to all our staff and our
management team for their dedication over the past year. TK is
grateful to the team for their hard work and progress in the past
two gloomy years. Now, we are finally seeing a silver lining. The
Group is confident in the development of the industry and the
business performance in the future. We will strive to promote TK's
development under your trust and support, thereby creating better
results and return for our shareholders and the society.

Li Pui Leung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 17 March 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2024, the global economy continued to pick up, with major
economies achieving moderate growth. The U.S. economy showed
a steady expansion trend, and Europe emerged from stagnation
and regained growth momentum, while China, benefiting from a
rebound in exports and policy support, achieved its annual growth
target of 5%. At the same time, global inflationary pressures have
further eased, and most countries have entered an interest rate
cutting cycle, driving a rebound in consumer confidence. The
consumer electronics industry has entered a new development
cycle, with brand customers actively launching new products,
market demand picking up, and customer orders increasing
significantly. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's
total revenue reached HK$2,358.3 million (2023: HK$1,945.7
million), representing a year-on-year increase of 21.2%. The mold
fabrication business continued to grow steadily, with a year-on-
year increase of 12.7%. The plastic component manufacturing
business rebounded significantly, with a year-on-year growth of
25.2%. Among them, the mobile phones and wearable devices,
and commercial telecommunications equipment segments
performed particularly well.

Revenue Analyzed by Downstream Industries
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Industry 2024 2023 Change
GE 28
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Mobile phones and wearable FHREAFERE
devices 778.9 33.0 549.5 28.2 229.4 41.7
Medical and personal health care  Z& R A AEE 350.3 14.9 349.7 18.0 0.6 0.2
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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In 2024, as new products were put into mass production, order
volume rebounded and capacity utilization increased significantly.
The Group continued to optimize production processes and
improve management, and the measures on cost reduction and
efficiency improvement continued to show effect. However, the
Group continued to invest in new projects during the Year, which
offset some of the cost benefits. During the Year, the Group's
gross profit increased by 22.0% to HK$625.8 million (2023:
HK$512.8 million), and the gross profit margin increased by 0.1
percentage point to 26.5% (2023: 26.4%). The Group has strictly
controlled administrative expenses, and the ratio of administrative
expenses to total revenue dropped to 12.9% (2023: 14.1%). Profit
for the Year increased significantly by 28.2% as compared to the
year ended 31 December 2023, amounted to HK$261.9 million
(2023: HK$204.2 million). Net profit margin increased by 0.6
percentage point to 11.1% (2023: 10.5%), and the basic earnings
per share was HK$0.32 (2023: HK$0.25), increasing by 28.0% as
compared with the year ended 31 December 2023.

In 2024, customers were more active in stocking up for new
products to be launched into the market, driving the Group's
overall flow of goods and funds. During the Year, the Group's
inventory turnover days decreased by 15 days to 87 days, and
the trade receivable turnover days decreased by 2 days to
56 days as compared to the year ended 31 December 2023.
Faced with the uncertainties arising from geopolitical conflicts
and macroeconomic turmoil, the Group maintained a rigorous
financial strategy. As of 31 December 2024, the Group continued
to maintain a high level of net cash of HK$1,164.8 million (31
December 2023: HK$1,132.4 million), representing an increase
of 2.9% as compared to 31 December 2023. The solid financial
position have enabled the Group to respond flexibly to changes in
the challenging market environment. As of 31 December 2024, the
Group had sales orders on hand amounting to HK$889.1 million,
representing an increase of 7.0% as compared to HK$830.6 million
as of 31 December 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BUSINESS SEGMENT ANALYSIS

During the year under review, the revenue from external
customers of the mold fabrication business amounted to
approximately HK$698.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately 12.7% as compared to approximately HK$619.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2023, and accounting for
approximately 29.6% (2023: 31.8%) of the Group's total revenue.

The Group has production lines for ultra-large standard molds
and high-precision molds. The major products of the Group's
ultra-large standard molds are automobiles components. The
customers mainly include first-tier component suppliers who
manufacture automobiles components for automobile brands in
Europe, such as Mercedes-Benz, BMW and Volkswagen. High
precision molds production lines mainly produce high-precision
molds with multi-cavity and efficiency, with the markets covering
high-end consumer electronics, medical and personal health care
industries such as smart home, mobile phones and wearable
devices. The Group continues to focus on expert-level molding
technology research and is committed to providing customers
with high-quality and cost-effective design solutions. In addition to
developing external customers, the Group also cooperates with the
downstream plastic components manufacturing business partners
to provide more premium one-stop services for the customers.

According to the forecast of S&P Global Mobility, with thanks to
the continuous inventory replenishment throughout the year and
the stability of the supply chain, the global sales of light vehicles
were expected to reach 88.2 million units in 2024, representing
a year-on-year increase of 1.7%. Accordingly, the Group's mold
demand has maintained a steady growth since its recovery at the
end of 2023. Due to the long mold production cycle, segment
revenue growth has gradually been reflected. The Industry 4.0
strategy implemented by the Group in recent years has achieved
remarkable results, maintaining good production efficiency and
market competitiveness. The gross profit margin of the mold
fabrication segment remained at a high level in 2024, reaching
37.0% (2023: 37.0%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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In view of the increasingly severe market competition, the
Group has focused on the development of high-precision molds
with multi-cavity and efficiency which have stringent quality
requirements. The Group has strived to improve the precision
of its products and actively explore new customers and new
markets, especially in high-end customer fields such as medical,
consumer electronics and smart home. In response to the Chinese
government's strategy of promoting the internal circular economy,
the Group extended its effort in serving domestic brand customers
with international presence and has gained high recognition from
the global market for its customers with its excellent mold quality
and technical strength. In the future, the Group will continue
to offer mold products and design solutions of higher quality to
help customers improve their production efficiency and product
quality, so as to reinforce and strengthen its leading position in the
industry.

During the year under review, the revenue from plastic
components manufacturing business segment amounted to
approximately HK$1,660.1 million (2023: HK$1,326.1 million),
representing an increase of 25.2% as compared to the year ended
31 December 2023, and accounting for approximately 70.4%
(2023: 68.2%) of the Group's total revenue.

Revenue from the mobile phones and wearable devices segment
increased significantly by 41.7% as compared to the year ended
31 December 2023, mainly due to the launch of new series of
products by certain wireless headset brand customers and smart
bracelet brand customers, which drove the significant increase
in the Group's orders. In particular, a number of new models of
headsets and plug-in earphones have been launched to the market.
Consumer demand is strong with promising growth potential.
In addition, the global markets of certain domestic brands have
expanded rapidly and their product lines have continued to expand,
driving the Group's sales growth and further diversifying its
customer portfolio.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Revenue of the commercial telecommunications equipment
segment increased significantly by 35.3% as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2023, mainly because the brand customer
completed product recall in 2023 and successively launched
new generation products in 2024, and the market response was
satisfactory. The Group continues to maintain its position as a
major supplier by leveraging its solid foundation of cooperation
with the commercial telecommunications equipment brand
customer, and has a stable business prospect. At the same time,
the smart home segment performed steadily, with revenue rising
4.7% as compared to the year ended 31 December 2023. Market
demand remained stable, and the Group is looking forward to the
launch of innovative products to once again drive industry growth.
During the Year, in addition to serving the world’'s two leading
industry brand customers, the Group newly acquired a world-
renowned high-end home products brand customer.

The overall revenue of the medical and personal health care
segment increased by 0.2% as compared to the year ended 31
December 2023. Among them, revenue from personal health
care brand customers rebounded, achieving a significant increase
of 34.5% as compared to the year ended 31 December 2023,
mainly due to the demand for replenishing inventory in the market.
Revenue from domestic brand customers of consumables, such
as in vitro diagnostics and hemodialysis kits, also had a significant
growth. However, some orders from overseas medical customers
were reduced due to the U.S. tariffs implemented early last year,
which partly offset the domestic growth. The Group will continue
to explore domestic and overseas medical brand customers and
seize development opportunities in the medical and general health
industries. In addition, the revenue of the electronic atomizer
segment increased by 10.5% as compared to the year ended 31
December 2023, and the Group will further increase production
capacity based on customer demand.

In 2024, the Group’'s plastic injection molding business grew
significantly. Orders from general customers have rebounded since
last year's destocking, and several new products have entered
the mass production stage. The capacity utilization has increased
significantly, effectively offsetting the impact of early development
investments of some new products, driving the gross profit
margin of the plastic injection molding business to increase by
0.7 percentage point to 22.1% (2023: 21.4%). The Group expects
that global inflationary pressure will continue to ease in 2025, and
consumer sentiment is expected to continue to pick up. Coupled
with increased demand from new customers and new projects
entering the mass production stage, capacity utilization will
continue to improve, further driving up the gross profit margin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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CUSTOMERS OF THE GROUP

As of 31 December 2024, sales of the Group were mainly export
sales and our customers were mainly prestigious corporations and
brands in Europe and America. Customers of the Group cover a
wide range of industries, from automobile to household electrical
appliances to mobile phones and wearable devices, smart home
as well as medical and personal health care. As a key supplier of
molds and plastics of high-end electronic products, the Group's
orders are widely impacted by the launch time, popularity and life
cycle of products of its downstream industry customers. However,
being engaged in the molds and plastic injection industry for over
40 years, the Group always sticks to the strategy of customer
diversity in order to manage and minimize risks effectively.
Currently, the Group has been widely recognized as a trustworthy
business partner of various internationally known brands of
consumer goods, including numbers of leading brands in many
fast-growing industries such as personal health care and smart
home brands.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024 was approximately
HK$2,358.3 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$412.6 million or 21.2% when compared with the revenue of
approximately HK$1,945.7 million in 2023.

In 2024, the revenue from external customers of the mold
fabrication segment was approximately HK$698.2 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$78.6 million
or 12.7% when compared with the revenue of approximately
HK$619.6 million for 2023. The Group’'s mold business has
maintained steady growth since its recovery at the end of 2023.
Due to the long mold production cycle, the growth of segment
revenue will be gradually reflected.

In 2024, the revenue from external customers of the plastic
components manufacturing segment was approximately
HK$1,660.1 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$334.0 million or 25.2% when compared with the revenue of
approximately HK$1,326.1 million in 2023. As global inflationary
pressure has further eased, the consumer electronics industry has
entered a new round of development cycle, and brand customers
have actively planned and launched new products. Market demand
has rebounded, and customer orders of the Group have increased
significantly, among which the mobile phones and wearable
devices and the commercial telecommunications equipment
segments performed particularly well.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
approximately HK$625.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$113.0 million or 22.0% when compared with
the gross profit of approximately HK$512.8 million for 2023. Gross
profit margin rose 0.1 percentage point to 26.5% (2023: 26.4%).

The gross profit margin for the mold fabrication segment
remained at a high level at 37.0% (2023: 37.0%). The Industry 4.0
strategy implemented by the Group in recent years has achieved
remarkable results, maintaining good production efficiency and
market competitiveness.

The gross profit margin for the plastic components manufacturing
segment rose 0.7 percentage point to 22.1% (2023: 21.4%),
mainly due to the Group's plastic injection molding business
growing significantly. Orders from customers in general had
rebounded since last year's destocking. Moreover, as several new
products commenced mass production, capacity utilization has
increased significantly, effectively offsetting the impact of some
early development investments in new products and driving up the
gross profit margin of the plastic injection molding business.

Other Income

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
approximately HK$58.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$13.0 million or 28.7% when compared with the
other income of approximately HK$45.2 million in 2023, primarily
attributable to the increase in the Group's sales of scrap and
surplus materials of approximately HK$6.5 million and the one-
off storage fees of approximately HK$4.0 million received from
customers during the year.

Other gains — net

Other gains (net) for the year ended 31 December 2024 were
approximately HK$10.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$4.4 million or 69.6% when compared with the
other gains (net) of approximately HK$6.2 million in 2023, primarily
attributable to the increase in gains from changes in fair value of
financial instruments of the Group during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Selling Expenses

Selling expenses for the year ended 31 December 2024 were
approximately HK$71.0 million (2023: HK$57.4 million), accounting
for approximately 3.0% (2023: 2.9%) of the total revenue of the
Group. Selling expenses increased by approximately HK$13.6
million or 23.8% when compared with that of 2023, primarily
attributable to the increase in cost of transportation.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2024
were approximately HK$304.4 million (2023: HK$275.2 million),
accounting for approximately 12.9% (2023: 14.1%) of the total
revenue of the Group. Administrative expenses increased by
approximately HK$29.2 million or 10.6% when compared with
that of 2023, primarily attributable to the increase in employee
expenses.

Finance Income — Net

Net finance income for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
approximately HK$19.0 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$8.7 million or 83.9% when compared with the
net finance income of approximately HK$10.3 million in 2023,
primarily attributable to the decrease in interest expenses.

Share of Results of Associates

Share of profit of associates for the year ended 31 December 2024
was approximately HK$0.6 million, and share of loss of associates
for the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately HK$8.0
million. Share of loss in 2023 was primarily attributable to the
recognition of an impairment loss regarding an associate of
approximately HK$9.0 million.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
approximately HK$71.4 million (2023: HK$32.8 million) and the
effective tax rate was 21.4% (2023: 13.8%). Effective tax rate
increased by 7.6 percentage points when compared with the
corresponding period in 2023, primarily attributable to the increase
in withholding income tax of approximately HK$23.5 million during
the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2024 was approximately
HK$261.9 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$57.7 million or 28.2% when compared with approximately
HK$204.2 million in 2023.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND RATIOS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$1,264.7 million (31 December 2023: HK$1,193.1
million). The Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$1,164.8 million (31 December 2023: HK$1,158.2 million),
including cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$1,008.6
million (31 December 2023: HK$1,158.2 million) and restricted
cash and term deposits of approximately HK$156.2 million
(31 December 2023: Nil). The current ratio of the Group was
approximately 263.4% (31 December 2023: 276.0%).

As at 31 December 2024, total equity of the Group was
approximately HK$1,711.3 million (31 December 2023: HK$1,685.2
million). As at 31 December 2024, gearing ratio was not applicable
(31 December 2023: 1.5%), primarily attributable to the fact that
the bank borrowings had been fully repaid during the year.

DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

Bank borrowings of the Group were fully repaid as at 31 December
2024.

LIQUIDITY RATIOS

An analysis of the Group’'s key liquidity ratios as at 31 December
2024 is as follows:
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Current ratio BN 263.4% 276.0%

Inventory Turnover Days

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's inventory
turnover days were 87 days, representing a decrease of 15 days
when compared with that of 2023, primarily attributable to the
significant growth in the plastic components manufacturing
business with a shorter production cycle.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ERETHREATR)
Trade Receivable Turnover Days

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's trade
receivable turnover days were 56 days, representing a decrease of
2 days when compared with that of 2023.

Trade Payable Turnover Days

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's trade payable
turnover days were 55 days, representing a decrease of 6 days
when compared with that of 2023.

Current Ratio

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's current ratio was 263.4%,
representing a decrease of 12.6 percentage points when compared
with the current ratio of 276.0% as at 31 December 2023.

ASSETS PLEDGED

As at 31 December 2024, there were no assets pledged by the
Group (31 December 2023: Nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and RMB and HK dollar
are the functional currencies of the principal subsidiaries of the
Group. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risks arising
from various currency exposures, mainly with respect to US dollar,
Euro and RMB. Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends
have always been a main concern of the Group. Foreign currency
hedging of the Group has been managed by the Group’s financial
controller, and overseen by the Group’s chief executive officer. In
accordance with the Group’s hedging needs and the then foreign
exchange situation, the Group's financial controller would collect
and analyze information regarding various hedging instruments and
determine hedging ratio, and the Group’s chief executive officer
would then evaluate and make a decision as to whether to enter
into the relevant hedging agreement. The conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

The Group's cash and bank balances were primarily denominated
in RMB, US dollar, Euro and HK dollar. Its operating cash inflows
and outflows were primarily denominated in RMB, US dollar, Euro
and HK dollar. The Group is closely monitoring the exchange rate
movements and regularly reviewing its gearing structure so as to
mitigate the expected exchange rate risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

RMB EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group’s major revenue is principally denominated in US dollar,
Euro, RMB and HK dollar, and the Group’s major expenses are
principally denominated in RMB. The Group has not entered into
any agreement for RMB hedging purpose.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the capital structure of the Company
during the year, and the Company’s capital included ordinary
shares and other reserves.

PLANS FOR MATERIAL CAPITAL INVESTMENTS

The Group will invest in capacity expansion and investment
projects to capitalize the potential growth of the Group's business
in the coming years in the manner set out in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the
Company. Future funding source is mainly from internal resources.

STAFF POLICY

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 3,687 full-time employees
(31 December 2023: 3,225) and 114 workers dispatched to us from
third-party staffing companies (31 December 2023: 128).

The Group’'s remuneration policy aims to offer competitive
remuneration packages to recruit, retain and motivate
competent directors and employees. The Group believes that
the remuneration packages are reasonable and competitive and
in line with market trends. The Group has put in place a share
award scheme for its directors and employees in a bid to provide
competitive remuneration packages for the Group's long-term
growth and development. The Group also provides appropriate
training and development programmes to its employees to
enhance the staff's work ability and individual performance.

The Group has implemented training programmes for the
employees to meet different job requirements. The Group believes
that these initiatives have contributed to increasing employee
productivity.

As required by PRC regulations, the Group makes contributions
to mandatory social security funds for the benefits of its PRC
employees which provide pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing funds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group had no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries (2023: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2023: Nil).

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2025, the global economic environment is
full of opportunities and challenges. The market expects global
inflation to fall further and major economies to enter a cycle of
interest rate cuts to promote economic expansion. According
to the latest forecast of the International Monetary Fund, global
economic growth will reach 3.3% in 2025, representing an
increase of 0.1 percentage point from the forecast in October
2024. Among them, the economic growth rate of the U.S. has
been raised to 2.7%, and China’s economic growth forecast has
been raised to 4.6% due to fiscal stimulus policies, while the
Eurozone's growth forecast has been lowered by 0.2 percentage
point to 1% due to weak demand and political uncertainty. The
global economic outlook still faces many uncertainties. The new
U.S. government’s fiscal, trade and immigration policies may
have significant changes. Coupled with complex and volatile
geopolitical tensions, the global supply chain and trade pattern
may be further impacted. In addition, the rapid development of
artificial intelligence technology has speeded up the integration
of consumer electronics and technological innovation and
accelerated the pace of industrial development. Moreover, the
Chinese government's implementation of new subsidy policy on
the purchase of electronic products has promoted the recovery
of the consumer electronics industry. Brand owners are actively
preparing to launch new products, and the management is
optimistic about the business development prospects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

In the face of market recovery and technological changes,
consumer electronics brand customers are actively promoting
product innovation and technology upgrades to meet growing
market demand. The Group is committed to technological
breakthroughs and innovation, continuously improves mold
and plastic injection molding-related processes, and provides
differentiated and comprehensive solutions, including
incorporating silicone and traditional plastic injection molding
technology, Printing Direct Structure (PDS) technology, etc.,
to manufacture diversified high-end plastic enclosure products
for domestic and overseas brand customers. This has enabled
us in leading market trends and promoting iteration of end
products. At the same time, the Group is optimistic about the
development potential of domestic innovative technology brands
in the consumer electronics and medical fields. With many years
of design and production experience in serving the world’'s top
technology industry leaders, the Group helps domestic brands
expand into the international market. In addition, in order to further
optimize the industrial layout and enhance competitive edges, the
management is actively exploring various feasibility of extending
the industrial value chain and paying attention to potential merger
and acquisition opportunities, with a view to providing customers
with more comprehensive one-stop solutions through vertical
integration of the industrial chain.

Artificial intelligence technology is accelerating its penetration
into the field of consumer electronics, bringing a new round
of product innovation and user experience innovation. Mobile
phones, Augmented Reality (AR) glasses, Artificial Intelligence
Personal Computers (AIPC) and smart home devices are expected
to become important carriers of artificial intelligence technology.
As technology advances, the application ecosystem improves,
and the industrial chain matures, market demand will continue
to expand. The Group is intensifying its strategic cooperation
with consumer electronics brands, increasing investment in new
product development, and actively expanding its market territory.
The Group has successfully entered the supply chain of leading
enterprises in the Metaverse industry, supporting customers in
all aspects of research and development of AR glasses from mold
fabrication to product design, and assisting in the launch of new
products into the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Amid geopolitical risks and the uncertainties of international trade
policy, global companies are accelerating the pace of reshaping
their supply chains to improve their ability to resist risks. Following
the trend of industrial reform, the Group successfully established
an overseas production base in Vietnam, forming a “China +
Vietnam” dual-origin layout to cope with market fluctuations
and enhance the resilience of the supply chain. The Vietnam
factory mainly provides supply solutions outside of China for
consumer electronics brand customers, further consolidating the
Group's competitive edges in the Southeast Asian, European and
American markets. In view of the continuous increase in market
demand, the Group plans to expand its production capacity in
Vietnam, quadruple the production area of the Vietnam factory,
and replicate the high-quality plastic injection molding capabilities
of the Chinese production base to the Vietnam factory to provide
mold maintenance and repair capabilities to ensure the speed
and efficiency of large-scale production. At the same time,
the Group also plans to upgrade its domestic production base
to comprehensively improve manufacturing capabilities and
production efficiency. The Suzhou plant will expand production
capacity and further improve production efficiency to meet new
opportunities in East China. The Group will increase its investment
in the headquarters at Guangming District, Shenzhen to expand
its fully automated dust-free production workshop for medical
consumables on the one hand, and to improve the manufacturing
capabilities and precision of the high-precision molds on the other.
The Group will use its hard power to stay at the technological
forefront of the mold industry, meet the increasingly stringent
structural design and precision requirements of medical equipment
and high-end consumer electronics for providing customers with
highly reliable and epoch-making plastic product solutions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Facing the challenges and opportunities of the global economic
environment, the Group will continue to enhance its core
competitiveness to respond to market changes. The Group actively
responds to the national new quality productivity strategy and uses
technologies such as data platform and artificial intelligence to
optimize process management to ensure excellence in production
processes and improve the stability of high-precision production.
In addition, by deepening the application of Industry 4.0, we are
able to enhance the level of digital intelligence in the production
process, further improve production efficiency and achieve cost
reduction and efficiency improvement. In a relatively high-interest
rate environment, the Group will ensure sufficient cash flow and
continue to adopt rigorous financial management strategies to
ensure efficient allocation of capital and maintain a sound financial
position. Looking forward to the future, in a market environment
where opportunities and challenges coexist, the Group will rely on
its existing advantageous businesses to actively expand into new
market areas, strive to achieve long-term sustained and stable
growth, and become an important member of the more resilient
global supply chain system to ensure that it maintains its leading
position amid market changes.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESkaREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Pui Leung, aged 65, is the chairman of the Group. Mr.
Li is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as an
executive director on 28 March 2013. He is also the chairman of
the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Li is responsible for the overall management and
strategic planning of the Group. He has accumulated more than
40 years of professional experience in plastic mold fabrication
and plastic injection molding and also experience in business
management in manufacturing industry. Mr. Li together with Mr.
Lee Leung Yiu, a substantial shareholder and an executive director
of the Company, established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding FTY
in Hong Kong in 1983, and have since expanded the Group’s mold
fabrication business into the mainland China in 1992 and relocated
the operations to Shenzhen, China.

Mr. Li was elected the “"Winner of Young Industrialist Awards
of Hong Kong” in 2003 and “QOutstanding Person of Shenzhen
Machinery Industry” in 2004, and awarded “Shenzhen Person of
the Year” by Southern Metropolitan Daily in 2013. Mr. Li holds
several social titles, including serving as a committee member and
the convenor of Hong Kong of Shenzhen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the President of Guang Ming General
Chamber of Commerce (Industry and Commerce), a committee
member and honorary president of Hong Kong Young Industrialists
Council Foundation, the Chairman of Kowloon City District Road
Safety Campaign Committee, the vice chairman of Federation
of Hong Kong Shenzhen Association Limited, the vice president
of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International Association, the
executive director of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce,
the vice chairman of charity committee of Shenzhen Guangming
District and the president of Rotary Club, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
in 2000. In July 1974, Mr. Li graduated from Yuanzhou Gongshe
Lulan Primary School in Boluo, Guangdong in China, and obtained
a middle school graduation certificate. Mr. Li is also the controlling
shareholder and director of both Eastern Mix Company Limited
(a controlling shareholder of the Company) and Lead Smart
Development Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company),
and the elder brother of Mr. Lee Leung Yiu.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung, Michael, aged 63, is an executive director
and the chief executive officer of the Group. He is also a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Yung has
over 30 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication and plastic
injection molding. He was appointed as an executive director of the
Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Yung is responsible for formulation
and implementation of the business plans of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yung acted as a buyer in National
Semiconductor Hong Kong Ltd. from May 1985 to August 1987. He
was promoted to Component Engineer in May 1987. From August
1987 to February 1989, Mr. Yung served at AST Research (Far
East) Ltd. as a procurement engineer. Mr. Yung joined the Group
in 1989 as the general manager and was primarily responsible
for operation management for the injection molding business.
He has been serving as the managing director of the Group since
2000, and is mainly responsible for business development and
the daily operations of the Group’s business. Mr. Yung graduated
from the Department of Industrial Engineering of the University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor’'s degree in Engineering in November
1983. He also graduated from the Centre of Buddhist Studies of
the Faculty of Social Sciences of the University of Hong Kong
with a Master's Degree in Buddhist Studies in November 2008.
Mr. Yung is also the shareholder and the director of Eastern Mix
Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company),
and the controlling shareholder and the director of Cheer Union
Development Ltd. (a substantial shareholder of the Company).
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, aged 64, is an executive director of the Group.
He is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as
an executive director of the Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Lee
has accumulated more than 40 years of experience in plastic
mold fabrication and plastic injection molding. Mr. Lee alongside
Mr. Li Pui Leung (a controlling shareholder, the Chairman and
an executive director of the Company) established Tung Kong
Machinery Moulding FTY in 1983. He has been serving as the
manager whose major responsibility is the procurement for the
Group. From August 2009 to October 2010, Mr. Lee completed the
EMBA training classes of Graduate School of Tsinghua University,
China, and obtained a certificate of completion. In June 2013,
Mr. Lee obtained a degree of master of business administration
from the University of Wales, the United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is
also the shareholder and the director of Eastern Mix Company
Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company), the controlling
shareholder and the director of Normal Times International Limited
(a substantial shareholder of the Company), and the younger
brother of Mr. Li Pui Leung.

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 62, was appointed as an executive
director and the chief financial officer of the Group on 27
November 2013. Mr. Cheung joined the Group in July 2002, as
a corporate financial controller and was mainly responsible for
the finance, taxation, audit and investment of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung had served at Deloitte Ross
Tohmatsu (currently known as “Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu”) and
served as a financial controller for a FORTUNE 500 manufacturing
company, as well as those manufacturing companies listed in
Hong Kong and the U.S.. He has accumulated over 30 years of
experience in the field of auditing, accounting and corporate
finance. Mr. Cheung graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (the
predecessor of Hong Kong Polytechnic University) department
of accounting in November 1987. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since January 1996
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since September 1990.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy (“Dr. Chung”), GBS BBS JP, aged 72,
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 27 November 2013. He is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Dr. Chung obtained a PhD in Engineering from the University of
Warwick, the United Kingdom in May 2010. In September 2012 he
achieved a PhD of Business Administration from City University of
Macau. He has been appointed as an Industrial Professor by the
University of Warwick, the United Kingdom since December 2010.
He was awarded a doctorate degree of business administration
honoris causa by the Hong Kong Metropolitan University and an
honorary doctorate degree of business administration by the City
University of Hong Kong in 2023, a doctorate degree of business
administration honoris causa by the University of Macau, and
an honorary doctorate degree of science by the University of
Warwick, the United Kingdom in 2019, an honorary doctorate
degree of business administration by the Lingnan University in
2015, an honorary doctorate degree of business administration
by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007 and an honorary
doctorate degree of the University of Newcastle, Australia in
2006 respectively. He was awarded by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government ("HKSAR Government”) the
Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) in 2017, the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS)
in 2011, and was appointed as Justice of Peace in 2005. Dr. Chung
was granted the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Award in 1997,
and was further awarded the Industrialist of the Year in 2014.

Dr. Chung is currently a Board Member of the West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority and Chairman of the Standing
Committee on Youth Skills Competition. He was the Chairman
of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries from July 2011 to
July 2013 and has been serving as the Honorary President of
the Federation since July 2013. Dr. Chung was appointed as the
Chairman of the Vocational Training Council from 2018 to 2019.
He is also the Founder and Chairman of Bright Future Charitable
Foundation.

Dr. Chung is an independent non-executive director of Vitasoy
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 345), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, since 24 June 2017. He was also
an independent non-executive director of Fujikon Industrial
Holdings Limited (stock code: 927), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, since 1 April 2014 until 23 June 2021 and a non-
executive director of Techtronic Industries Company Limited (stock
code: 669, a company listed on the Stock Exchange) until 10 May
2024.
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Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 72, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
November 2013. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee, a
member of both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tsang is a former partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong and China who has over
30 years of experience in auditing and providing support for initial
public offerings and acquisition transactions. Mr. Tsang received
a bachelor’'s degree in business administration from Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants.

Currently, Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director of
the following companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange: China Merchants China Direct Investments Limited
(stock code: 133), Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
(stock code: 460) and Shirble Department Store Holdings (China)
Limited (stock code: 312). He is an independent director of HUYA
Inc. (a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, stock
code: HUYA). Mr. Tsang was an independent non-executive
director of CA Cultural Technology Group Limited (stock code:
1566) from November 2014 to November 2022.

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung (“Miss Leung”), aged 44,
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 20 December 2019. She is also a member of each
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Ms. Leung has practiced as a Barrister in Hong Kong for over 15
years. Ms. Leung obtained her PCLL from the University of Hong
Kong in 2005. She was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2006.
Ms. Leung has a broad-based civil practice, undertaking work in
all aspects of contractual and commercial disputes, personal injury
and family law. From 2007 to 2013, Ms. Leung has been a part-
time Lecturer of Company Law for the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant (HKICPA) Practising Certificate Law
Examination and a part-time Lecturer of Corporate and Business
Law for the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, she
has been a non-clinical lecturer in the Department of Professional
Legal Education for PCLL at the Faculty of Law at the University of
Hong Kong since 2022, and is also contributing editor of Archbold
Hong Kong and Company Law of Hong Kong Insolvency. Ms.
Leung was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
FSE Lifestyle Services Limited since with effect from 1 February
2024, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 331).
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Ms. Leung is serving on various HKSAR Government advisory
committees and has actively participated in many social services
and public offices. She has served as a board member of the Hong
Kong Dance Company from October 2020, co-opted member of the
audit committee of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
from January 2021, member of the Committee on the Promotion
of Civic Education of the Home Affairs Bureau from April 2021,
member of the Advisory Committee on Postservice Employment of
Civil Servants and Member of the Communication and Innovation
Committee UNICEF from July 2021, member of the Agency for
Voluntary Services — Planning & Services Committee of the Hong
Kong Volunteer Recognition Scheme Organizing Committee from
December 2021, chairman of the Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings)
from December 2021 and council member of the Hong Kong
Committee for UNICEF from July 2022.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lu Gong Shan, aged 45, is the general manager of the mold
fabrication segment of the Group. Mr. Lu joined the Group in May
2002, and was appointed as the deputy general manager of the
Group in January 2009, who is responsible for the development
of the mold fabrication business, project management and the
management of affairs in respect of technology, quality and
sourcing management. In October 2013, Mr. Lu was appointed as
the general manager of the standard mold business units of the
Group, and the responsibility is for the overall management of the
standard mold business units. Mr. Lu graduated from Zhengzhou
University of Light Industry in July 2000 with a diploma of high
molecular material machining specialised in mold design and
manufacturing. In May 2013, Mr. Lu obtained a degree of master of
Business Administration in Executive Management from the Royal
Roads University.

Mr. Yim Cham Sum, aged 59, joined the Group and was
appointed as the Operations Director of the plastic components
manufacturing division of the Group in December 2017, whose
responsibility is for the operation management of the plastic
components manufacturing division. He was appointed as the
general manager of the plastic components manufacturing division
of the Group in January 2019 and was responsible for the overall
management of the plastic components manufacturing division.
Mr. Yim obtained the Degree of Master of Business Administration
(MBA) from the University of Strathclyde in the U.K. in July 2002.
Prior to joining the Group, He had over 10 years of experience in
manufacturing operations management and previously served at
Nypro Plastics & Metal Products (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Lok See Yuen Samuel, aged 48, is the chief marketing
director of the plastic components manufacturing division of the
Group. Mr. Lok joined the Group in August 2009 and was appointed
as the chief marketing director of the plastic components
manufacturing division of the Group. He was mainly responsible
for sales and marketing affairs of the plastics components
manufacturing division. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lok had
approximately 8 years of experience in Plastics industry. Mr. Lok
previously served as the application development manager of GE
Plastics Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lok graduated from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in mechanical engineering in November 1998.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 62, is the company secretary of the
Company. Please refer to “Directors and Senior Management —
Executive Directors — Mr. Cheung Fong Wa" for further
information.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company believes that good corporate governance practices
are very important for maintaining and promoting investors’
confidence and for the sustainable growth of the Group. The Board
sets appropriate policies and implements corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group's
business. The Board is committed to strengthening the Group's
corporate governance practices and ensuring transparency and
accountability of the Company’s operations.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained in Part 1 of Appendix
C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Company regularly reviews its
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG
Code.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2024. Key corporate governance principles
and practices of the Company are summarized below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ dealing in the Company’s securities.

Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rEERME(E)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE WRITTEN GUIDELINES
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines"”), governing securities transactions by employees
including directors or employees of a subsidiary or holding
company of the Company) who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident
of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for
dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its
Directors and relevant employees in advance.

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting of 4
executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time
pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive
Directors are expressly identified in all corporate communications
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under
“Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual report.
Save that Mr. Li Pui Leung and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu are brothers,
none of the members of the Board are related to one another.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
to ensure a balance of power and authority. The positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are currently held by Mr.
Li Pui Leung and Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael respectively.
Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the overall
management and strategic planning of the Group and the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practices, whereas the Chief Executive Officer
focuses on the day-to-day management of the Group's business
and implementing objectives, policies, strategies and business
plan of the Group approved and delegated by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board has at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of
having three independent non-executive Directors (representing at
least one-third of the Board) with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide spectrum
of business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgment to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
They are invited to serve on the Board Committees of the
Company. Through active participation at Board and Board
Committees meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests, all independent non-
executive Directors have made various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company and provided adequate checks
effective direction of the Company and provided adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of both the Group and the
shareholders.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in light of the independence guidelines set out in the
said Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All Directors are appointed for a specific term, subject to renewal
upon expiry of the existing term. Each executive Director is
engaged on a service agreement for a term of 3 years, which
may be terminated by either party by not less than 3 months’
written notice. Each of the independent non-executive Directors is
appointed for a term of 3 years.

The procedure and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are laid down in the Company’s Memorandum
and Articles of Association (the “Memorandum and Articles of
Association”). The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing Board composition, monitoring the appointment of
directors and assessing the independent non-executive Directors.

According to the Memorandum and Articles of Association, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. In
addition, any new Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy in the Board or as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the first annual general meeting after
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. The retiring Directors are eligible for re-election by the
shareholders at the respective general meetings.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board is also responsible for implementing
policies in relation to financial matters, which include risk
management and internal controls and compliance, if applicable,
and maintaining an effective governance and oversight of ESG
matters, as well as assessment and management of material
environmental and social risks, ESG strategy and reporting. In
addition, the Board reviews the financial performance of the
Group, approves investment proposals, nomination of Directors
to the Board and appointment of key management personnel.
These functions are carried out either directly by the Board or
through Board committees such as Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company, the duties
to act honestly and in good faith, in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times and to avoid conflicts of interests.

All Directors have timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management, with a view to ensuring compliance with Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations. Any Director
may request for independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company's expenses, upon reasonable
request made to the Board.

Delegation of corporate governance duties

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the responsibility
for performing corporate governance functions set out in the code
provision A.2 of Part 2 of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has reviewed
and monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance with the Model Code and the Employees Written
Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Delegation of management functions

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the
management for the management and administration functions of
the Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management should report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Group. Matters which are specifically reserved to
the full Board for decision are those involving a conflict of interest
of a substantial shareholder or a Director, material acquisitions
and disposal of assets, corporate or financial restructuring, share
issuance and distribution of dividend, and approval of financial
results and corporate strategies. The Board will review those
issues on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to
the needs of the Group.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director shall receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
he/she is fully aware of Director’'s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of Part 2 of the CG Code,
all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The existing directors are continually updated on changes
and developments to the Group's business and on the latest
developments in the laws, rules and regulations relating to
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. Directors’ training is an
ongoing process. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’'s expenses. Directors are
requested to provide their training records to the Company for
records.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors have
complied with the code provision C.1.4 of Part 2 of the CG Code on

HE2024F12A31MBILFE 5 —5E
TFEEARTRE2HD 2 FEHEXEC.T .4

participation in continuous professional training as follows: & HETHEREEY
Mode of participation
2EEN
Name of Director a b c d
EEpE
Executive Directors: BITESE -
Mr. Li Pui Leung MR A v v/ v v
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEDLE v v/ v/ v/
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu FRB&EA v v v v
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa RS ELEA v v v v
Independent non-executive Directors: B IHHITES -
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EEFEL v v/ v v/
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung B+ v v v v
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong WA v v v v

Directors attended a training session conducted by the Company relating to a. BEZXNTHARRNMBAHENEIRE NXEEE
directors’ duties and responsibilities under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, EAEEATES C FTRAREMEAERRE
the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations. BTHBRERELE -

Directors received regular briefings and updates from the Company Secretary/ b. EEEITRAANME AAREEEBEHALEE
the Company’s management on the Group’s business, operations and corporate B RERCEEARETENTHEREEHER -
governance matters.

Directors attended seminars/forums, which are relevant to their duties and c. ESHERTHIEEQR MMEMEHAEFEZH
responsibilities, organised by professional firms/institutions. ERETHBEOTTE HIE -

Directors read technical bulletins, periodicals and other publications on subjects d BEHETETEENAEBERESN EWRLEE

relevant to the Group and on their responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

BZEREBETHEENZBORMAR - BFIMED
AR o
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rEERWE(E)

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board

EEHFERLE

SEERNEHE2024F12A31BILEFERETT

committees meetings and the general meeting of the Company MAANFESehEETeLEeeZ ULK
held during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out below: RA® 2 HELSEEHI T -
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HE/ RN
Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Name of director Board  Committee ~ Committee =~ Committee Meeting
BEfR Exg ERZES yHzEE REZEE REBEAS
Executive Directors: HiTEE
Mr. Li Pui Leung FMREE 5  NATER  NATER 1 1
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SBMEE 5  NATER 1 N/A TER 1
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu FRERE 5 NATER  NATER  NATER 1
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa RAERE 5 N/A 1 EF N/A NER N/A TiE A 1
Independent non-executive Directors: BUHHTEE
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy ETTEL 5 4 1 1 1
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung Rt 5 4 1 1 1
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BN EE 5 4 1 1 1
In addition, the Chairman of the Board held one meeting with the — It5h - ZEEIFEF NE 2 E = fF BB IEATT
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of the EFERTT RERBEMESFESERLT
other Directors during the year under review. B °
BOARD COMMITTEES EEEZET

The Board established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’'s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website and are
available to shareholders upon request. All the Board committees
should report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations
made. All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 4 members,
namely, Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy,
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, the
majority of which are independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure,
size and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board at least once in any financial year and to make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed
without undue disruption, the Company has adopted a Director
Nomination Policy. The Policy includes a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for selection, appointment and
reappointment of Directors, as well as plans in place for orderly
succession (if necessary), including periodical review of such
plans.

During the identification of suitable individuals, to ensure the
effective carrying out of the responsibilities by the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider criteria set out as below,
including but not limited to:

e the integrity, experience, skills and professional knowledge;

e a balance of skills, experience and diversity appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business;

e adequate amount of time and effort devoted to the Company;

e contribution to the diversity of the Board;

e participating in Board meetings to bring an independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

e taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

i%kk;mqi& (/V/\>
REZEES
REZEURRENMGAE  DEDRKE
(XF)  EXTHT  REHLTRBEX

A HRREY RBIFNTES

REAZEQAENEAPBREFEE DR —
REZGNRE - RE AR (BHEKE - A
W& E)  WHRERREAANRRE
EXREMUBEFTSELMESRLES -

REREFSHERABNEH I ETHKTE
ENTE ARFAEHEMEFEABR - K
”“”*ﬁftﬁ REBRERYAZAENES
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‘EJr%\J(ZZHﬁ%% I 5E B st HARE & o
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(%)

/‘r/-v\ &

TEEBERY

e bringing a range of business and financial experience to
the Board, giving the Board and any Committees on which
he or she serves the benefit of his or her skills, expertise,
varied backgrounds and qualifications and diversity through
attendance and participation in the Board/Committee
meetings; and

e scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

The Committee identifies suitable individual qualified to become
Board members and makes recommendation to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment of a new Director
(to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when
it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process
when necessary.

The Board Diversity Policy

The Company believes that diversity underpins the successful
operation on an effective Board and embraces diversity as a
means of attaining its strategic objectives. According to the
diversity policy of the Board adopted by the Company, the
Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the policy,
developing and reviewing measurable objectives (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service)
for implementing the policy, and monitoring the progress on
achieving the measurable objectives set to ensure the continued
effectiveness of the Board. The Board aims to appoint at least
one Director of different gender at any given time to join the
Board when selecting and making recommendation on suitable
candidates for Board appointments. Going forward, the Board will
continue its efforts in ensuring that appropriate balance of gender
diversity is achieved with reference to stakeholders’ expectation
and international and local recommended best practices, with the
ultimate goal of bringing additional female to the Board where
suitable opportunity arises.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has
achieved measurable objectives including (i) at least one-third of
the Board shall be independent non-executive Directors; (ii) at least
one Director is female; (iii) at least one Director shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications; and (iv) at least
one Director shall have relevant experience in the mold fabrication
and plastic manufacturing industry. As at 31 December 2024, the
ratio of male and female in the Company’s workforce (including the
Directors and senior management) is 60% and 40%, respectively,
representing a male-to-female ratio of 1.5:1. As such, the Board
considers that the Company’s workforce has achieved gender
diversity between males and females.

To ensure the effectiveness of this Policy, the Nomination
Committee will, as appropriate, review the Nomination Policy,
discuss any revisions that may be required and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval. The
Company believes that greater diversity of Directors is good
for corporate governance and is committed to attract and retain
candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies from
the widest possible pool of available talents; and to increase
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining
the Company’s competitive advantage. The Board will review the
implementation and effectiveness of the Nomination Policy on an
annual basis in accordance with code provision B.1.3. of Part 2 of
the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Nomination
Committee has held one meeting (the attendance records of
each Committee member are set out in above section headed
“Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the following
major works:

— Review of the policy for the nomination of Directors;

— Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of the Group;

— Recommendation of the re-election of the retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the 2024 annual general meeting;
and

— Assessment of the independence of all the Company's
independent non-executive Directors.

TEERRE(E)
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rEERWE(E)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 4 members,
namely, Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy (Chairman), Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael, Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung and Mr. Tsang Wah
Kwong, the majority of which are independent non-executive
Directors.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. The
primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and reviewing and approving remuneration
proposals of all Directors and the senior management. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Remuneration
Committee has held one meeting (the attendance records of
each Committee member are set out in above section headed
“Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the following
major works:

— Review of the remuneration policy and structure of the Group;
— Assessment of the performance of executive Directors;

— Review of the remuneration package of Directors and senior
management; and

— Consideration of the bonus payable to Directors and senior

management for the year 2023 and the proposed salary
increment for the year 2024.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Remuneration Committee also reviewed matters relating
to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and
the grant of awards pursuant to the share award scheme of
the Company (the “Share Award Scheme”). Award shares are
granted to selected participants after having taken into account
the performance of the Group and the selected participant’'s
contribution for the relevant financial period, such that relevant
performance targets have already been met before any grant is
decided to be made. Accordingly, there is no performance target
stipulated as a condition to vesting of the awards granted to the
senior management of the Company. The purpose of the Share
Award Scheme is to enable the Company to grant awards to
selected participants as recognition of the contribution by the
Group’s personnel and to provide them with incentives to retain
them for the continual operation and development of the Group.
The Remuneration Committee is of the view that the grant of the
awards will provide incentives to the senior management to make
contribution to the growth of the Group, and the vesting period
of the awarded shares can safeguard the interest of the Group
to allow the Group to retain contributing personnel and make the
grant of the award shares align with the purpose of the Share
Award Scheme.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the recommendation
model described in provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of Part 2 of the CG Code.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of Part 2 of the CG Code, the
annual remuneration of the members of the senior management,
including those members of senior management who are also
executive Directors, by band for the year ended 31 December 2024
is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)
HrEM4E B (B oT)

TEERRE(E)

FEZ B e BN EMRAE 1 7ERARD
A& RARBAN A A ) 22 R =t & ([ B fn 228
AEDREEBNEBER - BEIRM IR
ERIAEEEEERESEERBHEYR
HEELNERMBRETEE2EE - AR
REEHERZ LA - HAGUE RO EE
B Bt - BEFTRERAAR R SR ERE
ERLZRBNRBIRTZEMBR - K
RBTEEERARARETLEER KK
B WAREAKBEABFLENER X AE
ERERBURBRESARENFERLS
RERLN - FMEE SRR REEBSK
HEEREEERASENERIELER -
MR R B REREEAOF &
BARERBEEEBNOAR » WERBRN
B BT A B REIE BIRE o

FHEZRE SO RMEREATRIF 2R D 25T
AIGRSTEE. . 2(c) (i) 6P it B B AE X

RIBEEERTRE 28D 2 FRIIGXE
E16k RAEEEXE (BREREETH
TEEMNEREEEKE)RNEE20245F12
AR LEE 2 FEFHFMRAR D EMT

Number of individual

A

2,5600,001-3,000,000
3,000,001-3,500,000
3,500,001-4,000,000
4,000,001-4,500,000
4,500,001-5,000,000
5,000,001-5,500,000
5,500,001-6,000,000
6,000,001-6,500,000

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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rEERWE(E)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises 3 members, namely,
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy and
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung. All of them are independent non-
executive Directors.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual matters raised by the external
auditor before submission to the Board.

To review the relationship with external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

To review and supervise the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit plan.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee
has held four meetings (the attendance records of each Committee
member are set out in above section headed “Directors’
Attendance Records”) and performed the following major works:

Review and discussion of the annual audited financial
statements, results announcement and report for the year
ended 31 December 2023, the related accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and the relevant audit
findings, the report from the management on the Company's
review of the risk management and internal control systems,
and recommendation of the re-appointment of the external
auditor;

Review of the Group's continuing connected transactions and
the compliance of the non-competition undertaking provided
by the Company’s controlling shareholders;

Review of and monitoring the Company’'s corporate
governance policies and practices, the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and the Employees Written
Guidelines, and the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

— Review and discussion of the interim financial statements,
results announcement and report for the six months ended 30
June 2024, and the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group;

— Review and discussion of valuation processes and results of
unlisted equity investments;

— Review of the annual audit plan of external auditor, including
the nature and scope of the audit, the fee payable to them,
their reporting obligations and their work plan; and

— Review of the effectiveness and performance of the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit plan.

The external auditor attended meetings to discuss with the Audit
Committee members on issues arising from the audit and financial
reporting matters.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, who fulfils
the qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of Mr. Cheung are set out under "“Directors and
Senior Management” section in this annual report. During the year
ended 31 December 2024, Mr. Cheung has taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.
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PEERME (&)

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out in the Independent
Auditor's Report on pages 173 to 179.

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
auditor, in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year

ended 31 December 2024 are analysed below:

Type of service provided by the external auditor

SN RRBIEM AR SV AR IS B AR

SMNEB A BT R X B AT B =

AANRMIINEREBMREEEUARBEE
2024F 12 A3 B L FEHMBMENZ2HRE T
W BAEHNE 17351798 KB LD
wER o

BZE2024F12A3MBLEE - O/ BAK
A A X BRAN 28 EE oK B ' 5T R B 75 AT 0 A% 2L
RIEZEREEASITOT ¢

Fees paid/payable

gt/ ENER
HK$°000
FHBx

Audit services — audit fee for the year ended ZERTE — & 2= 2024F12HA31H
31 December 2024 IFFENZEER 2,092
Type of service provided by related entities of SN BET R R Fees paid/payable
the external auditor RENREES et ENER
HK$'000
FH&xT

Environmental, Social and Governance RE - g REREHARE

advisory services 429

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group and of the results and cash flows of
the Group for that year and in compliance with relevant law and
disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and have prepared disclosure of the financial position
of the Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating

to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board believes that sound risk management and internal
control systems are essential to the achievement of the strategic
goals of the Group, and confirmed that the Board is responsible
to set up, maintain and review the effectiveness of such systems.
Management is responsible for the design and implementation
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
to manage the risk. Good risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance.

The Group’s risk management framework

In order to improve the risk management and internal control
systems, as well as enhance the level of management and risk
prevention capabilities, the Group established its risk management
framework in 2016. The risk management framework includes
the Board and its Audit Committee, senior management and
subsidiary managements, in three levels (Please refer to the below
framework for further details).
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Risk management framework
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TPEERRS (B)

The Group has commissioned a professional risk advisory body
to help build risk management framework, develop the Risk
Assessment Manual, and conduct risk assessments to determine
the nature and extent of the risk. In the risk assessment process,
the management and the Internal Audit Department have
identified the major risks faced by the Group and ranked these
risks according to the likelihood and the severity of the impact on
the Group, as well as further development of risk management
measures to maintain the risks at an acceptable level.

The Company also has an Internal Audit Department, which is
responsible for performing independent review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.

The management and the Internal Audit Department would
report to the Audit Committee and the Board on all findings and
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems,
and makes recommendations. The Audit Committee also ensures
that an overall review of the effectiveness of such systems is
conducted at least annually and put forward to the Board for
consideration.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives; and acknowledges
its responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness.

The Company has also developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Company’s directors, officers,
senior management and relevant employees in handling
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries.

The Board and its Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the Company’s risk management and internal control systems
for the year 2024, as well as taking into account the resource,
adequacy of staff qualifications, training and experience of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting and internal audit
functions. Based on the reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Department and the management, the Board considered that the
Company's risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Group has its risk management and internal control policies
and procedures reviewed, to ensure compliance with the new
requirements, and explore opportunities for improvement.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association, any one or more members holding as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the total
voting rights (on a one vote per share basis) in the share capital
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition and for
additional resolutions to be added to the meeting agenda, and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

If a shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at a shareholders’
meeting, the shareholder, who has satisfied the shareholding
requirements set out in the above paragraph headed “Procedures
for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting”,
may follow the same procedures by sending a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong. The shareholder should
state his/her proposals in the written requisition and submit the
written requisition as early as practicable to enable the Company
Secretary to make necessary arrangement.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
PEERME (&)

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, pursuant to Article 85 of the Memorandum and Articles
of Association, the shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) should prepare a written notice duly signed by him/
her of his/her intention to propose a person for the election and
a notice duly signed by the person to be proposed of his/her
willingness to be elected. These notices should be lodged at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong or its share
registrar at least 7 days prior to the date of the general meeting.
Where the notices are submitted after the dispatch of the notice
of the general meeting, the period for the lodgment of the notices
should commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting and end not later than 7 days prior to the date of
the general meeting.

Shareholders are welcome to send enquiries to the Board to the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Workshop
No. 19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501
Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The annual general meetings and twice-yearly business
performance conferences of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or
in their absence, other members of the respective committees,
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board
committee are available to answer questions at shareholders’
meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
)

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.tkmold.com where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company’'s business operations and development,
financial information and information are made available for the
shareholders and public access in a timely manner. In addition,
corporate communications such as annual reports, interim reports
and circulars are published in plain language and in both English
and Chinese versions of the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website to facilitate shareholders’ understanding and
shareholders have the right to choose the language (either English
or Chinese) or means of receipt of the corporate communicate
communications (in hard copy or through electronic means).

Following the annual review on the implementation and
effectiveness of the measures relating to shareholders’
communication as set out above, which enables the Company to
carry out effective two-way communication with its shareholders
by way of regular meetings and timely updates of the Company's
financial results and operational developments, the Company
considered that multiple communication channels were in place
and was satisfied that the implementation and effectiveness of the
measures relating to shareholders’ communication was effective.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI HERERTRE

ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the ninth Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the “Report”) issued by the Group. It aims to present the Group's
latest progress in environmental, social and governance (ESG)
to stakeholders. Through the Report, the Group is committed to
providing stakeholders with a deeper understanding of the Group's
achievements in enhancing and optimising its ESG management
practices. The Report is in Chinese and English. In the event of any
discrepancy in text understanding, the Chinese text shall prevail.
The Report has been published on the websites of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the
Group (www.tkmold.com).

The reporting scope of the Report covers the ESG performance
of the Group’'s production bases in its Shenzhen headquarters,
Suzhou, Huizhou, Vietnam and Germany for the year from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2024 (the “Year").

The Report is prepared in accordance with the four reporting
principles of Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency
set out in the Appendix C2 Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Code (the “Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

e "Materiality”: During the preparation process of the Report,
important stakeholders have been identified, and stakeholder
communication and materiality assessment have been
included as a basis for determining the material ESG issues
taking into consideration of the development strategy, industry
and business conditions of the Group.

e "Quantitative”: The Report sets forth the measurable key
environmental and social performance in the past three
years, and provides comparative descriptions for individual
important and key quantitative data. The Report discloses
the measurable objectives in relation to the environment and
society, so as to assess and validate the effectiveness of the
Group's work on the environment and society.

e "Balance"”: The Report follows the principle of balance and
objectively displays the current status of ESG of the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

e "“Consistency”: In the Report, the Group has adopted the same
statistical methods as in previous years, and compared certain
ESG data of the year with the data of previous years. For
details, please refer to the chapter headed “Overview of Key

RIR - g kEamE(E)

[—ZERA: RABEF - AREE
REETFHERNOS A UHARF
EHORE HERERBREHEETFHR
BIELLE - HI5E2H [BRERERE

Performance Indicators”. B ER -

The Group has undertaken to make every endeavour to guarantee NEFBARERNBERANREMEBROEIESE
the accuracy and reliability of the data and information presented M ERER] S - WBS B NS EEHE K IE =
in the Report and strengthened management by establishing the EEEFIMUNEIE -

internal monitoring and formal review procedures.

The Report has been recognised and approved by the Board on 17 AR ECNR2025F3A17THEEESHER R

March 2025.

i

Comments or recommendations of stakeholders in aspects of the NEFBELMESTEORMNEMDERANER
Group's ESG performance are greatly valued by the Group. Please RESGHAMKRRIBEHIME RS EZ - B
feel free to contact us by the following means: BBATHABAERER -

Group Headquarters 5B 30

FERY T AREREHENEREERINE T XE

TK Technology Park, Tangjia Community, Fenghuang Sub-district, Guangming District,
Shenzhen, the PRC

B 55 : +86-755-23690328

Hong Kong Office &&=

EBHATEEILEA91-50158F H TE£HOBEIE195R

Workshop No.19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, 491-501 Castle Peak Road,
Tsuen Wan, N.T., Hong Kong

EFE  +852-24113628
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B HER

ESG HIGHLIGHTS OF TK GROUP

Promoting Sustainable
Development

EBRSERR

Implementing Green
Concepts
BITHREES

Tackling Climate
Change
EHREE(L

Developing a Solid
Defence Line

EEZEHR

Facilitating Compliant
Operation
HESREE

Creating a Sustainable
Supply Chain
TETEtEE

Realising Talent Value

BRAZEE

Engaging in
Philanthropic Work
B hAmEBE

Honours and
Recognition
RERW

AN
B

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
HE(E)

FIKBESGRHET

We have established a three-tier ESG governance structure

B =BESGEIARE

The environmental risk and occupational health and safety risk of the Group have been
assessed, showing that they are remaining at a low risk level

A AEEIRRE R NBERERZ 2 RBREREMNMERBR KT

We have fulfilled the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (UNSDGs)

HiZH S B A3 R B R (UNSDGS)

We have selected low-carbon and environmentally-friendly raw materials and promoted
lightweight design of products

EREBIRRREE  HITERKE(LER

Purchased 400 MWh of green electricity for the Shenzhen factory

RY R i B A% B8 400K LA

The injection molding factory recycled and resold 770.4 tonnes of waste

VA 28 i [ [B] W2 7 5 5 77 0. 4 068 BE KL

We used scenario analysis to qualitatively analyse climate risks and opportunities
KABRS T HETE ED I RIKE b S

We have set ambitious carbon reduction targets

R AFHOOBOREER S

We calculated and disclosed six types of Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions
ZREWHECRAERISHE =

The Group’'s EHS Committee held 4 meetings

SEEHSZE @/ BMHAREH

The coverage rate of EHS training reached 100%

EHSIE I ZE X3E100%

We have engaged qualified third-party agencies to conduct comprehensive safety
inspections

CHEEAENE=THERRZALZERE

We have formulated the Anti-Corruption Policy ( {FF &5 ) ) applicable to the entire
Group

FlEEANAREEERBN (T ETRE)

We have established a three-tier labour and business ethics management structure
BR=-EBSTRE*EREERE

We conducted internal customs Authorised Economic Operator (AEO) audits and labour and
business ethics audits

WNEFEBEAEOR A T R EEET

All new suppliers have undergone ESG assessment by the Group
B ABEHEREIIES T ANEBESGRTL
We conducted online carbon inventory training for 125 key suppliers

126X BRI ERFRRBER EEI

Our training coverage rate reached 91.1%, representing an increase of 0.8 percentage points
as compared to the previous year

BIIBEREIN 1%  REFRABMEE D

The average training time for each employee was 21.5 hours

BIFHZIRER21.5/)\E

Our employees participated in charity activities for 721.5 hours
BET2HENEE721.5/\F

We made charitable donations of HK$1,409,000
AzE1BHE1,409,0008 7T

We won the 2024 British American Tobacco (BAT) Asia Supplier ESG Fast Movers
ERME2024F KB E S B (BAT) M EHESGR

We won the 2024 Philips Sustainability Improvement Award

ERME2024F RFH A B B R U 82
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

PROMOTING SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

TK Group has continuously deepened its commitment to
sustainable development, and actively responded to environmental
challenges and fulfilled its social responsibilities by constantly
improving its ESG management mechanism. The Group is
committed to creating stable and sustainable corporate value for
its customers, brand partners and all cooperating partners, and
jointly promoting the harmonious development of the society and
environment.

Pursuant to the relevant provisions set out in the Code (Appendix
C2), the Board has issued a statement on the following
matters. The Board of the Group has attached great importance
to the significant impact that ESG risks may have on the
Company. The Board receives reports from the management
on economic, environmental and social issues every year. The
Board is responsible for supervising and ensuring the effective
implementation of the Group’s ESG-related work, and considers
ESG-related issues when setting the Group's future business
direction and goals.

In line with its own development, the Group has continuously
adjusted and optimised its governance structure, established and
enhanced its risk management system, defined and implemented
its phased strategic goals, and is committed to improving the
effectiveness of ESG governance.

ESG Governance Structure

The Group attaches great importance to ESG governance and
continuously improves the ESG governance system, and has
established a three-tier ESG governance structure. The Board
of the Group, as the highest responsible body for ESG matters,
is responsible for reviewing and making decisions on the
Group's ESG strategy, objectives and reports, and has ultimate
responsibility for the overall ESG performance. The Chief Executive
Officer, as the chief person in charge of the Group’s ESG
governance structure, coordinates related work and facilitates the
implementation of ESG strategy. The Board has established the
ESG Working Group, which is headed by the Group’'s EHS Manager
and includes the TKM General Manager, the TKP General Manager
and the Group’s Financial Controller as members.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g hERWmE(E)

ESG Management Responsibilities ESGEERE

The Board
EEg

ESG Working Group
ESGTI /sl

Identify sustainable development priorities and develop Group-level sustainable development
strategies (including management policies, indicators and targets)

BRI HERRELAZE  FAITKEBENAFESRAR(BEEEFI - HENERF)
Formulate and review climate-related strategies and management approaches and ensure
that they are aligned with the Group’s overall sustainable development strategy

FIEW R RIEAARBREES L BREESERE I HEEEBRAGRHA

Review environmental and social trends and issues that may be relevant to the Group's
business operations and development, especially climate-related issues, and ensure that the
sustainable development strategy fully reflects relevant considerations
ERAREANEEEBELNERBENRNIM B LHEE  FRIRRZEBEZEE - WER
ARFEEERRERI KRR EBEE

Regularly approve and review climate-related goals and major initiatives to ensure that
climate-related risks are included in the comprehensive risk management framework and
that relevant risks are effectively controlled through effective identification, assessment and
management mechanism

TFHEMRFRIEEEE RN EESRE  BRAGEFERAAZTHRRERESR  WRAE
ME R - AHEAE RS - RIZHE R RIS BB BT

Guide various working groups to ensure that each business unit formulates and implements
work guidelines and action plans in accordance with the Group's sustainable development
strategy

BESEIENM  BREEFEUABERNBELERBHIE RN TIERSINTHAIR
Monitor and review the measures and performance of each business unit in promoting
sustainable development, and review the progress of achieving sustainable development
goals based on the established indicators
EBNRASEESENHHAFECENERNRE  UREREEEREIHREZREEE
REHERE

Provide recommendations on risk appetite, tolerance and strategy for sustainable
development risks (including climate-related risks)
HARBEEERR(RERBREBRR)NRBRIRLT - AT RRBIRLER

Prepare sustainable development reports in accordance with local and international
sustainable development reporting standards

BERMNEBERAIFEERRERE  GHAHEERRE

Regularly report to the Board on matters related to the Group's sustainable development,
including the implementation and progress of climate-related strategies

EHMEESERAEEAUHEEZRENEE - EERFEERBHATERER
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Through the above structure and division of responsibilities, the
Group is able to efficiently advance ESG work and ensure the

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

achievement of sustainable development goals.

Supervision and

decision-making
B R

Daily management

HRERE

Implementation

EHETT

RIE - g MEawE(E)

BBALRBEEBEDT - AREEASN
HEEESGTF - MRAFEEREFNER -

The Board
Chief Executive Officer

N
ESG Working Group
Group leader: Group EHS Manager
Group member: TKM General Manager,
TKA Group Financial Controller, TKP
General Manager
ESGI{E/Na
B EEEHSKIE
HE - TKMELIE - TKRASE B 5488
TKPAEKIE
N\ N\ | N\
TKM TKA TKP
Mold Purchasing EHS Department of Injection Molding
Department the Group Materials Department
TRREREE B EEEHSH EZB R ER
Mold Quality Facility Planning Injection Molding
Department Department Quality Department
ITERmME SR B EB T2 & &R
Mold Technology Human Resources Injection Molding
Department Department Technology
TR E A EIRER Department
Mold Machine Administration and JEIB R AT AR
Maintenance Logistics Department Suzhou Administration
Department 1T I% 2 2B Department (EHS)
TR#ES External Affairs ERINFTINEB(EHS)
General Manager Management Huizhou Business
(Mold) Office (EHS) Department & Labour Office (EHS)
TR B A Union EINEREHAE
(EHS) SINEEEBRITE (EHS)
Chairman Office
EERNIRE \

Internal Audit
Department of the
Group
SERE
Procurement
Department of
the Group
S EEREE
Finance Department
of the Group
BB 75 ER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R - tgkenmE(E)
ESG Risk Management

The Group's ESG risk management framework is consistent with
its ESG governance framework, and the Group is committed to
incorporating ESG risks into the comprehensive risk management
system to ensure that they are facilitated in coordination with the
Group's overall strategic objectives. The Board, as the highest
decision-making body for ESG risk management, is responsible for
formulating risk appetite, tolerance and strategies for sustainable
development risks (including climate-related risks), and regularly
approving and reviewing climate-related goals and major initiatives
to ensure that these risks are incorporated into the Group’s
comprehensive risk management framework and that relevant
risks are effectively controlled through effective management
mechanism.

In the practice of ESG risk management, the Group attaches great
importance to communication with stakeholders and responds
to their concerns and demands through multiple information
disclosure channels. The ESG Working Group, under the guidance
of the Board, is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing ESG risks, and regularly reporting to the Board on the
progress and effectiveness of ESG risk management. The Group
will continuously pay attention to the dynamic changes of ESG
risks and continuously improve its risk management capabilities to
support the Group's sustainable development goals. Moreover, the
Group's internal audit department regularly assesses the adequacy
and effectiveness of the ESG risk management framework to
ensure that it can adapt to the changing ESG risk management
needs.

In 2024, the Group conducted systematic assessments on
29 risks, including ESG-related risks. During the assessment,
we used a quantitative scoring method that comprehensively
considered the probability of risk occurrence and the extent of its
possible impact, and combined it with the scoring results of the
senior management. The final results show that the Company's
performance in ESG risks (including environmental risks and
occupational health and safety risks) is at a low risk level. This
indicates that the Group's risk management measures in key
ESG areas are effective and that the overall risks are controllable,
thereby providing a strong guarantee for sustainable development.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

ESG Goals and Action Direction

The Group continuously reviews and optimises its ESG goals and
their performance, comprehensively covering key areas such as
safety management, human resources, pollution control, resource
utilisation, emission management, business ethics and compliance
governance. The Group has set clear ESG management goals
in particular for pollution control and resource efficiency. The
Group’'s EHS Working Group is responsible for implementing
annual performance assessments and incorporating key ESG
performance indicators such as production safety, energy saving
and consumption reduction and compliant operation into the
assessment system for the Company’s key managers and team
members, thereby motivating and driving the Company to achieve
its ESG goals.

Meanwhile, the Group actively responds to the United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and is committed to
exploring and practicing the path of sustainable development. The
specific goals and practical cases are shown in the figure below.

RIR - g hERRE(E)
ESGEERABFH M

AEBERFBEEGALBCESGE R REAMK
B 2EBEREEE  ANER  5RE
B BRAAE - BINEE  AEEBERERAR
REEMBRAE - AKBE I HITRE
HEERAKRRE T AENESGERRIR -
AEBOEHS T/ MR BB F EAEMRT
e BLE2EE  HERRE ARAKES
ESGRARGBMIERMARRIEERAER
BEKERNEZEER  FLABYES QA
EKESGRIE »

R AEEEGERHAETHERRA

fR(SDGs) ' NN KERBERAFHERRD
BE - ARBEREERRJFATERR -

BTHEE (%) BRAR 202453k
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Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) of the United Nations

BEESERRE B R (SDGs)

4

L]

POVERTY

G000 HEALTH
AMD WELL-BEING

QuauTy
EDUCATION

GENDER
EOUALITY

g

fiddid | Bddid

3 ansun

4 RN

5 TN

¢

SDG 1: NO POVERTY
BE— EESE
End poverty in all its forms everywhere

ERHEAG— I ANER

SDG 3: GOOD HEALTH AND WELL-BEING
BiR= : RIFfEERERAL

Ensure healthy lives and promote well-being for
all at all ages

ﬁﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁ’ﬂiiﬁ?‘ifﬁ CREFZSFRBEABNE
A

SDG 4: QUALITY EDUCATION

BiEm: BEHE

Ensure inclusive and equitable quality education
and promote lifelong learning opportunities for
all
BRETMATHEEHE
BHE

SDG 5: GENDER EQUALITY

BER - RIS

Gender equality is not only a fundamental
human right, but a necessary foundation for a
peaceful, prosperous and sustainable world
MR FENMER—HEAARE MAEMT &
KM AT RNER

CEERERHERE

SDG 7: AFFORDABLE AND CLEAN ENERGY
BiEt : EEERAERER

Ensure access to affordable, reliable,
sustainable and modern energy for all
BRAABESBESEN M FENERER

BER
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Our action

EMTE

Actively participate in charity activities and
promote the joint construction of harmonious
communities

BR2EAGEE  REEFLR AR

For details, please refer to the chapter headed
“Engaging in philanthropic work”

HMAELH (BN RREX TS

Ensure the physical and mental health
of employees and improve the working
environment

RIEETHOMEER - WETIERR

For details, please refer to the chapters
headed “Developing a Solid Defence Line"” and
“Realising Talent Value”

HAFELH [ RER2MHRIE [KRASTBEIE
&

Organise and carry out caring activities on
education to provide children with quality
education

HEHRFARBOHREY  ARERMEEHE
For details, please refer to the chapter headed
“Engaging in philanthropic work”

EXE RPN i

Pursue equal employment and diversity
policies, implement equal pay for equal work,
and care for female employees
FETTFERERS TCOEE BETRIEM -
BIELZItEET

For details, please refer to the chapter headed
“Realising Talent Value”

FHAFLH KR AT BEIZA

Purchase green electricity to increase the
proportion of clean energy

BEZEEN  BRIVERERAGL

For details, please refer to the chapter headed
“Implementing Green Concepts”

HAFESH [ BITAEESIEEH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) of the United Nations

SETFERRBZ(SDGs)

CO

CLIMATE
ACTION

8 SEIFH
BiRlE

12 anger

QO

SDG 8: DECENT WORK AND ECONOMIC
GROWTH

BEN : BEILEMEEER

Promote sustained, inclusive and sustainable
economic growth, full and productive
employment and decent work for all

REFA  BEANAHELELER - REXD
FEUREMAANESEBEIE

SDG 9: INDUSTRY,
INFRASTRUCTURE
BIEN : B3 - RIBTFIERE R
Build resilient infrastructure, promote inclusive
and sustainable industrialisation and foster
innovation
REEHEENMERE
BT EA - BRI

SDG 12: RESPONSIBLE CONSUMPTION AND
PRODUCTION

BiE+=: BETHBEMEE

Ensure sustainable consumption and
production patterns

AT RENS B EEER

INNOVATION AND

i (RE BB

SDG 13: CLIMATE ACTION

BiE+= RIKTTH

Take urgent action to combat climate change
and its impacts

KREZESTHEREREZCREZE

SDG 16: PEACE, JUSTICE AND STRONG
INSTITUTIONS
BAZ+75 - FIF - B2 o K

Promote peaceful and inclusive societies for
sustainable development, provide access to
justice for all and build effective, accountable
and inclusive institutions at all levels
BEMT  BANLSURERFERRE  EM
BEAHEERFRE  ESREVAR  BENE
REVHENE

RIR - e RERRE(E)

Our action

EMTE

Safeguard the legitimate rights and interests of
employees and eliminate child labour
HELSESEER  BEREL

For details, please refer to the chapters headed
“Creating a Sustainable Supply Chain” and
“Realising Talent Value”

SAELH [ITEAFEHER HE [KRALE
BEIEH

Embrace industry technological innovation and
accelerate the innovative application of new
materials and new processes
ﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%’ﬂ%%ﬁﬂﬁ%l%%%%
& A

For details, please refer to the chapter headed
“Producing High-Quality Products”
HRFLHTEREERIED

Choose to use low-carbon materials and
lightweight design, set goals for environmental
protection and resource efficiency, and
implement action for energy saving and
emission reduction

EAEBRM R SR - HERERERYK
@ AT - BRI TE

For details, please refer to the chapters
headed “Producing High-Quality Products” and
“Creating a Sustainable Supply Chain”
HHFE2H ITEEEER B [TEn HEMHE
s

Identify climate-related risks and opportunities,
and formulate response measures

BRI RARAE R R RS - BT R

For details, please refer to the chapters headed
“Implementing Green Concepts” and “Tackling
Climate Change”
nﬁmWJMkﬁﬁﬁﬁAﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁWﬂUE
&

Operate in compliance with laws, practice
business ethics, and build a strong foundation
for anti-corruption and advocacy of integrity
TEEREE  BIOTHEER  £ENBER
For details, please refer to the chapter headed
“Facilitating Compliant Operation”

A2 [HEEARER |BH

RIER® (%) BRAR] 2024 FH
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION BHERRE

The Group is committed to expanding the communication channels AEBR AR ESFZFEE B ERE
with various stakeholders and has established a complete and BUWRERY T ETESWERLERKS
regular communication mechanism to collect and respond to the AKREMBIES ARFEFRK - REBES S
demands of all parties. The Group strives to build an open and BE—ARK - FHNERIBE  WBEME

MERETNBSHERBILBIZEZR

of all stakeholders are heard and properly addressed. o

transparent communication environment to ensure that the voices

Key stakeholders Concerns and expectations Means of communication Our response

66

EFERKHE

The government

B

Investors and
shareholders

REERER

Customers

BP

B EEHE

Compliant operation
BREE

Transparent information
disclosure

EREEER

Response to climate change

FES R IRE (L

Sustainable development of the
Group
SETHERR

Risk management

’_u;/\ EI%

Shareholders’ rights and
interests

PR #E R

Greenhouse gas emissions

BRI

Customer privacy and
information security
management
EEFBLEGEREER
Product quality
EmES
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BEAR

Work meeting
ITHEE=H

Material submission

P L3R

Information disclosure

EEWE

Special report

HHEER

General meeting

BERRE

Investor communication
conference

BEEZRRE

Site visit

RIHER

Regular communication
T BB R

Satisfaction survey

MEERE

EMEEE

Comply with laws and regulations

BERER

Increase information disclosure
channels and means

LEESEERBAZA

Assess the risks brought by
climate change

BREEN AP N

Improve the ESG governance
structure
TEEESGEIALIE

Strengthen risk management

Inog R E

Disclose carbon emissions data

REWH R

Set goals for carbon reduction
Il E R R B 1R

Optimise customer services

BleEP R

Set and achieve production yield
targets

RUIWEREER KB R



Key stakeholders

TERFHE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Concerns and expectations

BXEE

Means of communication

BEARX

RIE - g MEawE(E)

Our response

M E e

Employees
BT

Suppliers
e

The public and
communities
NS &

Employees’ career
development

BIBEZRR

Employees’ occupational health
and safety

BTRXRRERSE

Guarantee of employees’ rights
and interests
REETHER

Responsible supply chain
BETHERE

Green procurement

HRERE

Community development

HE R

Improvement of community
environment
HRIRIT A

Labour union
)

Suggestion box

BRAE

Employee activity

ET/EE

Open tender
yNGEC]

Supplier conference

HERAE

Community activity

HEE

Charitable donation
HEIBHE

Volunteer service

HRRE IR

Broaden career development paths
for employees

MRETIRETRRE

Improve the working environment
of employees
HEETTERIR

Enhance communication channels
with employees
EEEBTEBRRE

Establish a fair and transparent
supplier assessment process

BIYRAF - BHANEERGERIE

Procure green and
environmentally-friendly materials

R SRR

Participate in community charity
projects
SEMEARER

Improve the system for
community investment

TEHRBARE

RTSHRE () BRI 202453 67
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e RERHRSE (&)

During the Year, the Group is committed to gaining a deeper
understanding of the expectations and requirements of
stakeholders and, on this basis, continuously improving its ESG
management capabilities. The Group has identified a series
of sustainable development issues that are closely related to
business operations, future development and stakeholders’
concerns. By evaluating the impact of these issues on the Group
and its stakeholders, the Group completed the assessment of
material issues and created a material issues matrix accordingly to
ensure that the ESG strategy and action plan can fully reflect the
concerns and needs of all parties.

Step 1: Identification
HSR— 1 B

REE  RNEBERIWRAZBEN 548677
MR E B - WA R EREIRFESG
EIKF - AEBBRIL — RN EXBE
2 ORKRBRRFREE BT E A
MARKEERER - BRTMELIBYE A
SERMNEBETNEERE  AKRETK
TEEMRENTEIE  THREBRTE
EUHEBEEE - URERESGER RITEE 2
EEAHEERRETNBENEFR -

Based on industrial comparative analysis, national policies, stakeholder communications and others, 24 material

issues in three categories namely environmental, social and governance were finally identified.
BRERTHR BREE  #HHEBBERS  KEBHIHERE 48 BA-ABB24EERESE -

Step 2: Evaluation
B 1 FiMh

A questionnaire survey on substantive issues was sent to stakeholders to obtain the importance priority of each

issue while sorting out and compiling statistics on the ranking of material issues among peers.
EMFHEZXEELREAANS  ERSERZENET2UHERAT - YRESARTERUREFER

Step 3: Confirmation and review

SR=  BREERK

Based on the results of the questionnaire survey and industrial comparative analysis, a matrix of substantive
issues was drawn up, which was reviewed and confirmed by the Board.

REFGAMGREFITHER  @RELNZERRE - HESSRMAER -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g REAME(E)

High
‘%

HIFHENTE

Impact on stakeholders

@ Environmental
RIREE

@ Social
k=g

@ Governance

E/Dﬁ%

Energy management
BEIRETR

Business ethics

[EESEEE

Greenhouse gas
emissions

BEREDEN

Environmental

compliance
BEAR

Occupational health and
safety
[PE Jeeiuboes

Anti-corruption

B

Impact on business

HEBHZE

Employee development

and training
8 TR EE

Prevention of child
labour and forced labour

PrlbE T R8I T

Information security and
privacy protection

ERL 2 HERBLRE

Emission management

B E R

Corporate governance
NEVRE

Climate risks and
opportunities
RIRERR RS

Employees’ rights and
interests
BT

Diversity and equal
opportunities
ESHIN ST 34

Product responS|b|I|ty

EmAE

Responsible supplier
management

BRENHERER

Customer service and
communication

EFRSER

Intellectual property

AR

Product technology
innovation

E TR

\Water resources
management

KERERE

Responsible
marketing
EEEH

Environment and
natural resources

RERAARER

FOLRE (2R ARAF 202455

L
Q@
0

il

General issue
ﬂ;AﬁEE

Use of packaging
material

BEMEHER

Public welfare and
charity
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e RERHRSE (&)

PRODUCING HIGH-QUALITY PRODUCTS

The Group takes high quality and high yield rate as its core
competitiveness and is committed to providing customers
with excellent products and services. Through continuous R&D
investment and technological innovation, the Group continuously
improves production efficiency and product quality to consolidate
its market dominance. With a strict quality management system
and flexible production capabilities, we are able to swiftly respond
to customers’ needs and meet the requirements for multi-variety
and small-batch production. Meanwhile, the Group keeps pace
with industry technological developments and promotes the
application of new materials and new processes, thereby further
enhancing the added value and market competitiveness of its
products.

Response to Issues - SDGs addressed in this chapter
BREEE - AZEEHSDGsHE

9wmcrornn )l 9 5™ 12 oo )12 85
2 |5 ]oo

The Group adheres to strict quality control standards, endeavours
to improve product quality and production efficiency, strives
to build and enhance the quality management system, and is
continuously committed to self-improvement and transcendence

and constantly pursues excellence.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2024
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Quality Management System

The Group continuously improves its quality management system
and strictly complies with international standards and industry
norms, and has formulated and implemented a series of core
management documents such as the Management Process for
Substandard Products ( {TE&E@MEEMIE) ) and the Quality
Control Process for Supplied Materials ( & FEEFIRE) )
thereby establishing clear guiding principles and implementation
framework for quality management, and ensuring that every step
of the operation has rules to follow.

During the reporting period, the Group has obtained the following
quality management systems certifications:

Quality management systems certifications

EETERRARRE

RIR - e RERRE(E)

IR
Hlo
il
i
i

#

B

AEBETHFEEREEERE - BBKR
BRRERTRERTSE - SIEWEE(TE
R EERE) <<Iﬂu%%-ﬁ1%|lmﬁi>>—r S
Ptz B XA EIRHEN T AR
EERAEEBER - EE%-ZF%T%{’E%BH
EIE

]

E4

7

THA - AEBECERTIEEERERR

Zi|
[T

TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited

RTHEAECOR

IDBERAF]

TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) Limited

ISO 9001 Quality management systems
certification

ISO 9001 EEEEBARE

IATF 16949 Automotive quality management
systems

IATF 169495 BT X EEEHE AR

ISO 13485 Medical devices quality
management systems

ROTHENEZ CRINDAR AT

TK Precision Plastics (Huizhou) Limited
RIIBENEZ (EM)BRAR

TK Techco Silicone Rubber (Huizhou) Limited
FIE=RBEMNABRAR

TK Plastics (Suzhou) Limited
RIZBBRER (&M BRAF

TK Techco Silicone Rubber (Huizhou) Limited
HIskBEMNAERAR

TK Plastics (Suzhou) Limited
RIZBRE(EM)ERAF

TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) Limited

RTHEEE2(RIDBR AR

ISO 13485 R MMEEFIR R

Comprehensive Quality Control

The Group has implemented a comprehensive quality control
strategy, integrating quality management into every stages
from raw material inspection, production and manufacturing
to shipment and supervision. Before stocking raw materials,
the Group arranges professionals to carry out on-site guidance
and pre-inspection procedures to effectively prevent product
returns caused by quality defects. During the production process,
the Group strictly implements core stages such as first article
assurance, inspection and pre-warehousing inspection and,
through refined management, ensures that no defective products
can enter the production line. Before the products leave the
factory, the Group verifies them through scientific tests and
simulations of customers’ actual application environments
to ensure that every product can meet customers’ stringent
requirements.

PHEEEE

AEEERTEAUNESZHRE  $8

EEEBMAKEN R ifziziﬁ If=y
EEMNE—ERE c ERMEIAER - N&
BZHEEABRTRSESEBRET -
BEREEEREERNEERTN - £EB
B AEBEERRTEHER Wk EkA
EfieRSiZ 0RE - ERBAERER
FEATEEREEERAEER - EM KR
Al AEBEBBERSHBEERTSERE
RRBETRE  BRE—HEREERE
BEFEMERTENX -

RTSHRE () BRI 202453
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RIR e RERHRSE (&)

Key initiatives
EHER

e  Strictly comply with the requirements of relevant laws and regulations, and conduct annual inspections and regular tests

on special equipment.

EAEEEERAEERNER  HNERBETFERE R E B

e Implement monthly outsourced maintenance plan and annual inspection plan for air conditioning systems and driving

equipment.

HERERRTEREETER

—ROEIMREFTEIA R FEREFTE -

e |mplement an annual maintenance plan for production equipment, and update the maintenance content every quarter to
promptly detect and resolve potential faults and ensure the stable operation of the production line.

FERBRBFEREEINT  BZEH—
e Deepen the cultivation of quality awareness of all employees.
MEZEBEERHEE -

RRENE - REBERLRREELE

IR ERNIZEET °

e  Strictly control the quality of supplied materials and comprehensively improve the quality of molds.

BRI mE - 2EERALE -

e Use statistical tools (e.g. Six Sigma) to analyse the existing quality standards and take measures to achieve continuous

improvement.

ERL At TR (175 FE1835) & Al G 7K F -

PREVSE B PR F5 AR B ©

e  Establish SIP inspection items and standards for each product according to its condition, customer standards, etc.

HE—FERZERR - REEEZTIESIPREER RIFE

Product Quality Control Processes

The Group's injection molding factories have optimised and
implemented a comprehensive product quality control system,
covering five major stages to ensure product quality. First, all
production materials have to undergo strict incoming quality
control (IQC) inspection before entering the warehouse, covering
key elements such as appearance, size, reliability and hazardous
substances. Second, first article inspection is carried out for
key procedures such as initial production, mold transfer, colour
change, machine or material change, mold processing and
process parameter adjustment, which also covers a number of
key quality indicators. Third, in-process quality control (IPQC)
machine inspection is carried out during the process at specified
time intervals to double-check unqualified products and check
machine parameters, so as to ensure the stability of the production
process. Fourth, before products enter the warehouse, sampling
inspection on appearance is conducted according to the acceptable
quality limit (AQL) levels. Last, for shipment, we conduct
random unpacking inspection based on AQL or fixed quantity to
comprehensively check the appearance, packaging, size, reliability
and hazardous substances, so as to ensure that the final delivered
products meet high-quality standards. This series of strict quality
control processes together constitute a solid line of defence for
product quality assurance in our injection molding business.

Incoming quality First article In-process quality
control inspection inspection control inspection
FERER EHRER FIRR2IRER

Warehouse-in

EmmELERRE

REHE /IﬁJ“ﬁ’i%fKi’[?ﬁ@T*Ei\EEﬁfﬁu%
mEEERBR  RELKREOHUBREM
2: 8% Fﬁﬁif‘%%}HE)\F CIESEE )
BEIQCHK R RE - BWEIE - R E%ﬁ
M EEMEFHARER  HR - EERK
EoER 3 FRESSME - TEE
e Ig\”%(uﬂ %Eﬁﬁ DES i’]%ﬂﬁ%?—?
%lﬁl‘%q:‘ ?&LﬁIPOCEE%%M*ﬁ ’ Tﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁﬂfﬁ
B e mETHAER  WHBHE
28 BREEBRENBEN: W AE
AR BAQLIZE S I B ETT I R & &
% MHERE - KIEAQLEE S E# 1T
FeMMy  2EBRENE B8 RT F
BEEREEDE ﬁgﬁ%ﬂﬂ\ﬁiﬁﬁ’lﬁuuﬁm
SELEEEER - E—EEBRRANMEIEE
AR - 4 ﬂTﬁWT&E@%%Eﬁ:EE%&E’J
REMR -

Out-going quality
control inspection

HERR

inspection

NEER

Product quality control process

EmmELERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Product Testing

The Group strictly complies with the internally formulated
Environmental Substance Testing Plan ( (EREWERIHTE) )
and is equipped with X-ray fluorescence (XRF) testers to conduct
rigorous and detailed sampling tests on supplied materials and
finished products, so as to ensure that the product quality meets
environmental protection standards. Moreover, in response to the
personalised needs of specific customers, we also send specific
substances to authoritative third-party testing agencies for review
to further meet the strict requirements of customers. In our testing
work in 2024, our tests showed satisfactory results as a whole.
We will continue to improve our testing standards and provide
customers with even higher quality and more environmentally-
friendly products.

In addition, the Group’s mold business has acquired the capability
to conduct product testing on molds in the packaging and medical
fields. We are able to experimentally verify key product properties
such as sealing, fatigue resistance, temperature resistance and
pressure resistance, and the test results can meet more than 80%
of customers’ core functional requirements, thereby significantly
improving customers’ acceptance rates.

Quality Culture Construction

In 2024, the Group continuously facilitated the construction of
quality culture and integrated the Lean Six Sigma concept into
corporate management and operation practices. At the beginning
of the Year, the Group launched the Lean Six Sigma training
project, aiming to enhance employees’ capacity building in
terms of project management, design optimisation, engineering
improvement and quality control through systematic training.
The training covered the ideas, methodologies and related tool
applications of Six Sigma projects. It lasted for 10 days and ended
successfully in April 2024. Our employees actively participated in
the training, with a high attendance rate and examination pass rate.
All trainees participated in the practice of Six Sigma projects, with
a total of 17 projects being carried out.

RIR - g hERRE(E)
B

AR B B AR B R A BRI E M GRIRYE A ET
g jiﬁE%XRFiﬁﬂ?t{%‘ﬂ'iﬁﬁ%ﬂr&&u:'u‘é’iﬁﬁlﬁ

AR BREMEETARR
R o U ﬁ%T%fE%?)EE’MI MEEX

BPESSENEXEREE =TI HE
ETESZ  NE—FREREPHBIEEL -
20245 kBl T - AT RBIER
HEBRBARY - BAISTE R ORBIKF -
REPRHEENERE RRNEMR °

AN AEEITERE  EAGRIHEER
BRARLETEMARMEE - TFIRE
MU ERNTEMN - FURS M - TR R
BUEERERETERRE - X EBES
ReeHmEEF80% A ERZOIhEEFE R
RmBmERAFPOREE -

BELER
2024F AEEFBEHELS UELER -

15 #5258 /< A M 35 (Lean Six Sigma) I & gl A
TEEREBEERE -9 AKBRHT
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e RERHRSE (&)

TECHNOLOGICAL ADVANCEMENT AND
INNOVATION

The Group has always adhered to the concept of innovative R&D,
continuously increased investment in R&D and strengthened the
intellectual property protection mechanism, so as to ensure our
leading position and market dominance in the field of technology.
We are committed to becoming a benchmark in leading industry
development and constantly pursuing excellence and innovation.

The Group has introduced an advanced production management
system to achieve informatised management of the entire
process from receiving orders to delivering finished products.
During this process, we have deeply integrated systems such
as ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning), MES (Manufacturing
Execution System) and PDM/PLM (Product Data Management/
Product Lifecycle Management), thereby significantly improving
the efficiency of enterprise resource management and achieving
unified management of data sources.

In the production process, the Group has actively introduced
automated equipment and intelligent inspection system. For
example, automated inspection can be achieved through machine
vision technology to ensure the stability and consistency of
product quality. Meanwhile, the application of automated
production lines have effectively reduced dependence on manual
labour and further improved production efficiency.

The Group has strictly adhered to the technical standard system
of Industry 4.0 to steadily promote digital transformation. We start
from our areas of strengths to gradually realise the digitalisation
and informatisation of the entire production process, and ultimately
strive to build “lighthouse factories”.

AUTOMATION

The Group has always attached great importance to the
improvement of automation by actively investing in R&D resources
and continuously optimising and upgrading key production
equipment and systems, so as to enhance production efficiency
and product competitiveness. In 2024, we accomplished
remarkable results in the field of automation:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

We successfully developed and optimised a number of automated
equipment, such as the one-hole reaction vessel 64-cavity fully
automatic and efficient production line. This equipment integrates
production, testing, tray arrangement and packaging, and realises
automation in the entire process, thereby significantly improving
product yield and production efficiency. Meanwhile, we have
transformed and upgraded the automatic tray arrangement system
of electronic atomisers. By connecting such system to the injection
molding machine, we have enabled automatic tray arrangement
of products after the injection molding procedure, thereby greatly
reducing manpower input and labour costs and shortening the
investment payback period.

The Group started the planning and assessment of automated
inspection lines in the second half of 2024 and plans to enter
the implementation and substantiation phase in the first quarter
of 2025. This upgrade will realise the intelligent transformation
of the inspection process, with robots taking on low-value
tasks such as logistics, handling and cleaning. By integrating
technical tasks through big data to improve inspection efficiency
and data accuracy, we will be able to further optimise the
production process and facilitate the enhancement of intelligent
manufacturing.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

The Group strictly complies with laws and regulations such as the
Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {#%E A R HEFIE
EFE) ) and the Enterprise Intellectual Property Management
Specifications ( ((EEXFHEEEIR) ) while using legal means
to protect our own innovation achievements and respecting the
intellectual property of others through preventing infringements.
To further encourage innovation, we have established and
promoted a special award fund for intellectual property to
commend employees who have made outstanding contributions
in the creation, protection and application of intellectual property
and to stimulate the innovation enthusiasm and creativity of
employees. As of the end of the reporting period, the Group owned
394 valid patents. During the Year, the Group applied for 21 new
patents and obtained 36 newly authorised patents.
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GREEN TECHNIQUES

Lightweight Product Design

The Group has continuously innovated in the field of product
lightweighting and has reduced production costs and improved
environmental benefits through design optimisation and
technological upgrade. We use computer-aided engineering (CAE)
technology, e.g. Moldflow simulation analysis, to optimise the
design of product structure, effectively reducing product weight
while ensuring that molding quality, functional use and structural
strength are not affected. Meanwhile, we have introduced micro-
foaming injection technology to reduce product density by injecting
tiny bubbles into plastics. This technology has been widely used
in the production of automotive interior parts, further facilitating
the realisation of lightweighting goals. In terms of material
selection, we give priority to high-strength plastics, long-glass fibre
reinforced plastics and high-performance engineering plastics.
These materials have significantly reduce product weight while
ensuring product performance. The above measures have not only
reduced the consumption of raw materials and energy, but also
enhanced the market competitiveness of our products, thereby
laying a solid foundation for the sustainable development of the
Group.
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For car door panel armrest compartments, we use micro-foaming molding technology to enable a
more consistent size, 8.6% weight reduction and 6 seconds shorter production cycle.

MEPIRKF2RBHUOARERI - RIYERTE - BE82HE8.6%  £EBMIEE6Y -

For automotive parts, we use micro-foaming molding technology to enable a more consistent
size, 7.6% weight reduction and 10% increase in production efficiency.

METHEERROARA R BHRTEEE  RET.6%  EEREIRB10%HME -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group has continuously innovated in the field of spray-
free injection molding technology and is committed to providing
customers with environmentally-friendly, efficient and competitive
solutions. Our spray-free injection molding technology has been
widely used in various electronic products, and can achieve a
variety of appearance effects such as pearlescent, metallic lustre
and dazzling colours. For example, in the automotive field, spray-
free materials are used for interior and exterior trims such as
pillar trims, door handles and centre consoles, which have not
only improved the aesthetics of products, but also effectively
reduced the environmental pollution caused by traditional spraying
processes.

By optimising the injection molding process and mold design,
the Group's spray-free injection molding technology creates a
high-gloss and seamless effect, while also significantly reducing
defects such as weld lines and flow marks, effectively improving
the appearance quality of products. This technology uses direct
injection molding during the production process without the
need for an extra spraying process, thereby significantly reducing
the emissions of volatile organic compounds (VOCs), meeting
environmental protection requirements, and lowering production
costs. Moreover, the Group uses high-gloss plastic materials to
ensure the surface hardness and glossiness of products, providing
customers with environmentally-friendly and efficient solutions.
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Spray-free material technology: Product application demonstration
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR - g hERRE (&)
CUSTOMER RIGHTS PROTECTION

The Group continuously strengthens communication and
exchanges with customers, attaches great importance to the
confidentiality of customer information, and constantly optimises
and upgrades the after-sales service system, so as to ensure
excellent service experience for customers. We are committed to
providing high-quality after-sales services, building and maintaining
an excellent brand reputation, and gaining and maintaining the trust
and support of our customers.

The Group has established and enhanced the customer service
system to provide customers with appropriate solutions. We have
formulated internal management rules such as the Management
Procedures for Customer Communication and Feedback ( (&
PEBREEERIE) ), which has clearly defined the standard
operating procedures for customer feedback, complaints, claims
and satisfaction surveys. To ensure that customers’ issues are
handled promptly and accurately, we promise to respond within 8
hours, take emergency measures within 24 hours and resolve the
relevant issues within 7 days upon receiving customers’ feedback,
and will follow up three batches of the same product in a row to
develop corresponding improvement measures. Moreover, we
conduct customer satisfaction surveys several times a year, and
perform in-depth analysis on areas where satisfaction is lower
than expected, so as to continuously improve our products and
services.

During the Year, the Group conducted 2 satisfaction surveys for its
injection molding business, with an average survey score of 93.0,
and 4 satisfaction surveys for its mold business, with an average
survey score of 87.3.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group always puts consumers’ rights first. Once a product
defect is identified, the Group will promptly initiate a product recall
procedure, conduct a thorough cause analysis of the unqualified
product, and promptly take corrective measures to prevent
similar issues from happening again. Moreover, the Group strictly
monitors product quality performance by compiling monthly
statistics on product recalls and complaints. During the Year, the
Group had no product recalls due to safety and health reasons.

The Group strictly complies with laws and regulations related
to publicity and marketing such as the Advertising Law of the
People's Republic of China ( (FFEARLMBEEEE) ). We
pursue the principle of fair and honest trade, avoid misleading
consumers and relevant parties, and firmly refuse to participate
in unfair competition such as price wars, so as to ensure that
our sales and advertising approaches and contents conform
to recognised competition standards. Moreover, the Group's
marketing director regularly organises marketing meetings
to evaluate the planning and implementation of market
advertisements and strictly review the legality of sales strategies
and advertising contents, so as to ensure that the Group's external
publicity is true and accurate.
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IMPLEMENTING GREEN CONCEPTS

The Group actively undertakes social responsibilities and
is committed to environmental protection and sustainable
development. Through unremitting efforts and innovation, we
strive to become a green model in the industry and lead the
industry towards a more sustainable future. We have firmly
implemented green production, established and improved the
environmental management system, specified the responsibilities
of managers at all levels in promoting green development, and
conducted comprehensive review of the production process to
identify the major energy consumption and pollution discharge
elements. On the basis of complying with regulatory emission
requirements, we have implemented a series of targeted energy-
saving and emission-reduction measures, including optimising
production processes and reducing energy consumption and
waste emissions, in order to mitigate the impact of our business
on the environment. We are committed to implementing green
concepts in all aspects of production, operations and supply
chain management, and continuously promoting environmental
protection improvement projects, so as to reduce the waste of
environmental resources, enhance our environmental performance
and build a sustainable production model.

Response to Issues - SDGs addressed in this chapter
RELE - N EE ENSDGsEE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g kERmE(E)

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

REEEBFEANTFEHSCGRE - BEHEZE)K
® o TET R BERER - HMLA2022F
ERBEEF  RE2025F HEEF BT
—RIPRREF - ABOAT

The Group complies with the internal EHS (Environment, Health
and Safety) policies and continuously strengthens green and low-
carbon management. We have set a series of environmental
targets with 2022 as the base year and 2025 as the target year,
details of which are as follows:

Environmental targets

REER

Exhaust gas reduction
target
BERRHE B 2

Waste reduction
targets

BERYPER R

Wastewater reduction
target
BEKEHEE

Water-saving target

XEREHH B E

Energy consumption
target
BEREAEZ

During the reporting period, the Group has obtained the following £

We aim to reduce the intensity of exhaust gas emissions per million HKD revenue by
continuously optimising environmentally-friendly production techniques, strengthening
the collection and treatment of exhaust gas pollutants during the production process, and
implementing pollutant control for the entire process.

BAFEBCRREEIE  RAEEBBRPERSRAYHKREEEZRE  TERDBIESRAME
B RESEESEEENNERINEERER -

We aim to reduce the intensity of non-hazardous waste per million HKD revenue by optimising
production processes and raw material management, reducing the amount of waste generated
during the production process, continuously promoting the Zero Waste to Landfill programme,
and improving the resource utilisation rate of waste.

BABCEEREREMHAER  BOEERBRTHNEEELS  FEREFEFEYTEE
2 ANRABEDNEREFAER  URESEEBRENNESEENEERBEE -

We aim to control the generation of hazardous waste to be below 0.2 tonnes per million HKD
revenue.

BEEEEYNELEEHNESABEEER0.2MIAR -

Zero discharge of industrial wastewater

REE TEEKTHER

Total intensity of water consumption to decrease by 2%

IKEREFERBETE2%

With the goal of gradually increasing the proportion of renewable energy consumption within
the Group, to continuously optimise the energy structure by purchasing green electricity
REFRAREBABELERERSNLAERE  BRABELEE N  HEBLRERERE

environmental management systems certifications:

Environmental management systems certifications

BEEERARR

SHR - AKECERTIREEERR
MK

1SO 14001
Environmental
management systems
certification

1ISO 140013RE
EEBRAAE

TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited
RIRECRIDBRAR]

TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) Limited
FOTHEENEE ORI BRAF

TK Precision Plastics (Huizhou) Limited
RILBaNEZ EM)BRAR

TK Techco Silicone Rubber (Huizhou) Limited
RIE=RBEMNERAR

TK Plastics (Suzhou) Limited
RIBBRER(EHM)ERAF

RTSHRE () BRI 202453
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EMISSIONS MANAGEMENT

Precise pollutant management is crucial on the path to sustainable
development. The Group has established a comprehensive
environmental management system and passed the ISO 14001
environmental management systems certification. We have
continuously updated the environmental management system
to ensure that our production and operations strictly comply
with national environmental protection laws and regulations. At
the project initiation stage, we conduct environmental impact
assessments on all new construction and expansion projects
to ensure that their impact on the environment is controlled
within acceptable limits. During our operations, we invest in
advanced pollution treatment technologies, including exhaust
gas and wastewater treatment facilities, which have significantly
lowered the amount of exhaust gas emissions and wastewater
discharge and reduced the hazardous substances therein. We
possess pollutant discharge permits and are willing to receive
government supervision to ensure that all treated exhaust gases
and wastewater are discharged only after stringent testing and
compliance with standards. During the Year, the Group discharged
all pollutants in compliance with regulations, and there was no
violation incident of major pollution to the environment.

The Group strictly implements environmental protection policies
such as the Procedures for Identification and Assessment
of Environmental Factors ( (GRIBEZ#HANEFTERF) ), the
Procedures for Control of Air Pollution, Noise and Waste ( (Z=
ROSH - BB EEYITSIFEF) ), the Procedures for Operation
of Wastewater Treatment Device ( (BEKEIERBZERIE) ),
the Operational Guidelines for Emergency Preparedness and
Response ( ([EZEHEERIEIESI) ) and the Emergency
Plan for Environmental Emergencies ( ( R IR\ EHEETE
%) ). We will continue to monitor the implementation of these
rules and make adjustment and optimisation according to actual
requirements. Meanwhile, we carefully sort out the pollutant
emissions in the production process, implement standardised
and effective treatment processes, and strictly comply with
national laws and regulations, so as to ensure that pollutants
are discharged in compliance with standards, and minimise the
potential damage caused by unexpected environmental incidents.
We take targeted measures to identify, prevent and deal with
unexpected environmental incidents that may occur, such as air
pollution, soil pollution, water pollution and ecological damage. We
continuously improve and strictly implement relevant management
rules, and take proactive measures such as upgrading and
transforming exhaust gas treatment processes to address air
pollutant emissions. We are committed to better fulfilling our
environmental protection responsibilities and contributing to a
green and sustainable future.
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Exhaust gas reduction target

RIR - e REawsE (&)

BE SRR BE B R

Target We aim to reduce the intensity of exhaust gas emissions per million HKD revenue by continuously
BiE optimising environmentally-friendly production techniques, strengthening the collection and
treatment of exhaust gas pollutants during the production process, and implementing pollutant
control for the entire process.
BABEEBTRREETE  RECEEREPERTAYOREREE  WEEDBIR SRR
N EBEEBEERNERERTZRERBER
Initiative in 2024 e Regularly replaced activated carbon in exhaust gas treatment facilities to meet the testing
2024 F 1T requirements of emission standards

iﬁﬁ%?ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁ EEEP BRI -

R B UR A AeOR) 3R

e  Prioritised the use of environmentally-friendly refrigerant air conditioners to reduce air

pollutant emissions

5 FIRIRILA 28 -

Exhaust gas treatment

The Group has conducted a detailed identification and
comprehensive assessment of the emission sources of the
exhaust gases in the list, clearly divided the emission sources
and types of exhaust gases into two categories, i.e. organic
exhaust gases and general exhaust gases, and adopted targeted
management measures for each category.

General exhaust gases are mainly generated from the combustion
of fossil fuels from stationary and mobile sources. This category
of exhaust gases contains key components such as nitrogen
oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and particulate matter (PM).
To effectively control such emissions, we have implemented a
number of strategies:

v Optimising combustion technology to reduce nitrogen oxides
produced during the combustion process;

v Using low-sulphur fuel to reduce the release of sulphur oxides;

v Conducting regular and stringent inspection and maintenance
of relevant equipment to ensure the efficient operation of
equipment, thereby effectively reducing particulate matter
emissions.
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RIR e RERHRSE (&)

Organic exhaust gases are mainly generated from the spraying,
printing and injection molding operations in injection molding
workshops and the accompanying dust emissions. This category
of exhaust gases contains harmful substances such as benzene,
toluene, xylene, volatile organic compounds (VOCs), non-methane
hydrocarbons (NMHC) and particulate matter (PM). To effectively
manage such emissions, we have taken the following measures:

ERNAERER  EXTBEAIBERMNE

CEIR R BEEREFBER B

BUEEREAER FER —HER BEZUR
HAEAM(VOCs)  FEF K B (NMHC) 2 8
R PMEEEZENE - RERERIELLE

ko)

C RPIERER T AT

v Collecting exhaust gases efficiently through the gas collection v BRESFREsHNEER  LER[ER
hood and using the “bipolar activated carbon method” for VEIER TR | E TR R
treatment;

v Discharging the treated exhaust gases into the atmosphere v REENERAAZAETESIERTH
through dedicated pipes to reduce the impact on the ground o AR A RIS E
environment;

v Entrusting qualified third-party agencies to conduct v BEEZTAEELINE=-FKE X
professional monitoring of the concentration of organised and BHRGSNEABENNEREEETE
unorganised exhaust gas emissions every quarter to ensure HER MRFAEMETEEHAR
that all emissions meet local air pollutant emission standards; S5 BE AR SE

v In terms of exhaust gas treatment technique, regularly v EEREEBEIS @E THEBRERHE
replacing the activated carbon that adsorbs organic matters, BRE MR - WASEEEMEEIRIER
and safely and legally disposing the waste activated carbon EREMETEZE  ABENEE U
as hazardous waste to prevent it from causing secondary \FEEIRIEER — 54 o
pollution to the environment.

Waste reduction targets BEEYRHEEE

Targets We aim to reduce the intensity of non-hazardous waste per million HKD revenue by optimising
BEZ production processes and raw material management, reducing the amount of waste generated

during the production process, continuously promoting the Zero Waste to Landfill programme,
and improving the resource utilisation rate of waste.

BRABCEEREREMBER  BOEERRTNEEVELS  REREEENTIHENE A
RIRABEEYHNERICFAE LR ESEEBBERNETEEYTRELSER

We aim to control the generation of hazardous waste to be below 0.2 tonnes per million HKD
revenue, and strive to achieve the reduction of hazardous waste and the effective control of
environmental risks through measures such as reduction from the source, resource utilisation and
harmless treatment.

BEEBEEYNELELFHESAEBELW0 2R - BHBBRENSE  BRIEMNAREZL
BREREEE  BERESEEVRELALIRERARNEREE

Initiative in 2024 e Collected and disposed of waste in a classified and compliant manner, and optimised
2024F1TE) production processes to achieve waste reduction
DEWEVEHREIREERREY  BLEETEUEREZRE
e |nvestigated waste disposal methods, and implemented and obtained the Zero Waste to
Landfill (ZWTL) certification
AEEEVRESN @ HITEEVTHEIBER WERBRE
e Recycled and reused production scraps to achieve green recycling

Bl BARAER AR - BERGEAER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Waste treatment

The Group has continuously identified and updated business
processes that generate waste, and listed specific business lines
that generate hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, as well as the
corresponding waste substances, based on the formulated List of
Waste ( {EE¥/EE) ). In terms of hazardous waste management,
we pay special attention to various types of hazardous waste
generated from our injection molding and mold businesses.

The hazardous waste generated from our injection molding
business mainly includes waste ink, waste paint residue, waste
gloves and rags, waste packaging barrels, waste activated carbon
and wastewater from spray paint; and the hazardous waste
generated from our mold business mainly includes oily iron filings,
waste resin, waste filter, waste cutting fluid and waste mineral oil.
For these hazardous waste, we strictly implement the prescribed
procedures for sorting, collection and centralised treatment.

Specifically, following the established waste treatment
procedures, we sort out and collect various types of hazardous
waste, and store them safely in specially designated hazardous
waste storage rooms. The storage rooms not only take stringent
anti-leakage measures, but also have clear warning signs, and are
equipped with air concentration alarms, fire protection equipment
and ventilation systems, so as to ensure safety during waste
storage.

Moreover, we have established long-term cooperative
relationships with professional recycling agencies with legal
qualifications, and regularly hand over such hazardous waste to
such agencies for compliant recycling and treatment. To ensure
the transparency and traceability of waste management, we also
have a hazardous waste ledger for recording and managing in
detail the generation, collection, storage, transfer and treatment
processes of all hazardous waste. Through these measures, we
strive to achieve safe, compliant and efficient management of
hazardous waste.

The Group’s non-hazardous waste mainly includes daily garbage
and food waste generated from canteens and dormitories,
recyclables such as paper, packaging and scrap steel generated
from offices and factories, and general industrial solid waste
such as scraps and defective products generated from factories.
The Group has formulated and implemented a series of stringent
quality control documents, including the Procedures for Control
of Waste ( (EEEWIZEHIF2F) ) and the Administrative Measures
for Procurement ( (FREEEEHIE ) ), and regularly conducts waste
management training.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e RERHRSE (&)

We sort out the types of waste and collect them by category,
and take targeted treatment and disposal measures based on the
characteristics of the waste. For daily garbage and food waste,
we uniformly hand them over to local sanitation departments for
disposal. For recyclables such as paper, packaging materials and
steel, we prioritise to reuse them internally and, when internal
demand cannot be met, sell them to third-party recyclers for
resource utilisation. For general industrial solid waste, we reduce
the generation of non-hazardous waste from the source and
strive to achieve waste and emission reduction by improving our
production processes, increasing our product qualification rates
and strengthening resource recycling. In many innovative projects,
we actively implement environmental protection strategies for
material recycling and reuse, focusing on the conversion and reuse
of high-value waste such as ABS plastics, halogen-free flame
retardants (HFFRs) and post-consumer recycled content (PCR).

Highlights of performance

SEEX

BFIMEEERMELNL D BRE - REBEE
VS A H R DE R Bk - &
REEEERMEHEIR - RIS H
EHIREHPVETRE  HRMAR  BRM
KAt Ear sk - HAEEEBARRD
A TEABBERELIRER  IERFE=
R EETERECNA R BR K
TXERBEY  RMABBMELETE &
SEMABERINRERLDMBEES - LR
BERAOBERVNEL  SHERBEVER
SHEREH - £ZEAIFMAEB T - RAEHRE
THHEKEBRENRERRE  BER
ABSEE L - R PRI LA Ko 08 B 12 0 Y ip kL
(PCRIZ = EEREZEYHNE{LEERA -

e In 2024, the Group recycled approximately 1,273 tonnes of thermoformed box packaging materials from

customers for reuse.

2024%F » AEBRRFERWILFE R RESBM 41,2730 -

e |n 2024, the injection molding factory resold 770.4 tonnes of waste materials (including nozzles, scraps and

rubber heads) to professional recycling companies.

202445 - JEBRIE LB ET70 AMEER (BEKO - Z2AR - BEE)

Waste Reduction Measures

Reducing the use of packaging materials and launching
recycling practices

We are committed to reducing waste by regularly collecting
statistics on the amount of garbage, food waste and production
waste generated, and actively implementing waste reduction
measures at the source. Specifically, we have optimised our
production and operation processes and standardised material
usage requirements to improve raw material utilisation, thereby
effectively reducing the generation of various types of waste.
Moreover, we actively recycle and reuse recyclable packaging
materials such as cardboard, plastic frames, plastic flat cards,
PE bags and thermoformed boxes, as well as paper and steel,
effectively reducing the amount of waste landfill, thereby
developing a virtuous resource cycle system of “production —
consumption — regeneration”.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Zero Waste to Landfill

The Group actively promotes the Zero Waste to Landfill (ZWTL)
certification programme, which is to take a series of measures
to reduce waste generation and optimise the waste treatment
process to ensure that all waste can be disposed of reasonably
and in compliance with regulations, thereby achieving the
goal of “zero” waste to landfill. In 2024, the Group's injection
molding factories achieved remarkable achievements in waste
management and environmental protection practices, and was
awarded the Zero Waste to Landfill certification, demonstrating
the Group’s firm commitment to environmental protection and
resource recycling.

Reduce waste

RIR - e REawsE (&)

BERY)TIHIE

AREEBRETEZYZEIE (Zero Waste
To Landfill - ZWTL)RFEIE B » BliE B EE
—RIERR D BEEYNES - WEILEE
MBRERIE  WRABEEMAESIE
2 ARNEE  MEKEZEY [Z JH1E
FEZ - 20245 - AEEIBREEREEY
ERHERREBSIANSTHEEZENR &
BEEYTHEREFZE TR TAEEYHR
BREMERMEIRT A AR E &GS

BAIRE
Reuse
BEEA
Recycle
R _
e  Generation of power from waste
FEEYEE
e  Anaerobic digestion
BREVE b
e Biofuels
Convert waste to energy E%J@"*ﬂ
EEYIREIRE L e Composting
HERE
Landfill
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g hERWmE(E)

ZWTL performance of the Shenzhen injection molding factory FIEE I E2024FEZWTLIE B &3

in 2024
Classification DETEN(G)) Proportion (%)
2E YE(TR) 1hEE (%)
Recycle
BIRfE R 1,738,264 40.894
Composting
HEAE 172,092 4.049
Reuse (internal)
EEER(REL) 2,175,460 51.179
Convert waste to energy
REPEEIRE b 164,668 3.874
Landfill
HiE 174 0.004
Total waste
BEEMEE 4,250,658 100
WATER RESOURCES MANAGEMENT KERERE
Water Resources Management Targets KEFREEEE
Targets Total intensity of water consumption to decrease by 2% (with 2022 as the base year and 2025 as
BiE the target year).

IA2022F REEF - 2026F RARF - KERHEREEE 2%

Water consumption (tonnes/year) per RMB10,000 of output value < 1.2 in 2024
20244 - BITEBERKBEE(FHE)<1.2

Initiative in 2024 e  Continuously promoted water-saving measures in production and office areas
2024 F1TE TEEE RPN RIS FE 2 EHEITEIKIE I

e Constantly optimised water resources management

TEBEKERER

Water-Saving Measures Bk & it

The Group is committed to the standardised management of water REEBBORKERBRENAEHEIE - I
consumption to promote environmental protection and sustainable BIREREMAFERE - NFE - TP
development. During the Year, our injection molding business also TEINERE T RBAREREN K B AR - W AE A EE EL Y
set clear water-saving targets and fully implemented water-saving REFEHEENR T EIKKE o BEREKE
strategies in production and office areas. To ensure the effective MERE BT - BMIMER T BIHE © I2FH

implementation of water-saving measures, we have strengthened TEOKES - WEMERAKKL - EiRE
employee education to enhance their water-saving awareness, and J:l: Jrzﬂéﬁifi XK E R EEIKER o

regularly monitored water usage to evaluate water-saving results
by comparing the planned and actual water usage.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Due to the abundant water resources and mature water supply
system in the areas where our businesses and factories are
located, the Group has not encountered any challenges in securing
water sources, thereby providing a strong support for our water-
saving work. In the future, we will continue to optimise water
resources management and work relentlessly to achieve a greener
and more sustainable production and office environment.

Target Zero discharge of industrial wastewater.
B RETHREKTHEN

RIR - e REawsE (&)

HREEREMELREENKERMNTE
KRS - AR EENRERT BABE
Tk - ERBMANEKITIEREETEAN
RIE © R2E - RAKEREE(CKERER -
REREMZE A FENEENRQIRER
mAEE 7 -

Initiative in 2024
2024 F1TE

Separately collected and sorted out wastewater to ensure that wastewater discharge meets
environmental protection standards

HEKEITE ISR RS HRE - WREKFRGERRIZE

Comprehensively collected and implemented efficient treatment of industrial wastewater,
which shall meet the standards for industrial washing water upon treatment, thus achieving
zero discharge

HETEFKETEERENESBERE - RIEEFRLEN TERKAKERE  BRTHMN
Strengthened routine inspection and maintenance of wastewater treatment systems, and

engaged third-party testing agencies to conduct regular testing

INSREE K BRI B AT B H I B g - IS

The Group actively practices the concept of environmental
protection and adopts an efficient rainwater and sewage
separation drainage system to separately collect and treat
industrial wastewater, domestic sewage and rainwater. We have
implemented classified treatment strategies based on the different
characteristics of wastewater and strictly monitored wastewater
discharge to ensure that all discharges comply with relevant
environmental protection standards, so as to reduce negative
impacts on the environment and promote the saving and recycling
of water resources.

Our factory wastewater is mainly divided into two categories, i.e.
industrial wastewater and domestic wastewater. For industrial
wastewater, which mainly includes wastewater generated
from ultrasonic cleaning and spray tower, we collect them
comprehensively through a special industrial wastewater pipe
network, and use the "“MBR + reverse osmosis (RO)" process or
integrated spray-painting water circulation facilities for treatment.
The treated wastewater shall meet the standards for industrial
washing water, thus achieving zero discharge of industrial
wastewater.

B = T3 ORI RS T BB

AEEBERTRAES > KASMORS
DMBERERSE - B TREEK - £EFKEE
IKEITEY R EERIE - RIARIEEEKA T
RIS - B0 BEIRRE - WEAREITRE
IKBERR - BRI E I A HERRERE
% AREHIRENAEEZE  UREKE
IREVER A ELEIR A A o

HABREKEED R T RREKMAEEEE
IKMARHE - IR TEEEK  T2REBEN
B RE KN ML BE K - RATEBEPIN
TRRKERETEZERSE - WRATMBR+
2% | T8RRI EARKERREETTER
B o RIPRMRENKED TR IGAKRE
RMER T EREKNTHR -

RIER® (%) BRAR] 2024 FH

89



90

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e RERHRSE (&)

For domestic wastewater, which mainly comes from our office
and living areas, we discharge them into the municipal pipe
network and hand them over to urban sewage treatment plants
for systematic treatment. To ensure the stable operation of
wastewater treatment systems and the compliance of wastewater
discharge quality, we have taken a number of measures to
continuously facilitate the efficient use of water resources and
the sustainable development of environmental protection. Among
which, our equipment department conducts daily inspections
of wastewater collection and treatment facilities, and regularly
inspects and maintains wastewater pipes and treatment devices,
so as to ensure that there are no leaks in the wastewater pipes
and that the treatment devices operate normally. Meanwhile,
our EHS department strictly monitors the quality of wastewater,
and has engaged third-party testing agencies to test and analyse
the compliance of recycled water every quarter, and promptly
optimised and adjusted the wastewater treatment systems based
on the test results

ENERGY MANAGEMENT

HREEREK  EEZREWRAREFTELE -
ﬁﬁ%—ﬁﬁmkﬁﬁﬁh 2T 5 7K
RIEMETRARIE - REREKERERS
H A E iﬁﬂ@*mEMLﬁﬁw AR
BT ZIBHE N - ARENE 8K E TR & =
RAMRERENFELR - HP - ZELE
B BRI SRR R EETER - THY
F$aﬁ~ﬁﬁ%§?Lﬂ$€ﬁ%$'%
REKEBEMRNEERENIERET -
EIFF - EHSEPIBISEE B REARKE - BBFESE
=HRAMEEEEEERAKETEZRER
OAIFI AT - WAR IR AROR 45 R R B B(L A
FEIKBRIE K& o

Targets With the goal of gradually increasing the proportion of renewable energy consumption within the
BEZ Group, to continuously optimise the energy structure by purchasing green electricity
NESRAREEBELREESGLLAEE  ERABEZEE N  HEEBLERER -
Rate of power consumption per output value (power consumption/output value x 100%) < 3.7%
in 2024.
20245 - EEREXR(FEEHEME X 100%)<3.7%
Initiative in 2024 e Adjusted the use of 4 high-energy-consuming air compressors, using them only as ancillary
2024F1TH standby machines, and reduced the number of air compressors in operation according to

the actual production situation, giving priority to shutting down high-energy-consuming air
compressors to increase the load rate of each air compressor in operation

HMa St
BaHERHSE

EEETTEARE  ESEFEAEDER  YRBEEREERKBIURDE
BABFESEANTZER  URNTEEEAEEHRMNAHE

e Added one air compressor with grade 2 energy efficiency to achieve further energy saving

g —a R

ERA R A B IR E — S ERRE

. Updated the old fan coil units of our business units (BUs) and, for HP1/HP4/SD1 and other
workshops, collected and used 29 new air conditioners removed from the original HP2
workshop to replace the old equipment and improve equipment efficiency

HBUMFIMERBEMWEITEN - HP1/HP4/SD1 L HERH G RHP2E TR M2 = HEH

FRABRALHE  ABERERE

C ERREREERTT

e Updated and optimised the compressor systems so that they can dynamically adjust the
load of air compressors according to the actual gas consumption, thus effectively achieving

energy saving

FHELCEBEEAR HHEHRBERNAREPRARE

BRI IR AR - WA R EIRERRE

e  Shared the same water tower among multiple business units (BUs)

ZAXHEPI(BU) R AR — KA

e  Enabled frequency-controlled function for the water pumps and cooling fans of water towers,
which can automatically adjust the operating frequency according to the change of water

temperature

IRIEECH 7R S AR RV R 35 51 R S SR )
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group is committed to reducing the power consumption
of its production equipment. We have established an energy
management system and formulated a series of energy-saving
management systems and operating procedures to ensure that
various energy-saving measures are effectively implemented.
During the Year, our mold and injection molding businesses set
clear power consumption targets respectively for their factories,
comprehensively reviewed and evaluated production equipment,
identified high-energy consumption equipment and took
corresponding optimisation measures. We also focus on improving
employees’ awareness and engagement in energy saving, and
regularly carry out publicity and training activities on energy saving
to increase employees’ understanding on the importance and
engagement of energy saving.

The Group has steadily moved towards a more energy-saving
and environmentally-friendly production model through efforts
in building the energy management system, formulating and
implementing the energy-saving management rules, optimising
production equipment and enhancing employees’ energy-saving
awareness. We have established and continuously enhanced the
energy management system, and formulated and implemented
a number of energy-saving management rules and operating
procedures, so as to ensure that various energy-saving measures
can be effectively implemented.

During the Year, our mold and injection molding departments set
clear power consumption targets, divided them into quarterly and
monthly targets, and implemented specific targeted measures
to achieve the energy-saving goals, among which, the Group’s
machine maintenance department updated and optimised the
compressor system, adopted the grid-connected operation
mode, and combined fixed frequency and variable frequency
technologies, so that it can dynamically adjust the load of air
compressors according to the actual gas consumption, thus
effectively achieving energy saving. To optimise resource
utilisation and avoid duplicated construction, multiple business
units (BUs) share the same water tower, which is equipped
with water pumps and cooling fans that use variable frequency
control, enabling the automatic adjustment of operating frequency
according to the change of water temperature, thereby further
promoting emission reduction. Moreover, our injection molding
department adjusted the use of air compressors and upgraded
their energy efficiency, and updated the old fan coil units,
thereby effectively improving energy efficiency and equipment
performance.

RIR - e REawsE (&)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e RERHRSE (&)

In addition, we are fully aware of the importance of our employees
in energy-saving work. Therefore, we attach great importance
to improving employees’ energy-saving awareness. By regularly
holding publicity and training activities on energy saving, we
continuously deepen employees’ understanding on the importance
of energy saving and stimulate their enthusiasm to actively
participate in energy-saving actions.

The Group is committed to energy saving and emission reduction
and has effectively reduced power consumption by implementing
a number of measures. We have continuously promoted energy-
saving programmes for public facilities and equipment, and
launched an automatic control system for air compressors,
which enables automatic shutdown and start-up during holidays
to save electricity. Meanwhile, the Group sets a reasonable
air-conditioning temperature of 27.5~28°C, controlling energy
consumption while ensuring production conditions. Moreover,
we strengthen equipment maintenance and regularly clean heat
exchangers and air conditioning filters, so as to ensure efficient
operation of equipment. We have also posted power-saving signs
on electrical switches to enhance employees’ awareness of power
saving and jointly promote the improvement of power efficiency.

Energy-saving transformation of cooling process

During the Year, the Group added an air-blowing cooling mold core
for mold operation and, based on product structure analysis, chose
to use a cold runner with subgate instead of a hot nozzle with
needle for plastic injection, which has greatly increased production
capacity and yield, far exceeding customers’ expectations and
achieving a significant reduction in energy consumption.

Exchange meetings on energy saving and emission reduction

As a representative of the Group, TK Group participated in
the quarterly communication meetings regularly held by our
international customers, focusing on the collection of Scope
3 data and the exchange and sharing of emission-reduction
measures. The Group shared its innovative practices in emission-
reduction measures, such as promoting green procurement
policies and cooperating with suppliers to carry out energy-saving
and emission-reduction programmes, which has deepened our
mutual understanding and cooperation in the field of environmental
protection and laid a solid foundation for jointly promoting the
sustainable development of the industry.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

TACKLING CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate change concerns the well-being and future of all
mankind, and actively tackling climate change has become a
global consensus. However, the current global climate action
plan is still not fast and extensive enough to effectively address
the challenges of climate change, and related risks are further
exacerbating. The Group fully recognises the urgency and
importance of taking climate action. We have systematically
organised and compiled statistics on carbon emissions related to
our operations, and fully integrated climate change issues into the
Group's governance system based on the framework of the Task
Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD). Taking into
account the development trends of policies, industries, markets
and technologies, the Group has actively identified and analysed
climate change risks and opportunities, continuously strengthened
climate risk management, and accelerated the transition to a green
operating model, so as to facilitate the achievement of sustainable
development goals.

Response to Issues - SDGs addressed in this chapter
RELE - N EE EHNSDGsEE

13l 13

The Group fully recognises the importance of addressing climate
change and is actively building a systematic climate governance
structure. The Board of the Group is fully responsible for the
overall planning and management of climate response work, and
formulating and reviewing climate-related strategies (including
management policies, indicators and targets) to ensure that
they are coordinated with the Group's sustainable development
strategy as a whole. On this basis, the ESG Working Group,
in accordance with the strategic deployment of the Board,
supervises and guides the specific implementation of climate risk
management work, ensures the effective implementation of all
climate response measures, and regularly reports to the Board on
the performance, including the implementation and progress of
climate-related strategies.

RIR - e REawsE (&)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e RERHRSE (&)

Each business unit and functional department of the Group is
responsible for the specific implementation, review, evaluation
and optimisation of climate response measures, and strives to
promote energy saving and emission reduction throughout the
entire chain to ensure the smooth realisation of the set climate
goals. Meanwhile, the Group is gradually incorporating climate
management performance into the business assessment system
and matching it with corresponding incentive mechanisms, with an
aim to enhance the awareness and enthusiasm of all employees
in addressing climate change. In this way, the Group is able to
continuously optimise its climate response strategy and accelerate
its low-carbon transition, which will help the Group effectively
avoid climate risks, seize opportunities in emerging markets,
enhance business resilience and ensure that the Group maintains
its competitive strengths in the future.

In order to more effectively identify and assess the impact of
climate-related risks and opportunities on the Company, the
Group, in accordance with the recommendations of the TCFD
framework and in combination with extensive industry research,
has adopted two Shared Socioeconomic Pathways (SSPs) in the
Sixth Assessment Report (AR6) of the Intergovernmental Panel on
Climate Change (IPCC), namely SSP1-2.6 (low emissions scenario)
and SSP5-8.5 (very high emissions scenario), to analyse the
Group's risks and opportunities under different climate scenarios.

For physical risks, we pay special attention to the impact of
acute and chronic physical risks on the Company’s operations
under the very high emissions scenario (SSP5-8.5), including the
potential threats of extreme weather events and rising sea levels
to infrastructure and supply chain stability. For transition risks,
the Company mainly considers the impact of various external
policy changes, technological advancements, market dynamics
and reputation changes on the Company’'s business model and
competitiveness under the low emissions scenario (SSP1-2.6).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
R g kERHE(E)

RIHRANREERNAT

The climate scenarios adopted by TK are as follows:

Source of scenario

BRRIR

Scenario
selected

Type of scenario
BERER

Description on application of scenario

ERIER

Very high emissions

Low emissions

BARS

The Sixth Assessment
Report (AR6) of the
Intergovernmental Panel on
Climate Change (IPCC)
BRERES#EEMEZES
(IPCC)ZE 7R IR ¥ 5 (AR6)

SSPb-8.5

The Sixth Assessment
Report (ARB) of the
Intergovernmental Panel on
Climate Change (IPCC)

SSP1-2.6

(IPCC %/\/AEZHE?&% ARG)

This scenario assumes that greenhouse gas
emissions will remain at high levels until
2100 due to the continuous exploitation of
fossil fuels as the main energy source to drive
global economic growth, which may intensify
the occurrence of extreme weather events;
ZIERBRRERAFERTAREHEREEEE
/F?'LMEEJUEIT%&/EWE i‘E;ﬁr 'J2100¢ZHIJE’J
BERBYREER=KT EENE
RAEMHEAE

In this scenario, governments and markets
fail to take effective climate response
interventions, resulting in a significant
increase in greenhouse gas emissions and
accordingly an increase in the physical risks
faced by companies.

EZBERT - BUTATI5KREERENE A R i
EE TS - SRRERBHRE ARG
m- CEEROVERBRbER 2 B -

This scenario assumes a rapid transition
from a fossil fuel-dependent economy to one
driven by renewable energy, and that many
countries begin to implement strong climate
mitigation measures to limit the extent of
global warming this century;

ZIER R 2R KB A RSB R REE S
AIEARESNAE - BZBRKERERE
NERIERAE R - ARG AR 2 IR IE
=30

In this scenario, in order to achieve a lower-
carbon economic environment, policies

and regulations will become increasingly
stringent, and companies will face higher
transition risks.

FEZIERT - ARHIREREERREERSE -
BEEEREEBE  CETAERSNELE

RTSHRE () BRI 202453



96

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e RERHRSE (&)

The Group has comprehensively identified and assessed short-,
medium- and long-term climate risks and opportunities, and closely
aligned risk management with the Group’s short-, medium- and
long-term strategic goals and action plans. We have defined time
frames for climate-related risks and opportunities: short-term (1~2
years), medium-term (3~5 years) and long-term (5~10 years).
Through these time frames, we are able to systematically assess
the impact and changing trends of risks and opportunities under
different climate scenarios over different time periods.

Specifically, the short-term assessment focuses on current and
upcoming climate challenges and opportunities to ensure that the
Company can respond quickly in the short-term. The medium-term
assessment looks at policy, market and technological changes in
the next few years to provide a basis for the Company's strategic
adjustments. The long-term assessment aims to predict and
prepare for major climate impacts in the next decade to develop
more forward-looking and resilient risk management strategies.
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RNEBHEE - P EF R RIRR R &%
BEIT T 2EHAR T - AR R EEE
AEBE P REWEKBIEMITERE
BREE  cBMEETRIEEHRKEKS
HEFRIMEZR - BHEI(1~24) « R HEI(3~5%F)
MERAA(5~10%) - FibE —RHEER - M
ARG T EETRKEERA - TRRIE
BERTRBEKBNTERBBE -

ARTE  EEFEBERENOBES
MRRBREE - RRAAEEHRES
G ;P AT BB B R KA E RN
B - MBS - AR ANBEAR
LRI REDAP S B E RN i R
KTERNEATRYE - 5IEE AN
RBHRERE BER -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g kERmE(E)

IDENTIFYING CLIMATE RISKS AND SR 15 [\ e 12 #5858 7
OPPORTUNITIES
Climate Risks: KIRE M :

Type of risks Climate risks Description of risks Time Financial Response policies

BRER FRER il dimension  impact S 54t
BEEE BHY

Physical risks

NERR
Acute risk Extreme o Physical damage to Short-term Medium . Prioritise climate-adaptive infrastructure during the project
ZhER weather (e.g. real assets due to pibii] i construction period, e.g. wind-proof design, flood-proof
typhoons, extreme weather. design and other measures.
floods) BhARABEMEES EEEERNETEREBREAREMERE - TR
BRAR(NR RAEER BRR - Pkt SR
& » k) o Increasing risk o Strengthen early warning and monitoring of extreme
of transportation weather, formulate response plans, and organise regular
obstructions, facilities natural disaster response drills and training.
damage and supply EaiRin ARNRELE  HTREAR  EHERER
chain disruptions. KERLBRAE
EHTE AR o Conduct self-examination before disaster strikes to ensure
RS TR R the safety of facilities and equipment, prepare emergency
o Adverse impact on supplies in advance, and organise and coordinate through
employees' health, the safety and environmental department to ensure
safety and attendance. smooth communication and collaboration among various
HETRRE 22N departments.
PERTFIFE SERGRFRRAS - BRABARENRSMN - RATEE
ESNE - RRBFHARGE  BREPHZFEGERR
e
¢ Adjust employment policies in a timely manner according
to weather conditions, €.g. announcing temporary
shutdowns or working from home to ensure the safety of
employees.
&ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬂ%ﬁlﬂ%'w%ﬁﬁgﬁlﬁﬁiﬁ
REEIERRZ
Chronic risk Rising sea o Rising sea levels Long-term Low ¢ Continuously monitor the dynamic changes of rising sea
1gfER levels cause operating 3 i3 levels.
BYEfR entities in coastal BEENBTE LARBEE
areas to move inland, o Take into account the possible impact of rising sea levels
resulting in damage when selecting operating locations.
to or early scrapping EERELHER AL TE LATEERNYE

of fixed assets, which
in turn increases
production costs.
BEE EABEL ST
BHEEEBARED
BEY BHETEE
REARABE  ED
B EERAEM
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

Type of risks Climate risks

ARER FiRER

Transition risks

EXER

Policy and legal Stricter policies

BRRER and regulations
BREEBR

Technology Transition to

i low-carbon
emission
technologies
EREE RS
il

Description of risks

el

The government has
introduced power
rationing policies,
forcing our production
department to reduce
or suspend production
and our high-energy-
consuming equipment
to be replaced. Power
rationing will also
affect the upstream
supply chain, resulting
in unstable supply
of raw materials and
increased production
costs.
BREARERE &
ERFRARERE -
nﬁ BIER - R
hEYE FHRE
% BHEMHHEER
BIE » B EEKARE
m
The government has
introduced energy-
transition and
emission-reduction
policies to strictly
limit carbon emission
quotas, thus gradually
increasing carbon
emission pricing and
raising compliance
costs.
B & R EE
HRE  BHNEER
HERBE - BT
Fﬁ%hn EnaR

Rising operating

costs due to early
retirement of high-
energy-consuming
equipment
RAAABRERES
BEERA L
Increased R&D
spending on low-
carbon technologies
and clean energy.
ERRATEBZ R
FEX g
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Time Financial
dimension  impact

KEEE nHve

Medium- High .
term =
ik
.
.
Medium High .
term =
ik

Response policies

JeH 7 dt

Strengthen communication with the government and
regulatory authorities to ensure timely understanding of
policy changes, and proactively adjust relevant work to
adapt to the changing regulatory environment.
MARFAANEEBFIER - BRRE T RRKE - UE
HATIEELE  NEETHE L NEERE

Implement internal production peak shaving, promote
energy-saving technological transformation, and establish
an energy management system to reasonably control
energy consumption
N EERE - #7E5
1l gt

Optimise the inventory and management of the Group's
carbon assets and strengthen carbon emission supervision
and compliance inspections.

BLEERAEREREE  MARHFHEERARRE

R BURMREERGAREE

Increase R&D efforts in the field of clean technology

and reduce costs through innovation in clean production
technology.
MAEBRRMBHNHENE - BREREERMAE
ERA

Continuously explore and apply green and low-carbon
materials to improve performance and reduce costs.
THRZRERGZEERITH - REMEEERA

Lay out clean energy and gradually increase the proportion
of green electricity usage. In 2024, the green electricity
purchased by our Shenzhen factory reached 400 MWh.
hRE28E  BrREGEENERL - 20245 FYIH
BEINEETREL00K NS



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
R g kERHE(E)

Financial
impact

Type of risks Climate risks Description of risks Time

BT dimension

Response policies

JeH 7 dt

ARER FiRER

KEEE nHve

Market Shift of Customers' attention Long-term Hig . In the process of responding to customers’ needs,
ik} customer and expectations =3 = optimise and upgrade production processes and
preferences for green and low- techniques, improve production capacity to boost revenue,
towards low- carbon products and gradually develop energy-saving and consumption-
carbon products continue to grow. If reduction potentials to reduce energy costs.
PR RER we fail to promptly and ERZEEROERT BIAREEREEIZ kR4
EREY effectively respond to ERNRERAEN - AEESREBRBREN  BRE
customers' increasing R
demand for green and . Respond to customers’ climate action concepts, create
low-carbon products green products and services and stimulate customer
and realise industrial demand, thus boosting operating revenue.
transformation, we EEEFRENTHES TERCERNRE  FBZFE
will be subject to KA - EMREE AL
the risk of declining o Actively carry out responsible marketing of green products
market share. and establish a green and low-carbon image.
ERAREERERN BRARGEERAEETY  HUKEERTE
BAENSHE AL
R BRSEREEHE
HEFHEEERER
EROENTERES
81 REETHEA
ETROER
Reputation Society Stakeholders have Long-term High o Formulate a strategic plan for energy saving and emission
BE focuses on the higher expectations =3 B reduction covering the entire business chain, set clear
Company's for the Company to energy saving and emission reduction targets, and
actions to reduce emissions. If establish a regular disclosure mechanism to demonstrate
address climate the Company fails to the Company's firm commitment to low-carbon
change and plan for low-carbon development.
sustainable transition in advance, HEREZXBRBOSRA SRS RUARNDHY
development we may be subject to RHERE  BUTHREAL  YEANHERERNBE
HEBENAE the risk of reputational e
HRRBL R damage. »  Benchmark against ESG ratings and improve ESG risk
BEEENTY NMEERRHARET management.
xR FRNAHRE  BR #2ESGRT R - RAESCRRER

ARERAREIERE
B IReRkRER
ReER

Pay attention to domestic and international ESG
development trends, and grasp ESG hot spots in the
capital market.

BIENESCERBY  ILEEATBESCHA

Carry out ESG personnel training and strengthen ESG
management within the Group.

FRESGA RS+ Mt S EREESGER

Strengthen exchanges with partners, participate in ESG
seminars, and learn about the latest trends in the industry.

MEBHRZR - 2RESCHIE - TRITERNIR

RTRE () BARAR2024F®H 99



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g hERWmE(E)

Climate Opportunities:

Climate opportunities Financial

RiRRE

Description of opportunities Time

HEs

Response policies

FEH st

Products and services

EmiR

Policy support
BRI

Resource efficiency

&EE

Source of energy

RRIER

Climate resilience

FIREME

Stronger customer preference for
green products and services.

EPHREERRRBNH R THES

The introduction of relevant green
policies such as carbon neutrality and
clean energy has a positive guiding
role in the market for green products
and services, providing favourable
opportunities for the Company to
develop new markets and businesses.
BRA - ERE RS AR IR
A BRGeERERETZAERER
SIBER - RARRENTAMARR
=T HRIRE

Resource recycling and energy-saving
technologies can improve resource and
energy efficiency.

ERE - BaRiiE A AR ER
SR RERNE

Using clean energy can reduce carbon

emissions from energy use and lower

business compliance costs.

iﬁﬁ/ﬁgﬁb/ R R PN
%%éﬁ&$

By developing innovative and diverse
clean energy, resources, technologies,
products and services, the Company
can reduce future risks, improve its
capability to address climate change,
maintain its competitiveness, enhance
its climate resilience and create more
business opportunities.
RBHEAR SR NFRER &
BB Ew o RS SARRRE
RRMES - RAEHRGEE R
N REREN  BEE SRR
BIEE 25 HHE
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dimension  impact
REEE 18237
Long-term High
3] &
Medium- High
term =
ke

Medium- High
term =
ik

Medium- High
term =
ik

Medium High
term =
ik

Follow market trends, improve the capability to provide low-carbon
products and services, and manage product carbon footprints, so as
to bring more environmentally-friendly and sustainable choices to
consumers, and improve product competitiveness.
JBETAES - RARGERERNREMEN  ERERRRS - A
REETRESER THENER REERHRTN

With the help of policy support, promote the production of green
products in the future, optimise carbon emission performance,
explore emerging market opportunities such as carbon trading,

and create new economic growth points while addressing climate
change.

BRRRSE HIARGEERNEE BUBREREN RERR
FEMATHEE - LRI NRNAENNEELRS

Vigorously develop energy-saving technology, resource recycling

technology and other optimisation programmes, and reduce energy

and resource consumption to save production costs.

ANERERH - BRERRNSEIER  BELRE
B EERA

REZRER

Gradually increase the proportion of green electricity used. In 2024,
the green electricity purchased by our Shenzhen factory reached 400
MWh.
BIREHEENFALI - 2024F RYIBEMINEZS B EE400K
Jigis:

Promote product reduction design, innovatively apply
environmentally-friendly renewable raw materials, enhance the
climate development resilience of the Group's business, and facilitate
low-carbon business transition and the growth of operating revenue.
REERRE( R  AMERRRIBERY KREEEBHRE
BRI - ERBERENREZRANER



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT
Climate Risk Management Process

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management
system based on the enterprise risk management framework
and plans to gradually incorporate climate change risks into the
overall risk management system. Currently, the Group follows the
established risk management process and regularly identify and
assess climate-related risks to ensure that potential risks related
to climate change can be accurately identified and effectively
managed. Meanwhile, the Group will formulate targeted response
strategies based on the assessment results to prepare for potential

RIE - g MEawE(E)
RREE
RIFAREERRE

AEBKBEERRERER  BYTE2H
MERERER  XrrElZEFHRIERELR
DMAEBREREERR - B AEEK
BREEEMRBREERE - EHETRRM
%3 b 0 38 Bl B AT A THE - LATEIRAE S0 IE T
R R A e R R R AR R R0 B R
B o Rl - AEEBRIEFEER - FIEE
TR B RES - BRI AT RE IR A BB
RS RECENRRELETFERE -

challenges in the future and ensure the stable operation and
sustainable development of the enterprise.

e \We benchmark against the types of climate risks and opportunities in the TCFD
framework, and combine the results with the Company’s own operating
conditions and business characteristics for sorting and analysis
HIZTCFDIERRIKAR BB IRE - HE A A8 HFELBNEER T - g
DT

e \We screen risk points based on macro policies, industry policies, regulatory
requirements, domestic and international industry developments and techno-
logical changes
BIERBER  1TEBOR - BEEK - BRIMTEERIERAREMEIE
S ERE bR B

e By investigating climate change trends, domestic and international industry
developments and technological changes, we benchmark against our peers,
collect opinions from our stakeholders and, combining the Group’s own operat-
ing conditions and business characteristics, compile a list of climate change
risks to identify the physical and transition risks that affect each of the Group's
business segments
FRARRREEBY - BRIMTERR  BRIME(CEER - ETREHE
WENZHERNER - BEAEEE HEEBEREERFE - EUREE L
[EBE B - R RIR 2 AN R R A AR R A W 3 BB B [ R

e Using a combination of qualitative and quantitative approaches, based on risk
assessment results and stakeholders’ expectations of the Company'’s response
to climate change, we classify the identified risks, and determine the key
concerns and prioritised risks, so as to provide references for the formulation
and adjustment of the Company’s development strategy

EREHREERGANTE  ERARNEER - REMNSABITERFR

Risk prioritisation

(05471952

R - AR RER G EAERE2EER

e \We consider risk causes and tolerance, weigh factors such as risk and benefits,
brand reputation and social responsibility, and formulate plans and measures
based on the results of risk analysis to strengthen our response
meRREERAMARE  REHRRERS  nEEE HgEEERE -
RIERER AT AR - HIE SR - INogfEE

Risk response

[\ e e

RTSHRE () BRI 202453 101



102

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE - g MERT

()

INDICATORS AND TARGETS EBERBEE
Greenhouse gas emission target BERBHEREE
Based on a detailed assessment of our own greenhouse gas HERNE B 5 REREENEmNFMEE - &

emissions and in line with the energy saving and emission é’f%@&xﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁt TENEE - NEELA2022
reduction action plan for the entire chain, the Group has set a F AR ESF ﬁTEﬁﬁga’j;ﬁﬁﬁaﬁT‘; o KRB

clear carbon reduction target with 2022 as the base year. All of BEEF B E A E - HEAM NN BB S MG
our functional departments worked closely together to achieve the TR & ,jﬁﬁfimgﬁ BiZ o

target through efficient energy and resource management.

Target The Group aims to reduce its greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) per million HKD

BiE revenue by 7% from the base year (with 2022 as the base year and 2030 as the target year).
LA2022F REESF - DL2030F REEF - ARER IR EEAE 2 W EEREBHNE (GE—M
HEZ)BELEFREIET% °

Initiative in 2024 °
2024F1THE

Greenhouse gas statistics

Calculated Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions, and set quantitative
energy-saving targets for each business site
MEZESHE - #E-_HGEZAETREHNBER  SEERERTETEENHEEFT
Promoted production processes for energy saving and emission reduction and used efficient
energy saving facilities

EERERMPEEE TE - X A e N RE R
Purchased green electricity, for example, the amount of green electricity purchased by our
Shenzhen factory reached 400 MWh in 2024
BEZOESN  RYIBRE2024F B B EIZ400K L

BERBREBGRTER

The Group has comprehensively calculated the Scope 1 (direct AEBEEEZETEHELEPHE—(EE
emissions), Scope 2 (energy indirect emissions) and Scope 3 Bepk) - SE = (e REZEHR) A REBE=
(value chain indirect emissions) greenhouse gas emissions from its (EEEEZEFORRE BN -

operations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
R g kERHE(E)

The specific types of greenhouse gas emissions, the ERrEEREEMER « HEREREENR
corresponding sources and the amount of emissions are detailed in EFRTER:

the table below:

Greenhouse gas emissions

BERBIER

Scope 1 - Direct greenhouse gas emissions

HE- - ERAERBEN

Fossil fuel combustion — stationary sources tCO, eqv
feaREE — BER N (AT 0.3 0.4 0.4
Fossil fuel combustion — mobile sources tCO, eqv
e RREREE — BEIR RS EE 118.6 101.5 44.2
Equipment and system operation tCO eqv
R R AEETEN H¢E ftixEE 246.7 296.0 105.9
Greenhouse gas reduction — trees tCO, eqv
RERBRR — B ABE A biRE S (12.7) (10.4) (9.9)
Total Scope 1 emissions tCO eqv
HE—HFRES N (AT 352.9 387.5 140.6

Scope 2 - Energy indirect greenhouse gas emissions

HE—- - RREEAEREHER

Purchased electricity tCO, eqv
HNBE S R SR EE 47,521.2 39,356.4 41,112.9
Total Scope 2 emissions tCO eqv
HE_HEREE ﬂ@ StikEE 47,521.2 39,356.4 41,112.9
Scope 3 - Value chain indirect greenhouse gas emissions?
HE= - EEEDEAERBHR
Purchased goods and services tCO eqv
SN 8 e AN AR 7 N (AT 144,598.9 / /
Capital goods tCO, eqv
BN A S LIREE 1,782.1 / /
Fuel and energy-related activities tCO eqv
AL AN IR AR RS &) N A A 15,173.0 / /
Waste from operations tCO, eqv
BEEENEEY ABE =S biRE S 19.3 / /
Business travel tCO eqv
R IRTT N A4 216.1 133.7 94.8
Commuting of employees tCO eqv
BT@Y N (AT 392.7 309.0 /
Total Scope 3 emissions tCO, eqv
HE=HEs A A LiRE S 162,182.1 442.7 94.8
1 The Group has continuously improved the statistical analysis of data for each g AEERBERSAEREHE =S HEABEREEN
type of Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions, and updated the calculation method GEt HETIBIMAEREBHEREETE AR
of greenhouse gas emission data and the selection of carbon emission factor for TREEPE FREREGETT T B3 - ME2023FETEY
commuting of employees. As such, retrospective statistical analysis has been KR = RS BER BRI 1T BUAET o
performed for the greenhouse gas emission data for commuting of employees in
2023.
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R - wg MEAHE(E)

Greenhouse gas emissions

BERBIER

Total emissions

#BHE R

Total greenhouse gas emissions tCO, eqv

(Scope 1 and Scope 2) A —E g =
RERBABENE

(gE—EgEmE—)

Total greenhouse gas emissions tCO, eqv

(Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3) A =S iRE =
RERE A E

(BE—  HE=-KEE=)

Greenhouse gas emission intensity tCO, eqv/million HKD
(Scope 1 and Scope 2) revenue

BERE B ARE AW =& i E
(FE—EHE—) B HEBEEK

DEVELOPING A SOLID DEFENCE LINE
Chapter Overview

The Group always puts the life safety and health of its employees
first, continuously optimises the health and safety management
system, and is committed to creating an inherently safe
production environment. By strengthening safety capabilities and
implementing production safety responsibilities, we ensure that
our employees are able to work with peace of mind in a safe and
reliable environment, thereby laying a solid foundation for the
sustainable development of the enterprise.

Response to Issues — SDGs addressed in this chapter

BREOE-AEOENSDGsEE

G0OD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2024

47,874.1 39,743.9 41,253.5
210,056.2 40,186.6 41,3483
203 20.4 18.1
EFREHR
FEIEAL

AEBREEEIAD LR HERENE
7 FHEECREZ2EERR  BAORT
ERELRENEERE - BRBLELER
h - REZREEEMR BRABREIER
EAENREPLLOIE REENTHE
BREFER -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

PRODUCTION SAFETY MANAGEMENT
Production Safety Management System

The Group has continuously optimised its production safety
governance system, clearly defined the principal responsibilities
for production safety, and strengthened the safety management
mechanism. The Group strictly complies with the guidance of
laws, regulations and industry standards, and has formulated and
implemented a series of management rules such as the Safety
Policy ({ % & 77 §F ) ) and the Production Safety Responsibility
System ((Z 2 £ EEE #IE )), so as to effectively regulate
employees’ work safety and establish explicit production safety
standards. At the Board level, the Group has established the
Environmental, Health and Safety (EHS) Committee, which is
chaired by the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and consists of key
positions such as the vice chairman, the head of EHS supervision
and management, and standing committee members. The
committee is responsible for formulating relevant policies and
standards, supervising their implementation, and comprehensively
leading and promoting the safety management work of the Group.
Moreover, the committee holds regular meetings to review major
EHS issues and ensure the continuous and efficient advancement
of safety management work. During the Year, the Group's
EHS Committee held four meetings to discuss topics such as
occupational health and safety supervision.

Occupational health and management systems certification

During the reporting period, the Group has obtained the following
occupational health and safety management systems certification:

Occupational health and safety management system certification

BEREZ2EEBAIE

RE - g MERHRE (E)
RREEEE

ZEEEEEER
AEENHBELTEEERERER - AR
ERTEEIREME  UREL2EEH
B o ARBBRERBEBERETRRED
REEN - BIEAEMC(LETEH) R(LE
HEEERE)SE—RINEEGE - VERE
BTMZEERTR  UHEVHARNTEE
ERE -HEFQEL  ARERYERR -
- Z2(EHS)ZB & ATTHRAHKA
BEEZBR > TREZBER EHSEEEHR
BEAREBZEEHRERL - 2Z8g
AHIEHARRERE  EEHEMmMY
PHSIELREAKENZEZERTE - It
Sy R EEMAREE - FHEEKEHSH
B ERTEEETENFERBIEE - &
FE  AEEEHSZEgHARIREH 8
BEEL Z2EBEEEEET TR -

BERFREERAIE

TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited

FIRACRINAR AR

TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) Limited

RIREEE2(RYIDBR AR

ISO 45001 occupational health and safety
management systems certification
ISO 45001 B E R L 2 B IR 8 2758

TK Precision Plastics (Huizhou) Limited

RTHERDEZEMBR AR

TK Techco Silicone Rubber (Huizhou) Limited
RIE=ZRBEMNAERAR

TK Plastics (Suzhou) Limited
FIBRBRG(EM)BRAA

RIER® (%) BRAR] 2024 FH
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g RERHE(E)

The Group has continuously set specific production safety targets AEBREEBSRMERTE  FERT
based on its business characteristics and risk assessments and ERNZT2EEBRE  THReBEL2H
constantly improved the standards of its occupational safety {L%Eﬂi EEMIZZE o U TN RAEZE R
and health management systems. The following is an overview EHLZEEEMEIRIEHERE -

of the safety targets and management measures we set and

implemented for the year:

Production safety targets Management measures

RELAERR EEERE

Reducing the occurrence of work-related injuries e Conduct routine and quarterly EHS inspections, immediately
IR TS SR rectify the issues identified, and achieve a 100% improvement and
response rate to the issues
EHSHERZEERES  BRMERNER  MENRE - BEX100%

e The business department conducts a comprehensive EHS self-
inspection and self-rectification on the production site every two
weeks
EXNEMEREER S ETREHSEEBE B84

e Maintain all equipment and facilities according to the maintenance
programmes

i - RIEZERFTE100% 81T

Eliminating fire incidents e Conduct special inspections on electrical safety every six months
EEGT A BHFRRERTEHIERER

e Conduct annual safety inspections on electric equipment (including
power lines, electric devices and electric heating devices)
BENEERE)FETE2BRAUEENRYE - BEm&E - SMARE)

e Conduct regular inspections and regular maintenance on special
equipment

FrERR 0 E i e i EinE

Ensuring the “six zeroes" in production safety? e Monitor the health of employees in positions with occupational
WREEEE [NET ]2 hazards (induction, on-the-job and off-the-job physical examinations
for occupational diseases)
BEEEMAMEREE(BER LM £ BEiER)
e  Fully implement the three levels of safety education
=RBRE2HEHITI00%
e The emergency team participates in EHS inspections, training and
drills
BB MH2HEHSKRE - FHEER
e Distribute personal protective equipment to all employees and
ensure that all employees wear their protective equipment correctly
8 T fic 3% Ko IF e fml 20 (E A 7 2 F d2 100 %
e Achieve a 100% coverage rate of EHS training for all employees
2 BEHSIEFIEEE100%
e Maintain all equipment and facilities according to the maintenance
programmes

i RIERAERFTE100% 1T

2 That is, no work-related fatal incidents, no serious injury incidents (disability 2 ETCER BEEEFHRERIALEEZ8RK) -
of level 8 or above (including level 8)), no general and serious equipment E-MULRESH  BAXKER ERERE
incidents, no fire incidents, no occupational diseases, and no general and serious £ ERIA LIRS RER -

environmental pollution incidents.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group has established and strengthened its safety
management system in all aspects, and is committed to improving
the standards and effectiveness of safety precautions, and
continuously enhancing the enterprise’s safety protection and risk
resistance capabilities.

During the Year, the Group continued to sort out risk points in
various departments for existing businesses and processes, and
efficiently identified potential risks. Meanwhile, based on special
assessments of key areas, we added new risk control nodes and
key points to comprehensively optimise the risk prevention and
control network system.

The Group has established and implemented a long-term
mechanism for the investigation and management of potential
production safety accidents, and has clarified and strengthened
the principal responsibilities for production safety. We have
established a routine inspection system, in which the EHS
management department carries out 24-hour on-duty inspections
and regular special safety inspections to ensure that all types of
safety hazards are comprehensively and carefully investigated and
dealt with, thereby effectively preventing such hazards before they
occur. Moreover, the Group has formulated detailed work plans
for time slots, including daily inspections, quarterly inspections
and pre-holiday inspections, and carried out special inspections
on key equipment and facilities such as electrical equipment and
spreader. Once a safety hazard is identified, a rectification notice
will be issued immediately, and the implementation of rectification
measures will be closely followed to ensure that the hazard is
resolved in a timely and effective manner.

RIR - e REawsE (&)

BEEREZE

AEEE2TUBEYRELREEEER &K
AR L 2P HAIREEYEE - FEER
CENLEDEFERRERIEREEN

AEE  AEBEHHRAXRBETE  F8
IS FRPIE R R - SREREERR - [
B BAERIEEZ RS FEET G - EEER
R EN B B R R iﬁ@ftﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁh“ﬁ
MR -

AEBERBREYERLE2EETHNRBHEA

BRYEST - ARYRECLEEETIRE
e BMRILABLETHESE - EHSER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e RERHRSE (&)

With reference to the European Union's Restriction of Hazardous
Substances Directive (RoHS), Regulation on the Registration,
Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals (REACH)
and other regulations, the Group has strictly implemented the
Environmental Substance Control Standards ((EREWE FEHIZ %))
and carefully managed environmentally hazardous substances in
product raw materials, auxiliary materials and finished products,
and required suppliers to comply with the corresponding
standards. The Group has set clear maximum concentration limits
for chemical substances such as heavy metals, refractory organic
substances and halogens that pose significant environmental
hazards in materials.

Meanwhile, a series of rules and regulations of the Group,
including the Administrative Regulations on Chemical Storage ({1t
BREEEERT)) the Administrative Regulations on Hazardous
Waste Storage ((fEREMEEEEBE)) and the Measures for
Dust Control ({3 EEIZHIFE 1)), also provide employees with clear
operating guidelines to ensure the safe use of chemicals and
effectively safeguard the occupational health rights and interests

of workers.

The Group has complied with and implemented the Operational
Guidelines for Emergency Preparedness and Response ({JE=%E
HAMZEIREFE3])) to ensure that actions can be taken swiftly
and accurately in emergency situations. The Group conducts a
special emergency response drill every year to enable employees
to master emergency response approaches and enhance their
ability to deal with emergencies, thereby effectively improving the
level of emergency management, developing a solid defence line
for the stable development of the enterprise, demonstrating the
Group's responsibility and management acumen, and providing a
firm guarantee for sustainable development.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group earnestly protects the occupational health of its
employees through multiple means such as the provision of labour
protection supplies, the arrangement of periodic occupational
health examinations and the inspection of frequency of employees’
use of protective equipment, so as to carefully safeguard the
occupational health and safety of all employees. In accordance
with internal regulations such as the Protective Equipment
Distribution Standards ((FiEREAEIT%)), we record in detail
the allocation and distribution quantity of protective equipment,
and regularly check whether our employees have correctly used
personal protective equipment such as earplugs, rubber gloves and
protective glasses, so as to ensure that the protective equipment
provided are sufficient and appropriate, thereby minimising the risk
of occupational diseases. For work sites, the Group has installed
pressure-reducing valves and noise-reducing air guns in the work
area of production lines, in order to significantly reduce the noise
level, create a pleasant and comfortable working environment,
ensure the safety and stability of production processes, and fully
demonstrate the Group's care for employees and its unremitting
pursuit of production safety.

In addition, the Group engages third-party professional agencies
every year to conduct comprehensive inspections on occupational
health and safety. For example, we entrust third-party qualified
agencies to conduct electric fire safety inspections on our injection
molding factory to identify potential safety hazards and compile
detailed reports, so as to accurately locate potential problems
and promptly optimise improvement measures to ensure that
the safety of the working environment and processes is always
maintained at a high level.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e RERHRSE (&)

In accordance with the Procedures for Treatment and Handling
of Work-Related Injury and Occupational Disease ({ T 15 & B %
"B ERAEIEIRF )), when a work-related injury occurs, the
Group requires on-site personnel to first ensure that the injured
receive initial treatment and immediately report to the department
head or on-site supervisor. After that, the incident shall be
promptly reported to the EHS Management Committee, which
shall immediately initiate the accident investigation process.
Meanwhile, the procedures also emphasises the implementation
of corresponding corrective measures to comprehensively
investigate and eliminate potential risks and ensure a safe
production environment.

In order to comprehensively enhance safety competence, the
Group organises various types of professional safety training
activities in addition to regular internal safety training courses to
ensure that employees can flexibly respond to various safety risks.

For new employees, the Group carries out three levels (factory
level, workshop level, and team level) of safety education to
ensure that new employees can only take up their posts after
undergoing necessary safety training and assessment. For on-the-
job employees, the Group regularly conducts fire safety knowledge
training, chemical safety knowledge training, mechanical
equipment operation safety training and waste management
training based on job characteristics. From detailed explanations
of theoretical knowledge to precise drills of practical skills, the
Group improves employees’ safety skills and emergency acumen
in an all-round and multi-level manner, enabling them to make
accurate judgments, respond swiftly and deal properly when faced
with complex and changing safety risk situations, thereby further
building a solid defence line.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g kERSmE(E)

Case: Assessment of occupational health hazards

RO BERERERRTE

In 2024, the Group commissioned Shenzhen Hospital for Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases
ORIITHELZE BB A FE) to conduct a comprehensive assessment of the current status of occupational disease
hazards in our injection molding factory. The assessment covered multiple aspects, including detection of
occupational disease hazards in workplaces, effectiveness of protective facilities, comprehensiveness of
management systems, effectiveness of training and publicity, and individual protective measures. Through
systematic and comprehensive assessment, we have taken a series of targeted measures to identify and
improve existing deficiencies, enhance the level of occupational health and safety management, and enhance
the occupational health and safety management system.
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Case: Emergency drills on fire safety

RE|: EEREESER

In 2024, the Group attached great importance to fire safety work, and carried out fire safety emergency drills
on a regular basis by simulating real fire scenarios and organising employees to evacuate to safe areas quickly
and orderly through escape routes. Through such safety drills, employees strengthened their understanding of
escape routes and their ability to respond to emergencies, facilitating the Group to further optimise escape plans
and emergency measures, effectively implement fire safety work, and safeguard the enterprise’s production
safety. During the Year, the Group held 2 emergency drills on fire safety for all employees, covering emergency
evacuation drills and initial firefighting drills. During the initial firefighting drills, the Group specially invited
professional firefighters from fire rescue teams to give detailed explanations on the theoretical knowledge

and usage of fire extinguishers. All employees observed and learned the correct operation of trolley-type fire
extinguishers, fire hoses and water cannons. This has enhanced employees’ ability to escape and self-rescue in
emergencies, and improved team collaboration and rapid response.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g hERWmE(E)

Case: Traffic safety publicity and training activity
Rb|: RBREEHIZIESR

On 11 April 2024, to further enhance employees’ traffic safety awareness, the Group jointly carried out a
traffic safety training activity with the traffic police department. Through real traffic accident cases, the activity
showed employees the serious consequences of violating traffic rules, so that they can deeply understand the
importance of abiding by traffic rules. To ensure the effectiveness of the training, the activity specially arranged
on-site demonstrations and practical exercises to teach the correct way of wearing helmets and the safety
precautions of riding electric vehicles and other means of transportation. During the training, the traffic police
explained in detail the dangers of common traffic violations and analysed how to avoid traffic accidents based
on specific cases. Moreover, employees also conducted practical operation drills under professional guidance,
and learned the correct way of wearing helmets, the emergency avoidance techniques and the emergency
response approaches for traffic accidents, which enhanced employees’ safety awareness and improved their
self-protection capabilities in daily life, thereby effectively ensuring the safety of themselves and others.
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Scene of the traffic safety publicity and training activity
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

FACILITATING COMPLIANT OPERATION

The Group has adhered to the philosophy of “honesty,
trustworthiness, openness and transparency”, operated in
compliance with laws and regulations, upheld business ethics, built
a strong defence line against anti-corruption, improved complaint
and reporting procedures, and listened to the voices of all parties.
We attach importance to information security and protect data
security and privacy. We are committed to working with all parties
to build an incorruptible, trustworthy and sustainable corporate

ecosystem and create more value for the society.

Response to Issues - SDGs addressed in this chapter
REEE - AEZEEENSDGsHEE

1 PEACE, JUSTICE
AND STRONG
STITUTIONS

The Group always upholds high standards of ethics and integrity
and strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations such as
the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FFZE AR
HAMBEATE)), the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China ((FEAREXMEKRTIEEFHFFE)), the Interim
Provisions on Prohibition of Commercial Bribery ({ B2 17 %85
IR1TAME/TIRED) and the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. On
this basis, the Group continuously strengthens the construction of
business ethics, and eliminates corruption, bribery, harassment,
discrimination and other behaviours that violate business ethics.

In 2024, the Group formulated the Anti-Corruption Policy ( € [
B 5 W % ) ) applicable to the entire Group and revised the
Administrative Measures for Code of Ethics and Business Conduct
(CBEREMEmETAEEFIE)) with reference to the Corruption
Prevention Guide promulgated by the Independent Commission
Against Corruption of Hong Kong and the Ten Principles of the
United Nations Global Compact promulgated by the United Nations
Global Compact. Meanwhile, in order to correctly guide the
Company’s employees and relevant stakeholders (e.g. customers,
suppliers, etc.) to comply with laws, regulations and Company
guidelines, the Group has formulated the Regulations on Code
of Business Ethics and Management ({ B ¥ & /=R & & & 1% R
TE)) to further refine and clarify business behaviours and related
applicable circumstances.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e RERHRSE (&)

In order to strengthen labour and business ethics management,
the Group has established a three-tier management structure to
ensure that the establishment, implementation and maintenance
of the labour and business ethics management system comply
with the SA8000 standard and the RBA (Responsible Business
Alliance) Code of Conduct. The Group's CEO, as the chief
executive, bears ultimate responsibility for labour and business
ethics performance.

Through the above measures, the Group is committed to
enhancing the overall awareness of labour and business ethics
protection, so as to ensure that employees’ rights and interests are
respected and a fair competition environment is maintained during
operations, and that social responsibilities are actively fulfilled.

Anti-Corruption Risk Assessment

The Group's internal audit department is responsible for assessing
the effectiveness of the internal control system, identifying
potential risks and loopholes in the operation process, and
reporting relevant information to the management on a regular
basis to ensure the Group’'s incorruptible operation. The Group
focuses on corruption risk in its annual audit plan, conducts
special risk assessments on the financial conditions and business
processes in key areas, and regularly implements special anti-
corruption assessments to continuously strengthen anti-corruption
risk control and risk management capabilities. Based on the results
of risk assessments during the Year, the Group's fraud risk was
at a low level, and no corruption incidents were found. Moreover,
there were no corruption litigations against the Company and its
employees during the Year.

Business Ethics Audit

The Group requires each subsidiary to ensure that operations
in all areas comply with laws, regulations and ethical standards
through self-inspection, special audits and internal independent
audits. In 2024, the Group conducted customs Authorised
Economic Operator (AEQO) audits on its mold and injection molding
businesses respectively. Meanwhile, the Group also implemented
labour and business ethics audits in strict accordance with RBA,
SA8000 and other standards to ensure that the Group complies
with international and industry standards in terms of labour rights
and interests, health and safety and business ethics. After the
audit was completed, the Group's internal audit department
followed up and rectified the relevant issues, which have all been
improved.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Business Ethics Training

The Group disseminates the Company's integrity philosophy to
all Board members, employees and suppliers through quarterly
employee communication meetings and annual supplier
conferences, and publishes information such as complaint
platform data and complaint channels, so as to further create an
incorruptible business environment.

During the Year, the Group's internal audit department formulated
the Employee Integrity and Anti-Fraud Training (¢ 8 L {5 BE 2
RE#EEFI)) courseware and uploaded it to TK's online learning
platform, requiring new employees to participate in online training
to strengthen employees’ integrity awareness and consolidate the
Company’s defence line for integrity.

Integrity Culture Construction

The Group upholds the corporate culture of honesty and integrity
and continuously enhances employees’ awareness of business
integrity and self-discipline through a variety of publicity and
education approaches. Meanwhile, the Group is committed to
constructing an integrity cooperation mechanism with suppliers.
Every year, we use the annual supplier conference as a platform
to carry out anti-corruption and warning education activities, and
comprehensively promote the signing of the Supplier Integrity
Agreement (R BRR %)) to prevent suppliers from corrupt
behaviour at the source. During the Year, the signing coverage
rates of integrity agreements with suppliers of the Group’s mold
business and injection molding business were 90% and 98%,
respectively.

In terms of supplier integrity training, in March 2024, the Group
held the annual supplier conference, in which the internal audit
department focused on promoting the Group's integrity concept
and showed the Group’'s complaint QR code, chairman’s email
address and chairman’s complaint phone number. Meanwhile,
the Group promised to continue to retain suppliers’ cooperation
qualifications, return the bribes and give cash rewards, so as to
encourage suppliers to take the initiative to report corruption and
embezzlement to TK Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e RERHRSE (&)

The Group has formulated the Administrative Measures
for Complaints ( € #& 5 & 2 % & ) ) to clarify that complaint
management shall follow the principles of confidentiality, fairness
and timeliness, and continued to improve the report handling
mechanism by optimising the complaint management process.
The Group has established the Complaint Handling Committee
composed of four Directors to oversee the complaint handling
procedures, so as to ensure the fairness and effectiveness
of complaint handling and protect the rights and interests of
stakeholders.

Complaint Channels

The Group is committed to maintaining an incorruptible operating
environment and has accordingly established smooth and diverse
complaint channels. The Group has set up complaint mailbox
and chairman’s mailbox within the Company, which are placed in
surveillance blind spots such as canteens, shipping counters and
toilets to provide whistleblowers with offline complaint channels
while preventing the risk of information leakage. Moreover,
the Group’'s WeChat complaint platform supports completely
anonymous complaints, and the IT department shall ensure
the privacy and security of the whistleblowers from technical
aspects, unless the whistleblowers provide their own real-name
information.

In 2024, the Group further expanded the complaint channels,
added a complaint reporting function in the corporate WeChat,
and optimised the QR code complaint platform on the mobile
client to ensure its anonymity. Meanwhile, our subsidiary in
Vietnam introduced a complaint management system and a gift
management system, effectively conveying the headquarters’
integrity culture to the subsidiary. The Group's complaint
mechanism follows the principle of “no real-name registration
required”, and all complaint information is centrally managed by
the internal audit department.

Through the above measures, the Group provides whistleblowers
with safe, convenient and efficient complaint channels, further
strengthening the guarantee mechanism for incorruptible
operations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Complaints Handling Procedures

The Group divides complaints into three types, namely valid
complaints, complaints with unclear information, and invalid
complaints. The internal audit department is responsible for
collecting all complaint information received through the online
platform and offline complaint mailboxes, and submitting them
to the executive Director and Chief Financial Officer for review
within one working day based on the validity and importance of
the complaints. The executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
shall screen the complaints based on reasonableness, determine
their nature, and decide within three working days whether
to investigate, follow up or not accept such complaints. If the
complaint comes from the chairman’s mailbox, the chairman of
the Board shall decide whether to conduct an investigation and
designate the person in charge of the investigation. Complaint
investigations are conducted strictly in accordance with regulations
by disinterested employees. If necessary, the Group shall engage
external independent personnel to assist in the investigation, so as
to ensure the fairness and objectivity of the handling process.

Protection of Whistleblowers

In order to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
whistleblowers, the Group strictly implements whistleblower
protection measures in accordance with the Administrative
Measures for Complaints ((I&ZFFEEHIE)). The Group expressly
prohibits any form of blackmail, threats or retaliation against
whistleblowers. If the complainant is questioned or retaliated
against during the complaint process, he/she may report to the
internal audit department, and the Group shall deal with it seriously
in accordance with the relevant regulations.

Information Security Management System

The Group strictly complies with the Cybersecurity Law of the
People’'s Republic of China ((FREARKEFBHELELZ2E)), and
has formulated and improved a series of information security
management systems to strictly regulate aspects involving
commercial secrets and customer privacy information, including
production and operation, IT system information security
maintenance, scientific research and technological exchanges.
During the Year, we updated the Measures for IT Information
Security Management (ITE 82X 2B E$E)) to further subdivide
the scope of information security management and clarify the
management requirements for the security of information carried
by IT technology and information carried by non-IT technology (e.g.
paper, photoelectric signals, etc.).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e RERHRSE (&)

The Group has established the Commercial Information Security
Committee composed of senior management personnel, which
is responsible for coordinating information security construction,
regularly assessing the effectiveness of information security
strategies, and strengthening information security management.
Meanwhile, the Group has implemented the Owner Responsibility
System for Commercial Information Management to clarify the
principal responsibilities for privacy protection, so as to ensure the
confidentiality, authenticity, integrity and security of information,
and improve the level of information security management.
Moreover, the Group has formulated the Employee Confidentiality
Agreement ({ B T {R % 1% # ) ) to clarify the confidentiality
obligations and responsibilities of employees when handling
customer information and emphasise the importance of customer
privacy and security, and require all employees to sign it.

To reduce the risk of information leakage, the Group has divided
information into three confidentiality levels based on the direct and
indirect impact of commercial information, and strictly stipulated
access rights and usage restrictions. In the technical aspect,
encryption technology has been used to authorise operations such
as viewing and copying of information. In the management aspect,
principles for information management and authority approval
have been formulated to provide double protection for information
security.

Information Security Management Practices

The Group continuously strengthens information security
management in order to enhance employees’ awareness and
capabilities of information security protection. In 2024, the Group
carried out the following tasks in the field of information security:

1) Information security training: Conducted comprehensive
information security training for computer users and ensured
that all trainees completed the whole course, effectively
improving employees’ information security awareness and
operational capabilities.

2) Phishing email drills: Conducted phishing email drills on
company email users to enhance employees’ ability to identify
and prevent online fraud.

3) Launch of terminal security management system: Officially
launched the terminal security management system in
December 2024. The system covers functions such as terminal
asset management, desktop management and data leakage
prevention management, further strengthening our information
security protection capabilities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Through these measures, the Group has achieved remarkable
results in the field of information security and effectively protected
the security of commercial secrets and customer privacy
information.

CREATING A SUSTAINABLE SUPPLY CHAIN

The Group adheres to the core management principles of
integrity and transparency, and continuously strengthens the
supply chain management and supervision mechanism to ensure
the stability and efficient operation of the supply chain. We
actively communicate and cooperate with suppliers to improve
the sustainability of the supply chain by sharing resources and
optimising processes.

Response to Issues — SDGs addressed in this chapter
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The Group attaches great importance to supply chain management
and is committed to improving the efficiency and stability of
the supply chain by continuously optimising the management
system. During the Year, we reviewed and revised the Supplier
Management Guidelines ({f#tfEfGE IR 2 A )) to standardise the
supplier management model, ensure the effective management of
supply chain resources, and create a fair, just and open cooperation
platform. On this basis, our injection molding factory further
optimised the Supplier Management Procedures ({ fit j& 7§ & 12
F2F%)), updated the new supplier review and scoring standards,
and implemented supplier classification management, thereby
improving the level of refined management.

In terms of digital transformation, the Group actively promotes
the digitalisation and paperless progress of supplier relationship
management (SRM). By building a supplier information platform,
we have enabled the online operations of business signing and
resource recommendations. Meanwhile, we have developed
a quotation platform to further improve procurement and
management efficiency and reduce operating costs.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R - wg MEAHE(E)

In addition, the Group conducts monthly and annual reviews on
major cooperative suppliers. In 2024, we conducted annual audits
on 44 key cooperative suppliers to ensure that they continue to
meet the Group's high standards and provide strong support for
the stable development of the Group’s business.

ESG Assessment of Suppliers

The Group regards ESG elements as an important criterion for
supplier assessment. We conduct comprehensive ESG audits on
new suppliers and existing cooperative suppliers, and make in-
depth assessments of their environmental, social and corporate
governance risks. Through this initiative, we are committed to
encouraging suppliers to improve their ESG management, thereby
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ensuring the sustainable development of the supply chain.

Injection molding

business

EBEK

Mold business

IREH

Number of new suppliers that have undergone ESG
audits by the Group
BXAEEESGERNFMEEEEE (X) 24 34 58

Proportion of new suppliers that have undergone ESG
audits by the Group

BXASEESGERNMHEEEEMNL 100% 100% 100%

TK Group’s ESG audit requirements for suppliers

RIRMHEHESGERER

The Comprehensive Review Report for New Suppliers ( (Gt B4R 4

P2 HE) ) covers multiple ESG topics such as quality management,
RoHS environmental management, the environment, social responsibility,
occupational health and safety management, production and delivery
capabilities, engineering capabilities and service capabilities, and enables us to
comprehensively identify the ESG risks of potential suppliers. During the Year,
we also collected and analysed the financial data of new suppliers to further
improve the assessment system.
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Admission of suppliers

HRIEREA

The Annual Monitoring and Review Report for Suppliers ( ({tfEREFEE
BEZ®E) ) covers ESG elements such as environmental management,
labour standards, safety management and business ethics, and enables us to
continuously monitor the performance of suppliers in terms of ESG.
(HERFEREERRE) RERRER  STEA  22E8R  BHREES
ESGRE% ' HBEEHERMESGKRE -

Annual review of suppliers

GRS
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

COMMUNICATION AND COOPERATION WITH
SUPPLIERS

The Group has established and improved its communication
channels with suppliers, continuously strengthened its cooperative
relationship with suppliers and created a sound cooperative
atmosphere.

Annual Supplier Conference

In March 2024, the Group successfully held the annual supplier
conference, with a total of 125 partners attending the conference.
The annual conference revolved around topics such as the Group's
business, procurement strategy, quality system, integrity relations
and complaint channels, supplier satisfaction survey results,
awards for outstanding suppliers and sharing by outstanding
representatives.

The Group communicates with suppliers every year through the
annual conference on the Company’s medium- and long-term
development strategy, past operating conditions, procurement
strategy, and expectations and requirements for suppliers. We also
promote the Company’s core concepts such as integrity, honesty,
safety, quality, delivery time, cost, quantity and the environment.
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Supplier Satisfaction Survey

The Group attaches great importance to supplier feedback. By
conducting questionnaire surveys, we can promptly understand
suppliers’ opinions and formulate corresponding rectification
measures to continuously improve supplier satisfaction. In 2024,
a survey on the timeliness of payments to suppliers showed that
the vast majority of suppliers were satisfied with the payments.
For the few cases that reflect untimely payments, the Group has
analysed the causes and taken optimisation measures to ensure
further improvement of supplier cooperation experience.

W S E A

rEEREERHERRE  BEMARAZE
MEEE kMTHRHEERER - LHEMR
FERIER  URHERAHERHEE
2024% - STHHERNRRFERERT -
BAZBHEFENFIBERARTRE - HR
PERBARKEOER  AEEESTRE
WHREB(LIE G - BRE—THEHERS
fEEh -

o

RTSHRE () BRI 202453



122

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R - tgkenmE(E)
SUPPLIER ESG TRAINING

In November 2024, the Group held an online carbon inventory
training for 125 suppliers to help them improve their carbon
management capabilities and promote the green transition of the
supply chain. Moreover, in April 2024, for the Group's injection
molding business, we invited 124 suppliers to participate in basic
ESG knowledge training, with a training participation rate of 100%,
which effectively strengthened suppliers’ awareness and practical
ability of sustainable development.
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ESG

Carbon inventory training
REBREE

RESPONSIBLE PROCUREMENT

The Group is committed to controlling the entire lifecycle of its
products from the source, focusing on the refined management of
upstream procurement processes. \We have optimised the supply
chain layout by practicing the principle of procurement from nearby
sources, strictly controlled the use of conflict minerals, and fully
evaluated the potential impact of raw material procurement on
the environment and society, so as to ensure the sustainability of
procurement activities.

Procurement from Nearby Sources

The Group adheres to an efficient procurement strategy, fully
leverages the geographical advantages of its factories, conducts
in-depth market research and assesses the capability and reliability
of suppliers, thereby strengthening its control over the supply
chain. In 2024, the Group optimised its procurement structure,
reduced reliance on imported materials, and increased the
proportion of domestic procurement. Among which, our injection
molding business in Huizhou actively secured resources from
surrounding high-quality manufacturers, thereby promoting the
localized development of the supply chain.
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Basic ESG knowledge training of the injection molding business
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Conflict Minerals

The Group recognises that engaging in mineral mining, trading,
processing and exporting in conflict-affected and high-risk areas
not only brings great damages to the environment, but also carries
material negative social risks, and the Group must avoid to provide
sources of funds for conflicts directly or indirectly. The Group
implements responsible mining to alleviate problems on human
rights and the environment that may arise from mineral mining, and
requires suppliers to sign the Business Cooperation Agreement
(CEBAVERA)) to ensure that the metal materials (including
tin, gold, tungsten, etc.) used and sold by suppliers are free from
conflicts, and strengthen the control of conflict minerals.

Green Procurement

The Group is committed to promoting green procurement,
incorporating environmental protection factors into the core
considerations of procurement decisions, giving priority to
products that meet environmental protection standards, and
requiring suppliers to follow environmental protection principles
and produce environmentally-friendly products, thereby improving
resource utilisation efficiency.

The Group checks whether the suppliers hold compliance
documents such as the material safety data sheet (MSDS) or third-
party certified test reports, and conducts review in accordance
with the environmental protection requirements in the Supplier
Review and Assessment List (({fEREFTEFEIZ/5 5 )). Meanwhile,
the Group requires suppliers to understand the Group's
Environmental Substance Control Standards ({ ¥8 35 %) & 1 1 1Z
4E)) and sign the Environmental Substance Compliance Statement
(CGREMETAMER)), so as to fully implement the concept of
green procurement. In practice, in 2024, in the procurement of
plastic materials for the Group’s injection molding business, the
procurement amount of environmentally-friendly materials (e.g.
PCR materials) accounted for 11%, reflecting the Group’s positive
progress in green procurement practices.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e RERHRSE (&)

REALISING TALENT VALUE

The Group has always adhered to the cultural concept of “ensuring
merit-based employment and making the best use of talents”
and firmly believes that talents are the most valuable resources
of the enterprise and the core driving force for its development.
We are committed to building a complete talent echelon system.
Through systematic talent training and development plans, we
stimulate the potential of each employee and help them grow in
their careers. The Group provides employees with diverse learning
and development opportunities, encourages innovation and self-
improvement, and strives to create a fair, inclusive and dynamic
working environment. In the future, the Group will continue to
attach importance to the cultivation and development of talents,
provide solid human resource guarantee for the long-term and
stable development of the enterprise, and work with every
employee to create a better future.

Response to Issues — SDGs addressed in this chapter
BELE - AEEEHSDGsHE
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The Group has always adhered to the people-oriented principle,
respects every employee and actively protects the rights and
interests of every employee. We strictly comply with laws and
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regulations such as the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China ((FZEARZEFELE)%)), the Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China ((FREARKMELEE L)), the
Employment Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of China
((hE ARKEFBIFER#E L)), the Social Insurance Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({2 AR HEMEIL & REIE)) and the
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour ((Z£ |- R &E T
#17E ), and have formulated and implemented talent management
rules such as the Administrative Measures for Recruitment ({185
EIBHIE)) and the Staff Handbook (¢ & T Fff1)). We comply with
the principles of fairness, justice and openness, strictly manage
processes such as the selection, recruitment and regularisation of
employees, and safeguard the rights and interests of employees.
We adhere to legal and compliant employment and provide equal
opportunities for employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Talent Recruitment

The Group adheres to the principle of fairness and strives to
provide good employment opportunities for candidates. We use
diversified recruitment channels and rigorous interview processes
to ensure accurate matching of positions and talents and improve
recruitment efficiency. In order to attract outstanding talents, we
have established a variety of recruitment channels, including but
not limited to social recruitment, campus recruitment, employee
referrals, school-enterprise cooperation talent training programme
and internship programme. In the cooperation with labour
dispatch companies, the Group always emphasises high standards
of service quality and standardised management processes.
We regularly evaluate the effectiveness of our cooperation to
ensure that the labour dispatch companies can meet the Group's
requirements for human resources quality.

In 2024, the Group actively promoted overseas business expansion
and successfully recruited and introduced a group of outstanding
overseas local sales representatives, thereby further strengthening
the Company’s customer development capabilities and customer
stickiness in overseas markets, and providing a strong support for
the Company’s international strategic layout.

Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced Labour

The Group firmly resists the employment of child labour and forced
labour, and has formulated the Age Verification Procedures ({£F
HERETZF)) to strictly prohibit the employment of child labour
and forced labour in workplaces. We require recruiters to verify
applicants’ identity cards through the identity verification system
to ensure that applicants meet the legal age requirements. The
Group conducts spot checks on front-line production staff every
quarter and has established smooth and effective channels
for reporting child labour. If child labour is found to have been
mistakenly recruited, remedial measures shall be promptly
implemented in strict accordance with the Administrative
Regulations on Child Labour Remediation ((Z T EERE D).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e RERHRSE (&)

We strictly manage labour contracts to ensure that written labour
contracts or internship agreements are signed with employees in
accordance with regulations on the basis of equality, voluntariness
and consensus. Meanwhile, we firmly prohibit acts such as forced
labour, and clearly specify relevant terms such as employment
location, time, salary and overtime arrangement in the contracts.

During the Year, the Group's labour contract signing rate remained
at 100%, and there were no incidents of forced labour or child
labour.

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group continuously benchmarks against the market,
optimises its remuneration strategy, and is committed to providing
employees with competitive remuneration and benefits. The Group
has formulated internal rules such as the Staff Handbook ((B L
F it ) ) and the Administrative Measures for Remuneration and
Benefits ((HBHEFIEEHIE)) to ensure that employees receive
labour remuneration in accordance with the law, as well as their
legitimate rights and interests such as statutory social insurance,
annual leave, public holidays and holiday benefits.

We have always adhered to the principles of fairness, justice
and transparency, and have established a performance-based
remuneration mechanism for all employees based on the principle
of distribution according to work. Employees’ remuneration
consists of basic salary and variable salary, in which variable salary
includes, among others, allowances, bonuses and performance-
based remuneration. The payment of variable salary takes into
account factors such as employee rank, operating results of
the Group and the organisation, personal value contribution and
performance, so as to ensure the rationality and incentive of the
remuneration system. Moreover, we continuously improve our
remuneration and performance management mechanism, provide
annual bonus rewards to key talents through the virtual equity
incentive mechanism, and offer long-term service employees with
additional leave, long-term service medals and other benefits, so
as to continuously strengthen employees’ sense of belonging and
willingness to stay.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

We respect the personal life and work needs of our employees
and provide them with reasonable vacation arrangements, so as to
ensure that our employees can balance work and life and maintain
a good working state and physical and mental health. The Group
has revised the Administrative Measures for Attendance ( { &
F)EIEHIE D) in accordance with national laws and regulations,
added childcare leave and carer's leave, and improved the labour
protection regulations for pregnant female employees.

Employee Retention

The Group attaches great importance to talent retention, reviews
its employee turnover rate every month, conducts in-depth
analysis of reasons for resignation, and puts forward targeted
improvement suggestions. In 2024, the Group's employee
turnover rate was 4.0%, representing a slight increase from 2023.
This change was mainly attributable to the growth of the Group's
order volume and fluctuations in labour demand during seasonal
business peaks. During this period, the Company took proactive
measures to optimise human resource allocation and ensure the
stability of the workforce.

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Inclusion

The Group adheres to the principle of fair, just and open
recruitment, and adopts a zero-tolerance attitude towards any
discrimination based on race, skin colour, region, age, gender,
sexual orientation, ethnicity, disability, pregnancy, belief, political
affiliation, community membership or marital status. We advocate
meritocracy and merit-based recruitment. We actively promote
diversity and inclusion, and encourage the hiring of employees
from different genders, ethnicities, skin colours and educational
backgrounds, so as to ensure that every employee can realise
their maximum potential in an equal and respectful working
environment, and jointly promote the diversified development of
the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R - tgkenmE(E)
Democratic Management

The Group respects employees’ rights to freedom of association
and collective bargaining, and is committed to improving the
level of democratic management, continuously optimising
communication channels for grassroots employees, listening
carefully to employees’ voices, and effectively improving the
happiness index of grassroots employees. To this end, the Group
has formulated and implemented the Measures for Democratic
Management ((REEEHIE)) and the Administrative Standards
for Employee Representatives ((# T &k EH 4 & ) ), elects
employee representatives through democratic elections every
year, and holds employee representatives’ congresses to
discuss and communicate on employee rights and interests such
as remuneration subsidies, insurance benefits and vocational
training. In 2024, the Group's labour union elected 127 employee
representatives, held one preparatory meeting and one collective
meeting, and considered and approved two systems related to
employee rights and interests.

Case: 2024 employee representatives’ congress
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On 18 September 2024, the Group held the first meeting of the 15th employee representatives’ congress, which
mainly served to introduce and consider two systems. The amendments to the Administrative Measures for
Attendance (ZZE IR HIE)) and the Administrative Measures for Remuneration and Benefits (€37 Bl & 7 & 32
[&)) were resolved upon at the meeting. Among which, 6 items related to attendance have been revised for the
Administrative Measures for Attendance ((EZEEHIE )), and 18 items related to remuneration and benefits
have been revised for the Administrative Measures for Remuneration and Benefits ((GFENEFIEIEEHIE)).
20245F9R 18R ' AEBEERETLEBRIARAGE AR -  ERTZELAMBRIEETNAESER &R
ZEBCEYERHE)MCEMRANERHEINER - B (EHBEEHIEMERT T RNEEZHHBPHAS - (il
BANERGIE) BB T /AR FHHENERN AR -

Scenes of the 15th employee representatives’ congress
FETHAEBRIRRAGRS
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group adheres to the cultural concept of “ensuring merit-
based employment and making the best use of talents” and
regards talents as the most valuable resource of the enterprise.
We actively build a diversified talent development platform and
continuously promote the construction of a high-quality and
professional workforce to facilitate the high-quality development of
the Company.

Building a Talent Pipeline

In 2024, the Group formulated and implemented a scheme for
high-potential talent and succession management. Through
a comprehensive review of talent resources, we accurately
identified high-potential employees and provided them with
customised training and development opportunities to help them
quickly develop in key positions. The scheme has effectively
improved the talent pipeline and laid a solid foundation of talent
reserve for the sustainable development of the Group.

TKEL programme: a scheme for high-potential talents

In order to meet the mid- to long-term development needs of the
Group and to reserve high-quality talents with high-potentials, the
Group has launched the TKEL (TK Emerging Leader) programme,
which is mainly aimed at high-potential talents from certain top
universities. Through a systematic training and development
mechanism, it has provided a channel for accelerating their
career development and helping them to quickly grow into future
leaders with the capabilities of comprehensive management,
market management and technical management, thereby realising
effective connection with the Group’'s leadership development
strategy. In 2024, the Group continuously attracted outstanding
graduates through the TKEL programme to inject fresh blood into
the Group and further reinforce the construction of the talent
pipeline.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

e =S PN AN Es
R - e ke nmE(E)
School-enterprise cooperation programme

The Group has been carrying out school-enterprise cooperation
with Guangdong Technician College of Light Industry (hereinafter
referred to as the “College”) since 1998, which has been going
on for 27 years so far. During this period, the Group established
the “TK Class” jointly with the College and provided scholarships
and funding support for student activities. In 2024, the Group
recruited 25 interns from the College to provide them with practical
opportunities and professional skills training, and awarded 18 “TK
Scholarships” in a total amount of RMB15,000 to outstanding
students. Moreover, 26 outstanding graduates successfully joined
the Group and started their careers during the Year.

Through school-enterprise cooperation, the Group has achieved in-
depth integration of industry and education, stimulated students’
enthusiasm for learning, and injected new forces with solid
professional knowledge and skills into the development of the
Group, promoting school-enterprise cooperation to a new level.
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Award ceremony of the “TK Scholarships”
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Employee Training

The Group firmly implements the talent pipeline construction
plan and continuously optimises the employee training system,
integrating online learning platform with offline field training to
create an abundant and diverse training matrix. The online learning
platform brings together more than 2,300 courses, covering
multiple fields such as R&D management, sales management,
production management, human resources, leadership and
personal development, and provides diverse resources such as
video courses and online documents. Meanwhile, the platform
offers a variety of forms such as live classes, online tests,
knowledge contests and hybrid learning programmes to meet
different learning styles and needs, allowing employees to test
their learning outcomes in a relaxed and pleasant atmosphere.
Moreover, the Group has organised an annual learning points lucky
draw event, which provides both material and spiritual rewards
to recognise employees’ learning achievements, stimulate their
learning motivation and create a positive learning atmosphere.

During the Year, the total training time of our employees reached
81,855 hours, with an average of 21.5 hours of training per
employee.

Leadership training

In 2024, the Group launched the “Gold Medal Team Leader”
training programme, with an aim to enhance the team leaders’
problem-analysis and problem-solving capabilities and coaching
and motivational abilities, so that they can clearly understand their
role in the team. Through training, team leaders can pay attention
to details while controlling the site, and master the necessary
technical skills and interpersonal cooperation ability, thereby
driving team members to improve their business ability and
become experts.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE - H2NERWRE(E)
Professional skills certification

The Group attaches great importance to the improvement
of employees’ professional skills and actively organises
professional skills certification activities to enhance employees’
competitiveness in the industry. From April to May 2024, the
Group organised 264 employees to participate in the Level 5 skill
certification for plastic product molding workers, of which 208
passed the certification. In November 2024, the Group organised
594 employees to participate in the same skill certification, of
which 585 passed the certification.

BRI BERRAE
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Scenes of the examination on Level 5 skill certification for plastic product molding workers
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Knowledge contests

During the Year, the Group held three knowledge contests, namely
the management skills knowledge contest, the professional quality
knowledge contest and the office skills knowledge contest. These
contests have not only provided employees with a platform to
showcase themselves, exchange ideas and learn from each other,
but also effectively promoted knowledge sharing and teamwork
within the Group, thereby enhancing the comprehensive abilities
and professional qualities of employees.
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Scene of the knowledge contest event
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Performance Appraisal

The Group attaches great importance to performance management
and employee development, and is committed to stimulating
the potential of employees and promoting the common growth
of the enterprise and employees through a scientific and
transparent management system. We have established a strict
and standardised performance appraisal system, clearly divided
the performance appraisal levels, and closely linked them with
aspects such as employee positions, remuneration and career
development. On this basis, the Group organises employees
to set annual performance targets every year and conducts a
comprehensive performance appraisal at the end of the year to
ensure that each employee’s work performance receives objective
evaluation and feedback. In 2024, 89.2% of our employees
received annual performance appraisal.

The Group's Measures for Performance Assessment ( { % 4%
% #% %l £ ) ) clearly stipulates that employees being assessed
shall have the right to know the assessment results (including
the grades of evaluation). If employees have any objections to
the assessment results, they can file an appeal with the human
resources department. Moreover, employees can also submit
a formal complaint through the corporate WeChat complaint
platform, scanning the complaint QR code or sending it to the
chairman’s mailbox. The Group handles complaints through
transparent and fair procedures, while paying attention to keeping
employee information confidential, so as to ensure that the rights
and interests of every employee are fully protected.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR g hERWmE(E)
Career Development and Promotion

To facilitate the career development of employees, the Group
has formulated the Administrative Regulations on Promotion
and Training ({ & FH B2 53 & & 3 8 & )) to build a dual-channel
development mechanism of management and professionalism.
Employees can choose appropriate development channels and
expand their career development space based on the Company's
business needs and their own strengths.

In terms of talent selection and promotion, the Group adheres
to the principles of fairness, justice and transparency, and fully
implements the principle of “putting personnel as the first
priority”. By comprehensively examining employees’ behavioural
norms, professional skills and management capabilities,
and integrating comprehensive investigations, 360-degree
assessments, potential assessments and interview selections,
we are able to ensure the comprehensiveness and fairness of
talent selection. The Group gives priority to meeting the promotion
needs of internal employees and helps them realise their maximum
potential in the right positions.

Mutual Assistance

The Group continuously promotes employee assistance by
expressing condolences to injured employees, providing support
to employees in difficult circumstances, and striving to provide
warmth to employees. Since 2010, the Group has established the
Love Fund, with an aim to help employees in need and provide
them with fund support and comfort. Since its establishment, the
Love Fund has donated to 45 employees with a total amount of
RMB1.398 million. In 2024, the Love Fund donated to 3 employees
with a total amount of RMB110,000. Through the Love Fund, we
give our employees the care from the Group and the society, pass
on the positive energy of TK, enhance employees’ awareness
of mutual assistance, and build a warm, harmonious and loving
atmosphere for TK.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Caring for Female Employees

In order to recognise the outstanding contributions made by
female employees to the Group's business development and
encourage female employees to gain a foothold on their careers,
forge ahead and strive for excellence, on 8 March 2024, the Group
specially organised a Women’'s Day celebration event at the
Shenzhen factory to demonstrate its attention and care for female
employees. The event covered more than 1,200 female employees
in the Shenzhen factory, and plenteous welfare gifts were given to
them through lucky draws, with more than 1,200 gifts equivalent
to a total of approximately RMB60,000 given away. This Women's
Day event not only enriched the cultural life of our female
employees, but also further enhanced their sense of belonging and
happiness, demonstrating the Group's firm commitment to gender
equality and employee well-being.
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Scene of the Women's Day celebration event

HREHETEHRS

Diverse Events

The Group is committed to creating a diverse and vibrant working
environment for its employees. The Group regularly organises
cultural and sports events such as the Spring Festival evening
gala, annual dinner, basketball games, badminton games and
table tennis games. The diverse cultural and sports events enable
employees to relax after work, stimulate their vitality and cohesion,
and balance their work and life.

In 2024, the Group organised a series of diverse and vibrant
cultural festival events, including basketball games, table tennis
games, badminton games and football games. Moreover, the
Group’s basketball team also held more than 60 friendly exchange
matches with external teams, which greatly promoted friendly
exchanges and development with the surrounding communities.
During the Year, our total investment in such events amounted to
approximately RMB200,000, and such events had more than 2,000
participants.
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RIR e RERHRSE (&)

Scenes of the basketball games event
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Caring for Children

The Group always pays attention to the happiness and growth
of employees and their families, and actively organises various
parent-child activities to promote family harmony. On 1 June
2024, the Group successfully held the Children’s Day event in
the theme of “children drawing wonders on umbrellas”, with a
total of 50 families participated. The children fully demonstrated
their creativity in the event and used their brushes to depict the
beautiful world in their hearts, while the parents accompanied
their children to complete the works and enjoyed the rare parent-
child interaction moments. This event not only provided employees
and their children with an unforgettable parent-child time, but also
enhanced the employees and their families’ sense of belonging
and identity with the enterprise.
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Scene of the Children’s Day event in the theme of “children
drawing wonders on umbrellas”
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

ENGAGING IN PHILANTHROPIC WORK

The Group attaches great importance to fulfilling its corporate
social responsibilities, actively participates in social welfare
activities and contributes to the communities where it operates.
The Group has formulated the Administrative Measures for
Community Investment, Donation and Sponsorship ({(it&#&& -
BN EEIRHIE)) to standardise the management process of
community investment, donation and sponsorship, so as to ensure
that public welfare resources are effectively utilised and that
community residents are truly benefited.

Response to Issues - SDGs addressed in this chapter
BREEE - AEZEEENSDGsHEE
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The Group continuously practices corporate social responsibilities,
thereby giving back to the society through various charity activities
and promoting harmonious community development.

In 2024, the Group's labour union convened a caring team of
12 volunteers to visit the Gongming Welfare Home (‘A B3 18 7
Ft) with gifts. The visit was aimed at bringing warmth and care
to the elderly living in the welfare home and celebrating July-
to-September birthdays for the elderly. The Group has always
been actively involved in social welfare service activities, hoping
to inspire more social forces to join the ranks of caring for the
elderly and dedicating their love, so as to make the world full of
more warmth and brightness. In the future, the Group’s labour
union will continue to carry out such charity activities, striving to
fulfil corporate social responsibilities and promote harmonious
community development.
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RIR e RERHRSE (&)

Scenes of the visit to Gongming Welfare Home (A BE4&FBz)

RABMNGEE R R EBHRS

In 2024, the Group organised more than 20 team members to
participate in Oxfam Trailwalker Hong Kong. Team members
had to complete the 100-kilometre trail race challenge along the
MaclLehose Trail within 48 hours to raise funds for people in
need around the world. Our team donated a total of HK$38,300,
far exceeding the project’s goal of HK$8,000. This event has
enhanced the cohesion of the Group, improved employees’ sense
of belonging and pride, and also inspired more people to engage in
charity.
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Scenes of Oxfam Trailwalker Hong Kong
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In 2024, the Group achieved remarkable results in education,
demonstrating its strong commitment to social responsibility.
The Group’s direct cash donations in education amounted to
RMB290,000, with an aim to support school construction and
student aid in areas with scarce educational resources, and help
more children gain access to high-quality education opportunities.
Moreover, the Group also donated HK$16,000 to the Outward
Bound Hong Kong Corporate Challenge to support the outward
bound training programmes for young people in Hong Kong, aiming
to help young people improve their self-awareness, enhance their
teamwork spirit and social responsibility, and lay a solid foundation
for their future development.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g kERmE(E)

OVERVIEW OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS ARENIEERE

ENVIRONMENTAL KEY PERFORMANCE DATA RIEERBENEER

Key performance indicators (KPls)

BREERER

Air emissions Exhaust gas emissions from stationary sources

2357 [ T IR 8% 50 B R
Benzene kg
FiS T 58.1 150.3 120.1
Toluene kg
R T 109.6 312.1 253.1
Xylene kg
—RX T 193.1 308.9 262.8
Volatile organic compounds kg
(VOCs) F
BB ERIESM(VOCs) 7,675.3 4,359.0 4,008.9
Non-methane hydrocarbons kg
(NMHC) T
FER BT AR (NMHC) 1,943.2 3,823.7 3,343.4
Particulate matter (PM) kg
AR ABFRL T (PM) F5= 925.5 1,005.1 1,000.5
Exhaust gas emissions from mobile sources
BEIRERHER
Nitrogen oxides (NOXx) kg
RAEWHRE F5 28.7 24.8 11.0
Sulphur oxides (SOx) kg
HmaEHERE F5 0.7 0.6 0.2
Particulate matter (PM) kg
A IRASRZRLF (PM) T 2.1 1.8 0.8
Total exhaust gas emissions kg
BERBHERE T 10,936.3 9,986.3 9,000.8
Total exhaust gas emission kg/million HKD
intensity revenue
ERBHEREE T/ BESBER 4.6 5.1 3.9
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B R
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Key performance indicators (KPls)

BEANMIER

Greenhouse gas
emissions

BERBHER

Hazardous waste

BERERY

Non-hazardous
waste

BEBEZRY

Scope 1 - Direct emissions

gE——BEEHFR

Scope 2 - Indirect emissions

§6[E — —REHEN

Total greenhouse gas emissions
(Scope 1 and Scope 2)
RERBAHENE

($0E— 28 E—)

Scope 3 - Other indirect
emissions

62 = — H AR

Total greenhouse gas emissions
RERBAENE

Greenhouse gas emission
intensity (Scope 1 and Scope 2)
RER AR
(BE—HEEHE—)

Total hazardous waste

BEERENRE

Hazardous waste intensity

BEEEWEE

Total non-hazardous waste

BEEERMEE

Non-hazardous waste intensity

EEERNEE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g kERmE(E)

Key performance indicators (KPls)

L2 e
Energy Direct energy consumption GJ
consumption HEREEE aE 1,661.0 1,304.6 572.3
BERBEM
Gasoline GJ
i HE 1,555.8 1,298.1 566.5
Coal gas GJ
R Bl 1.1 1.7 2.1
Liquefied petroleum gas GJ
RIEER HE 4.1 4.8 3.7
Indirect energy consumption MWh
M= JKEL R 88,056.3 69,010.0 70,762.3
Electricity MWh
B JEFL B 88,056.3 69,010.0 70,762.3
Total energy consumption MWh
EE e K 88,489.9 69,372.4 70,921.2
Energy consumption intensity MWh/million HKD
BEFERE revenue
KR BEEBE
=L 37.5 35.7 31.1
Water Water consumption m?
consumption k£ SR 239,640.5 203,297.5 233,779.0
;2 15— ettt
Water consumption intensity m?¥/million HKD
RK®EE revenue
SNHKS BB
1z 101.6 104.5 102.6
Packaging Total packaging material tonne
material consumption NI
consumption BEMEBEE 2,183.9 1,610.1 1,961.0
BEEEA
Packaging material consumption tonne/million HKD
intensity revenue
BEYEEE NV PRy 1
=l 0.9 0.8 0.9
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Description of environmental data and coefficients

In 2024, in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Code of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the Group adjusted the scope
of environmental data to be consistent with the scope of
our financial reports, but excluding our associates and joint
ventures. As such, the Group's environmental data for the
year increased as compared to the previous year as a whole.
The newly added part of the statistical scope includes three
entities, i.e. TK Mold Germany GmbH, TK Precision Technology
(Vietnam) Limited and TK Group International (Hong Kong)
Limited.

According to the Emission Standards for Volatile Organic
Compounds for the Printing Industry (EDRITTE B R E A
YIHEUZ %) (DB44/815-2010), common VOCs include but are
not limited to benzene, toluene, xylene, acetic acid, methyl
ethyl ketone, isopropanol, ethyl acetate and butyl acetate.

In 2024, Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions were generated
from stationary sources, fuel combustion of mobile
sources, and equipment and system operation; and Scope 2
greenhouse gas emissions were generated from consumption
of purchased electricity. The greenhouse gas emission
coefficient of purchased electricity was determined with
reference to the Notice on the Release of 2022 Electricity
Carbon Dioxide Emission Factor ((BIR M 2022F BN &
(LI BE A FH 2% )) issued by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment and the greenhouse gas emission intensity of
electricity sold by CLP Holdings in 2024, and other energy
emission coefficients were determined with reference to the
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. During the Year, as the Group expanded
the scope of environmental data and its business volume
increased significantly as compared to the previous year, the
Group's total greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2)
in 2024 increased by 20.5% as compared to the previous year.
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RIR g hERWmE(E)

REBERARFHA
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

In 2024, the Group counted and calculated six types of Scope
3 greenhouse gas emissions, including purchased goods and
services, capital goods, fuel and energy-related activities,
waste from operations, business travel, and commuting
of employees. The sources of data were financial records,
payment slips of relevant expenses and administrative ledgers.
Among them, the greenhouse gas emission coefficient
of purchased goods and services was determined with
reference to the Ecoinvent Database, the China Products
Carbon Footprint Factors Database (FREREE R FEHEE
REEHEASEUE) and the US Environmentally-Extended Input-
Output (USEEIO) Models released by the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency; the greenhouse gas emission coefficient
of capital goods was determined with reference to the US
Environmentally-Extended Input-Output (USEEIO) Models
released by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency; the
greenhouse gas emission coefficients of fuel and energy-
related activities and waste from operations were determined
with reference to the UK Government GHG Conversion
Factors for Company Reporting issued by the Department
for Energy Security and Net Zero of the United Kingdom; the
greenhouse gas emission factor of commuting of employees
was determined with reference to the Shenzhen Low-Carbon
Public Travel Carbon Inclusion Methodology (Trial) ( € & 3|
MR A ERITREEGEZE(H1T7))), the Study on the
Environmental Pollution and Carbon Emission Reduction for
Shared Bicycle ((FAITRIS MR B a=M7E)) (DOI: 10.16868/
j.cnki.1674-6252.2022.05.095) and the Study on Carbon
Emission Factors and Their Influencing Factors in High-Speed
Railway and Civil Aviation Passenger Transport in China ({3
EeREREEMTEdRAFREFEREXMR)) (DO
10.11860/j.issn.1673-0291.20240012); and the greenhouse
gas emissions of business travel were calculated using the
ICAO Carbon Emissions Calculator.

In 2024, the types of energy consumed by the Group include
direct energy consumption and indirect energy consumption.
Direct energy consumption includes gasoline, coal gas and
liguefied petroleum gas, and indirect energy consumption
refers to purchased electricity. The sources of data were
payment slips of relevant expenses and administrative
ledgers. The energy consumption conversion coefficients
were determined with reference to the conversion coefficients
provided by the International Energy Agency and the General
Rules for Calculation of Comprehensive Energy Consumption
((ERE BT E@Al)) (GB/T2589-2020) of China. During the
Year, as the Group expanded the scope of energy data and
its business volume increased significantly as compared
to the previous year, the Group’'s comprehensive energy
consumption in 2024 increased by 27.6% as compared to the
previous year.

Hazardous waste includes waste ink, waste paint residue,
containers stained with waste engine oil, gloves and rags, etc.

Non-hazardous waste includes office garbage and domestic
garbage, etc.

RIR - e REawsE (&)

2024 R EGFWAE TOHAER
B (HE=) BN - BENMEE D
MR - EAREM - BB IRIE@E
B BERELNEEY  BMBKIKRT B
TiRE BB RRAV G - HEE
AR EENRITBATAR - E -
INERERAMRBREEREBHEREHS
ZEcoinventHIEE - FRERE £
FER = R P MUR BUE A R EBIRR
ERMMEEIOMRENE F&E : BAH
mAEREBHNEH2ZEXEHRRE
B AEEIORK B BN A T8  JAKH A8
BRI RELEELENEEYNR
EREFNEHZ2ZEREERLEM
FEHRHEMN(AREERERE
REEHE A F ) (UK Government
GHG Conversion Factors for Company
Reporting) : ETBE M A E R B
WEE2ZECORIITETR A KD ITHR
EEAEBE(RAT))  XB(CHEART
T BE B W & B %8 ) (DOI: 10.16868/
j.cnki.1674-6252.2022.05.095 ) JA & X &t
(BB REEERMBEENE T
EEZERZ#H 5 )(DOI: 10.11860/
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THR EREMERICAOIRBEMETHE
BRANET o

2024 F AREBE BN RENBIEEE
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BREBREABR  BEERAIINESE
7 BEBERREAEBERNBEEUR
THEFTEER: ERERERHE2EH
BReeRBRENESRES K BHR(GB/
T2589—20204r & e FEET E®AI) 5 A
RAFEREERA T EREIE G E
ERNEFER - FEREZEER
E A EE 2024 Fira e iR E—FE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g hERWmE(E)

8. The water consumed by the Group was from the municipal 8. AEEFEMRKIENMEEMLEK i
pipe network, and the sources of data were financial records R BB RRERIA RITHAET AR -
and administrative ledgers.

SOCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE DATA HERRENEEX

B1: Employment

B1{E{E 2024 2023
Employee distribution Number of Turnover Number of Turnover
EBEANE D employees rate (%) employees rate (%)
EEAZ(A) BERKE(%) EBEAH(A) EEMRKZE(%)
By gender Male
RIERIE 5 = 2,289 3.9 1,944 4.6
Female
z 1,512 4.1 1,409 3.4
By position Management
REARE 5 EIEAB 186 0.4 176 0.4
General staff
—REB T 2,253 1.7 1,970 1.2
Production staff
HEEET 1,362 8.3 1,207 8.7
By age group 18-30
REBRHERIE D 18-303% 968 9.9 782 9.7
31-45
31-455% 2,413 2.8 2,207 2.6
Over 45
45574 E 420 0.2 364 0.4
By geographical region Mainland China
e 8 o AR A 3,691 4.0 3,280 5.8

Other countries/

regions
HMBER 110 5.6 73 2.1
Total number of employees3
EEEAE 3,801 4.0 3,353 3.9
B2: Health and Safety
B2fZEEZ % 2024 2023 2022
KPIs
ARENIER
Number and rate of work-related fatalities
EIT AR x 0 0 0
Number of work-related injuries
AILXZEAE 4 3 5
Lost days due to work injury
ETEIBARTERE(CR) 169 4.5 246
3 Total number of employees: Number of employees as of 31 December 2024. 3 ([EEHAR : N2024F12A31BEBRMNE T AR -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g kERmE(E)

B3: Development and Training*

B3 & REHI¢

Percentage Percentage
Number of of Total Average Number of of Total Average
employees employees training training employees employees training training
trained trained (%) hours hours trained trained (%) hours hours
Employee distribution ZHAH ZHEA @zl FHEH FHA- ZHEA FEE T
BISH (A) (%) BHOME)  BROME) (L) (%) BHOME)  BROME)
By gender Male
RUERES 3 2,141 61.8 47,845.0 20.9 1,785 58.9 40,667.6 20.9
Female
hog 1,321 38.2 34,010.0 225 1,243 41.1 32,635.2 232
By position Management
RR&EID EEAE 162 4.7 3,511.5 18.9 153 5.1 3,817.5 21.7
General staff
—RBT 2,108 60.9 50,946.0 226 1,084 3538 31,163.8 15.8
Production
staff
HEET 1,192 34.4 27,397.5 20.1 1,791 59.1 38,331.5 31.8
Total
@t 3,462 91.1 81,855.0 215 3,028 90.3 73,302.8 21.9
B5: Supply Chain Management
5: {EHEEE 2024 2023
Location of suppliers Number of suppliers Number of suppliers
MHERFELE HEFHE HEBHE
Mainland China
AR A 2,310 2,075
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
BRAME 191 153
Vietnam
HE 130 110
Other regions/countries
HhiE BR 152 129
Total
st 2,783 2,467

Percentage of suppliers who implemented the practices

BT Bl LR LL Bl 100% 100%

G Percentage of Employees Trained = Number of Employees Trained/Total Number ¢ RilREAES L=RIER “EEBE*100 : KA

of Employees * 100; Percentage of Employees Trained by Category = Number IR XZHIRB A L= ERB B TIIA
of Employees Trained in the Specified Category/Number of Employees Trained * B/ZHIRE*100: 55 ER TSN E=85
100; Average Training Hours Per Employee = Total Training Hours/Total Number R R BAE  RAMERIER FHRIISE=F
of Employees; Average Training Hours Per Employee by Category = Total ERBIRBNBZIIRE, HERBINEREY -

Number of Training Hours for Employees in the Specified Category/Total Number
of Employees in the Specified Category.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR @ RERmE(E)

B6: Product Responsibility

B6 : EmEE

Percentage of products subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons (%)

E 2R RIEm AR RN E D (%) 0 0

Number of product and service related complaints received
Em MRS HEFEE OR) 19 12

B7: Anti-corruption
B7 : REE

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period

RERAALETALEEERBIERENERFARTOEKE (E) 0 0

Total hours of anti-corruption training completed by employees
& B e R B B3 oIl A 48 IE 85 (/)N B 3,691.5 2,652.5

Number of employees who completed anti-corruption training

TR REBEIINEESE (A) 2,356 1,517

Percentage of employees who completed anti-corruption training (%)
TR EBEEINEEBR S (%) 62.0 45.2

B8: Community Investment
B8 : tERE 2024 2023

Volunteering hours
HEITEH 721.5 210.0

Donations (HK$' 000)
B (F#T) 1,409.0 694.0
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
R g kERHE(E)

CONTENT INDEX TO THE ESG REPORT ESGHRERNAZESI
ESG Indicators Chapter/Description
ESGER RENE FHEH
Mandatory Disclosure Requirements
BEIRERE
Governance Structure
ERRE
(i) a disclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;
BREFSURR HEREAFTENEE
(ii) the board’s ESG management approach and strategy, including the
process used to evaluate, prioritise and manage material ESG-related
issues (including risks to the issuer’s businesses); and Promoting Sustainable
EEGNRE  HEREABTESHRER - BENE - BRI REEE Development
EHIRE LB RER $HEﬁ%gfi(*UﬁﬁiTﬁ*ftj\ééfiﬁﬁfl 2RI - R HEB R AR
(iii) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related goals and

targets with an explanation of how they relate to the issuer’s businesses.

EESNAIRRE e REREEESRRAEE - WHREE AR

AEEHRE -
Reporting Principles
ERERA
Materiality The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process to identify and the criteria
EEH for the selection of material ESG factors; (ii) if a stakeholder engagement
is conducted, a description of significant stakeholders identified, and the  Promoting Sustainable
process and results of the issuer’s stakeholder engagement. Development
RE - MHEREARSTERE  ((\BIEERE ASRELAEZNAER HIAHER
BEELFAZMEN (VBT ABETRMNELHE  BRINEERNHE
B I} BT A RS0 B 2 E A RE R AR
Quantitative Information on the standards, methodologies, assumptions and/or
=1t calculation tools used, and source of conversion factors used, for the
reporting of emissions/energy consumption (where applicable) should be
d|scl<‘)‘sed. o _ ) . About the Report
BMERHNE ALRFER ER)FANEE - 5% BRR/FHET  ooniew of Key
_______________________ %?%ﬁ;%???EW%?F????F???iNMHH""""""“Pa@mmwnwmww
] ) : . RN E
Consistency The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any changes to the methods . 205
— or KPIs used, or any other relevant factors affecting a meaningful BARE IR IR A

comparison.
BITABERIR - @ REAMERWEG 7 A BRERUE RN E
(B )FEMEMTEEER L BRNBERREE -

Reporting Boundary
EREE

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report and describing the process

used to identify which entities or operations are included in the ESG report. If there is a change

in the scope, the issuer should explain the difference and reason for the change.

FRRBIRIE g REARENERSE - REAPGETLEBIEBAAIRE L8 REAREN
HERBEBANE  BTARRENR2ERESHRA -

About the Report
RN E

RTSHRE () BRI 202453
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g RERHE(E)

ESG Indicators Chapter/Description
ESGHEE WEHRE B
“Comply or explain” Provisions
[ 38 <F ph AR 32 1R 3L
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA:HERY
General Information on:
Disclosure
—RIFE (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to air emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BRABERHEN - MK RTHEES  EERBESEEDNEESH
(a) B3R : Kk
(b) BFHBITABEAZENHEBEZRBOANER
Note: Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated under national
laws and regulations. Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane,
nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.
Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations. Implementing Green
i BREREEASLY REtHREBREZIOEERRIRENTRY - RE  Concepts
RERE_SHK B SEER - S8REEY - 2REBRKEAFLT B Overview of Key
EREEMEBIROIPFARESE Performance Indicators
[ R R BITHREEA
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. R i e s

BRERERAL HEmR YRR AR R D R -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,

FARENISEALS intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FEEAEEFEEYEE CAETE) R(WER)BEE(WASES B - §F
B E) -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,

FARENIEEA14 intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FESEEEEYAE (UNEE) R(ER)HE(NMANGES B - B18
B!

KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

BRERIEZREA1S HAFTET S BENE B IR R RE R E e B R ERER A 25 5%

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled,

FAREMIEZEA6 and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve

them.
HlEEEEREZEEYMN G L - REMAEI L ARE B IE R AERELE
B EZFT AR 2057 o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g kERmE(E)

ESG Indicators
ESGEE

Chapter/Description
REME P

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EmEA2 : ERERA

General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and
Disclosure other raw materials.
—REE BRERER(BIEER - KREAMERME)BEER -
Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings,
electronic equipment, etc.
it BRAIAREE  #FF - &8 BT BTXES-
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas

BREMIEEA2.1 or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

PR R S ERE R SEEER(NE - Kon) @FEE (AT ETRE
H)RFE(MAGEBEN - BIERMAE)

Implementing Green
Concepts

Overview of Key
Performance Indicators

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production = A
. BITHEER
FAEENIEEA2.2 volume, per facility). PR B
= == = = oo = AR A BIE R TN Ve
BFEKERTE(WUSESEN - FELGAE) -
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
FARENIERA2.3 achieve them.
AL FTET SR BEIRE AR % B R R A ERE L B R FTERERA 25 ©
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
FARENIEEA2.4 purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
o 3 K EUGE F7KR_ BRI B ERIRERE - ARFTRI M AR B IR R AERE
e B 12 FTERER Y 2P B o
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if Producing High-Quality
FARENIEEA2.5 applicable, with reference to per unit produced. Products

SRR HNEE (UNEE) (ER) BEESMGE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
EBEA3 : RIERRKAER

Overview of Key
Performance Indicators
MEEEEmR
BRENIETRE

General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the

Disclosure environment and natural resources.

—REE BIEZET ALIRIERAAEREKERNZERBCR © Implementing Green
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Concepts

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment BITHEEIRS

BRARIERA3

and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

R EBEDHRERARARNERNEAZERERMERERZENTE -

RTSHRE () BRI 202453
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g RERHE(E)

ESG Indicators

ESGIEE

Aspect B1: Employment

BEB1 : &%

General Information on:

Disclosure

—RIFE (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
B B B N R e %H%&Eﬂ - TR RE - TE#E  Zalk - RE
R LA B B At 15388 S A8 A )
(a) BR: Kk
(b) EFHBITATEATENBEEERAOINER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-

A MIEEB11 time), age group and geographical region.
RIER - EFEEE (NEBRE) - FHRARIRMESESHES R -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
BRENIEEB.2 IR FiERI R EE D HESMALE o

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EmEB2 : REHZE

General Information on:
Disclosure
—REE (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

BEREZETERERMREREREHMEEBEN
(a) BE: &k

(b) BTHBETABEARZENHERERERDINER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past
PR EMIEEB2.1 three years including the reporting year.
BEZF(BREERFE)FFRAITHAABKLLE -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
HRENIEEB2.2 HIGEATERH -

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and
BREMIEEB2.3 how they are implemented and monitored.
AP ER AR BR R R B 24 - DA RABRARIT REER K ©

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2024

Chapter/Description
HREME P

Realising Talent Value
Overview of Key
Performance Indicators

KRB AFBE
RREBIEIREE

Developing a Solid Defence
Line

Overview of Key
Performance Indicators
HLRRR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
R g kERHE(E)

ESG Indicators
ESGEE

Aspect B3: Development and Training
JEEB3 : #E R

General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging
Disclosure duties at work. Description of training activities.
—RIRE ERRARERITT TEBE N RRERNBER - HHaFINES) -

Note:Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external
courses paid by the employer.

i BEIERESE A BEHEE N B AINBERIE
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category
FAEENISIEB3.1 (e.g. senior management, middle management).

MR REERN(NEREERE  +RAEERE)SSNZIIEEESD L -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
AR EMIE1EB3.2 employee category.

ZMRIREEREMNED  §REESTHRZIIA FHERE -

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EHEB4 : & T%R|

General Information on:
Disclosure
—RBEE (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRAM IEE T g HI8 T

(a) B : K

(b) EFHBETABEAFENAWELZRMROINER -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child
AR ENIEEB4 and forced labour.
Ha iR st FBEEE AR R e AR R E T RERFISB T -

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

MEANIEEB4.2  HAEEIRERBREERA RIS R S o

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EMEBS : iR EE

General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
Disclosure B FE 8 A IRIE AL 2 R BRBUR

—MRIFE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

B SRR M IE15B5.1 RS DR EREEE o

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of

B /&M I51EB5.2 suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
B RMERES - MERTERAENNHEREE - LAREEHR
TRERTFE -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks

FAEE MI51ZEB5.3 along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
i %Eiﬁu&% HEEGERENIRE R RRNED - ARB@ERITRE
2=

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
FAREMI51EB5.4 products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
;;Eﬁ%f LFER R 2% IR IRE ma R ARTG VB (] - LA RABRE3IT R BE 52
/

Chapter/Description
RENE FHEH

Realising Talent Value
Overview of Key
Performance Indicators
ﬁﬁ/\ﬂﬁﬁ

BRUERRE

Realising Talent Value
Overview of Key
Performance Indicators

Rt AA BE
RRERIEIREE

Creating a Sustainable
Supply Chain
Overview of Key
Performance Indicators
EAREEIESE -1y

RSEAE Ma*?%@%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

B HERE

ESG Indicators
ESGIEE

/\-h—\

== #&tt(u\/\)

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

EHEB6 : EREE

General
Disclosure

—REE

KPI B6.1
B EKIEEB6.1

KPI B6.2
B AN IE#5B6.2

KPI B6.3
FRENIE#EB6.3

KPI B6.4
FRENIEEB6.4

KPI B6.5
HEEXIEEB6.5

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

BAMREELNRFEHERERZS - BS  ZERRLBEEUARBMAE
Hy -

(a) BE: &k
(b) BTHBITABEAFENRBEIZRBAPINER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.
BEEXEExERAHTEALZEHRERERMEARKNE S

Number of products and service related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.
BN E o R IRTS AR AR BB A R EH % ©

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.
it B R N R B G EE M G A RO 1E M7

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

HE B B A f B AR o

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
iHEEERHRIE RFLBECR - URBARTRERGE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[EEB7 : RES

General
Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI B7.1
BREMIEEBT1

KPI B7.2
FRENIEEBT.2

KPI B7.3
BRENIEEBT.3

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRI - $1R
(@) HE R

(b) BFHETABERATENEMEERROINER

- BGER L BER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

QE%%@W%@%G/\E&EE%%&E‘EE% ERE)TFARMHIEE KA

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

By A R B WAR R - ARMEBERITRERETE

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.
iR ES & B TIRENRESF

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2024

Chapter/Description

HRENVE FHA

Producing High-Quality

Products
Overview of Key

Performance Indicators

ITEBEER
FASRENIEIZAE

Facilitating Compliant

Operation
HHESHEE

Facilitating Compliant

Operation
Overview of Key

Performance Indicators

HEiE & 48
BRI



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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ESG Indicators Chapter/Description

ESGH & HRENVE FHA

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EHEBS : HERE

General Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the

Disclosure communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take

—RIEE into consideration the communities’ interests.
BRNHRZERTRLEREHRBEENRRELEEHSEFLEA  Engaging in Philanthropic
HIBUER © Work

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Overview of Key

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, Performance Indicators

A /E N IE1ZEB8.1 labour needs, health, culture, sport). B AssE s
BrERERE(NHME BEEE  SIER 2R k- 8Bg5) - FRERIEIERAE

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

FREEANIEEBS.2 EETHEMHAER (NS ELEFHE)

Part D: Climate-related Disclosures

DH% : RIREEABE

This part has come into effect on 1 January 2025. For the reporting period, the Group made disclosures in accordance with
paragraph 17(1) of Part D: “An issuer must disclose its Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions and Scope 2 greenhouse gas
emissions pursuant to paragraphs 28(a), 28(b) and 29 on a mandatory basis”.

Ei%li%e%@f%zo%% AVEAER - RIEHR - AEERBDAD17(ER - [3E1T AZRIRFE28(a) ~ 28(b) R 29X BV R 7E 58 i 2 55
HEHENREREBHRREBEIRE REEHER] EITHKE -

28. An issuer shall disclose its absolute gross greenhouse gas emissions generated during the reporting period,
expressed as metric tons of CO, equivalent

ROTAZRBEERHANBERBEHRASERE (UAM-SLREERT)

(a) Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions Tackling Climate Change
#E 1R ZEREEBEAR Overview of Key
"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" Performance Indicators
(b) Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions JE S SR B
HE2R EREHN R seiE m s

29. An issuer shall:
BITAA:

(a) measure its greenhouse gas emissions in accordance with the Greenhouse Gas Protocol:
A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (2004) unless required by a jurisdictional
authority or another exchange on which the issuer is listed to use a different method for
measuring greenhouse gas emissions;

BRIFEBEMANBETALTZ S — x%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁi BRIETAERBOAEREZEER ¢
PEZEEREZE(2004F) ) T2 BER BN

(b) disclose the approach it uses to measure its greenhouse gas emissions including: (i)
the measurement approach, inputs and assumptions the issuer uses to measure its

greenhouse gas emissions; (ii) the reason why the issuer has chosen the measurement Tackling Climate Change
approach, inputs and assumptions it uses to measure its greenhouse gas emissions; and Overview of Key

(iii) any changes the issuer made to the measurement approach, inputs and assumptions Performance Indicators
during the reporting period and the reasons for those changes; e S R RS

KEEARGERERBIRN L 81 - W\ ETABRFELEEREBHRNAELE RRERIEIRRE
BABMREER - (BETARMBEZEDE BABNRBRABREREI  Kiiii) 3
TAEERPHAETE  BABHRBRETHEMNEEAREEREA

(c) for Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions disclosed in accordance with paragraph 28(b),
disclose its location-based Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions, and provide information
about any contractual instruments that is necessary to enable an understanding of the
issuer's Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions;

HMARIEF28(0) R BRI S E2)R = RASHEAN - HERE DAMbIs A B EM & [E 2)R = RESHEN - I
REEHR TRZFRNEMAZEEAXENE

RIER® (%) BRAR] 2024 FH
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRESE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
accounts of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.
Principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis on revenue and operation of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024 by principal activities and geographical
markets is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's business review for the year ended 31 December
2024, which includes a discussion on principal risks and
uncertainties facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group's
performance using financial key performance indicators, particulars
of important events affecting the Group during the year, and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's business
is set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
In addition, discussions on the Group's environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are set out in the sections headed “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 180.

It is the policy of the Board, in considering the payment of
dividends, to allow shareholders of the Company to participate
in the Company's profits whilst retaining adequate reserves for
the Group's future growth. The Board shall consider the following
factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

e the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;
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e the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

e the Group’s liquidity position;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; and

e other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with
applicable laws and regulations including the laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Memorandum and Articles of Association. The
Board will continually review the said dividend policy from time to
time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period.

After considering the above-mentioned factors and taking into
account the business, financial and cash flow position of the
Group, the Board has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK8.8 cents per share and a special dividend of HK10.0
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2024 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on Friday, 30 May 2025,
amounting to a total of HK$73,326,880 and HK$83,326,000,
respectively. The proposed final dividend and special dividend are
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (the "AGM") of the Company. The final
dividend and special dividend, if approved, are expected to be paid
on Thursday, 12 June 2025.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM to
be held on Friday, 23 May 2025, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 20 May 2025 to Friday, 23
May 2025, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company should
ensure that all share transfer documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 19 May 2025.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

gmE=(8E)

For determining the entitlement to the aforesaid proposed final
dividend and special dividend, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 29 May 2025 to Friday, 30
May 2025, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for the proposed
final dividend and special dividend, unregistered holders of shares
of the Company should ensure that all share transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with
the Company’'s branch share registrar in Hong Kong at the above
address for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 28
May 2025.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for the past
five financial years is set out on page 268. The summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings of the Group were fully repaid as at 31 December
2024.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Memorandum and Articles of Associations or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2024.
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RESERVES

Details of the movement in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in Notes 21, 22, 23, 24 and
36(b) to the consolidated financial statements on pages 227 to 229,
page 246, and the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 183.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman lIslands amounted to approximately HK$579,542,000
(2023: HK$568,837,000), of which approximately HK$73,327,000
and HK$83,326,000 has been proposed as a final dividend and a
special dividend for the year, respectively.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2024 were around HK$1,409,000 (2023: HK$694,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Pursuant to the Memorandum and Articles of Association, Mr. Li
Pui Leung, Mr. Lee Leung Yiu and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong will retire
at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the AGM.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFEWEE(E)

PARTICULARS OF BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of biographies of directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 28 to 34 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of Directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 38 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 20
December 2022, which may be terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive Directors for a term of three years
commencing from 20 December 2022, unless terminated by either
party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
agreement which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and Note 35 (Related Party Transactions) to the
consolidated financial statements, no director nor a connected
entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contract of
significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Award Scheme”
below, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements and the objects of or one of the objects of
such arrangements is/are to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities, including debentures, of the Company or any other body
corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests of the directors or chief
executive of the Company in the shares of the Company which
were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO"),
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code (Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules),
were as follows:
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFgHEE(E)

Long position in the shares of the Company

RAERBRBNHTRE

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding in

Name of director Capacity/Nature of interests shares the Company*
RA&ABHEEA
EEgs B REEME KRG EE REBDEE*
Mr. Li Pui Leung (“Mr. Li") Interests in controlled corporations 457,466,000 54.90%
(Note 1)
PhREE(TENREE]) Rt EEER (M)
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael Interests in controlled corporation 55,620,000 6.67%
("Mr. Yung”) (Note 2)
SEALRE(SEE]D Rt EEER(HE2)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (“"Mr. Lee") Interests in controlled corporation 53,640,000 6.44%
(Note 3)
FRIBEE(TEZRBEE]) P EEE R (HiE3)
Notes: BiEE -

1. These shares were held by Eastern Mix Company Limited (“Eastern Mix") (for
368,066,000 shares) and Lead Smart Development Limited (“Lead Smart”)
(for 89,400,000 shares) respectively. The issued share capital of Eastern Mix is
owned as to 45%, 28% and 27% by Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, respectively;
and Lead Smart is wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Li. As Eastern Mix and
Lead Smart are controlled corporations of Mr. Li, he is deemed to be interested
in these shares held by these two corporations pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

2.  These shares were held by Cheer Union Development Ltd. (“Cheer Union”), a
corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Yung.

3. These shares were held by Normal Times International Limited (“Normal
Times"), a corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Lee.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the

number of the Company's issued shares as at 31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in shares or underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which has been recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERES(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN FERRNIRG R BRI E R
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the following corporations had interests M2024F12A318 * ARRRIEFEHFRHE
in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as G E336IEIRNEEARNAN T FTENRERE
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the e ATRe SRk AR R FTA - L TEBEHS
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as known by the RATFS5% A EHE ZEITRANER
Company:

Long position in the shares of the Company RAEXATRDOGE
Approximate

percentage of
Number of shareholding in

Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interests shares the Company*
RAEATNEN

BREEE B, Rty R EE REF D>

Eastern Mix (Note 1) Beneficial owner 368,066,000 4417 %

SR(MEET) EmEA A

Lead Smart (Note 1) Beneficial owner 89,400,000 10.73%

ZE(HAET) EmEA A

Cheer Union (Note 2) Beneficial owner 55,620,000 6.67%

FH(FtaE2) EmEEA

Normal Times (Note 3) Beneficial owner 53,640,000 6.44%

T (f15E3) EmEEA

FIL Limited (Note 4) Interest in controlled corporations 83,242,000 9.99%

FIL Limited(#/7F4) RIEGEE

Pandanus Partners L.P. (Note 4) Interest in controlled corporations 83,242,000 9.99%

Pandanus Partners L.P. (#7i#4) SEEHEE R

Pandanus Associates Inc. (Note 4) Interest in controlled corporations 83,242,000 9.99%
Pandanus Associates Inc. (fit4) SiEHlEEEDS

RTEE (=) BRAF 20245 161
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EFgHEE(E)

Notes:

1. The above interests of Eastern Mix and Lead Smart were also disclosed as the
interests of Mr. Li in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

2. The above interests of Cheer Union were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Yung in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in

Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

3. The above interests of Normal Times were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Lee in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

4. Pandanus Associates Inc. is a general partner of Pandanus Partners L.P.,
which in turn owns as to 38.71% in FIL Limited. FIL Limited was deemed to
be interested in these 83,242,000 shares of the Company through a series of
subsidiaries. Accordingly, Pandanus Associates Inc., Pandanus Partners L.P. and
FIL Limited were deemed to be interested in these shares pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the

number of the Company's issued shares as at 31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, no person,
other than the directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive's Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above, had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on 25 February
2019 as a means to recognise the contribution by the Group's
personnel and to provide them with incentives to retain them for
the continual operation and development of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme is valid for a term of ten (10) years commencing
from the date of adoption and is extendable for a period of not
more than five (5) years. As at the date of this report, the remaining
life of the Share Award Scheme is approximately 3 years and 10
months. The shares of the Company to be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme (“Awarded Shares”) are purchased by the
trustee from the open market out of cash contributed by the
Group or subscribed by the trustee when allotted and issued by
the Company under a general mandate granted or to be granted
by the shareholders of the Company from time to time to allot,
issue or otherwise deal with the Company’s shares in accordance
with the Listing Rules for the purpose of the trust and be held
on trust for the Eligible Participants (as defined under the Share
Award Scheme) (other than Excluded Participants (as defined
under the Share Award Scheme)) until such shares are vested
with the relevant Selected Participants (as defined under the
Share Award Scheme) in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Award Scheme. Eligible Participants include any full time
and part-time employees of the Group (including the executive
Directors). Selected Participants include any Eligible Participants
recommended for selection by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board pursuant to the Share Award Scheme Rules
("Scheme Rules”) for participation in the Share Award Scheme.
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Pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the Board shall not make any
further award of Awarded Shares which will result in the nominal
value of the Shares awarded by the Board under the Scheme to
exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. As at the date of this report, such 5% limit represented
41,663,000 shares of the Company, of which 5,256,534 Awarded
Shares were held by the trustee pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme and 957,077 vested shares were transferred to the
Selected Participants upon vesting of the Awarded Shares.
Accordingly, the number of shares of the Company that may be
further granted under the Share Award Scheme was 35,449,389
shares of the Company, representing approximately 4.25% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the vesting period of
Awarded Shares is determined by the Board in accordance with the
Scheme Rules, but is generally 5 years from their respective grant
dates, and the vested shares will be transferred to the selected
participant at no cost upon vesting. During the year, 957,077
vested shares were transferred to the Selected Participants upon
vesting of the Awarded Shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company did not
acquire the Company’'s shares through its trustee, Bank of
Communications Trustee Limited.

As at 31 December 2024, save for the 957,077 Award Shares
which have vested and were transferred to the selected
participants during the year, all the Awarded Shares were held by
the trustee.
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Details of the Awarded Shares granted to the category of the five
highest paid individuals and other Employee Participants of the
Group and movements during the year ended 31 December 2024
are set out as follows:
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HZE2024F12A31BILFE @ MAEE
ERANATREMEESEERD 2K
B R EBETINT

Number of Awarded Shares

EERGEE
Fair value Unvested Unvested
Name or at the date asat Granted Vested Lapsed Forfeited Cancelled as at
category of Grant Vest of grant® 1 January during during during during during 31 December
participants date date (HKS per share) 2024 the year the year the year the year the year 2024
REHABH R20245 20245
MAEE 1A18 12A318
BEENLIER RILEH EAH (BRR#ER) R5E FREH FRER QKN FRRN R A58
Five highest paid
individuals (in aggregate)®  31/01/2019  31/01/2024 4.78 125,130 - (125,130)® - - - -
REEREMAL(RE)Y 2001/2020  31/01/2025 276 407,076 - - - - - 407,076
20/04/2022  19/04/2027 242 365,939 - - - - - 365,939
02/06/2023  02/06/2028 1.53 271,448 - - - - - 271,448
Sub-total 1,169,593 - (125,130) - - - 1,044,463
it
Other Employee Participants
(in aggregate| 3101/2019  31/01/2024 478 831,947 - 831,947 - - - -
EEEREE(GH) 20/01/2020  31/01/2025 2.76 1,181,539 - - - (2,844) - 1,178,695
20/04/2022  19/04/2027 242 1,453,836 - - - (61,080) - 1,392,756
02/06/2023  02/06/2028 1.53 1,675,094 - - - (34,474) - 1,640,620
Sub-total 5,142,416 - (831,947) - (98,398) - 4,212,071
3t
Total 6,312,009 - (957,077) - (98,398) - 5,256,534
)
Notes: Btet -

(a) The fair value of the awards granted is measured by the quoted market price of
the Shares at the respective dates of grant.

(b) The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024 included three Directors and two members of
senior management. The Awarded Shares were granted to the two members
of senior management only and no Awarded Shares were granted to any of the
Directors.

(c) The purchase price of the awards vested was Nil. The weighted average closing
price of the Shares immediately before the vesting date for awards vested was
HK$1.37 per share.

As at 1 January 2024, the number of shares available for grant
under the Share Award Scheme was 35,350,991.

As at 31 December 2024, the number of shares available for grant
under the Share Award Scheme was 35,449,389.

@ BHOEHOAAFEERGRE SR EHHD
BEE -

(b) HZE2024F12A31BILFE - AEB R K HM
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Further details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in Note 25
to the consolidated financial statements. During the year ended
31 December 2024, no Awarded Shares were granted under the
Share Award Scheme. Accordingly, no shares of the Company
were issued in respect of the awards granted under the Share
Award Scheme during year ended 31 December 2024. The number
of shares of the Company that may be issued in respect of awards
granted under the Share Award Scheme of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2024 divided by the weighted average
number of Shares in issue for the year ended 31 December 2024 is
therefore not applicable.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Li, Lead Smart and Eastern Mix (collectively the
“Covenantors”) have entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in
favour of the Company (on behalf of itself and the Group) dated
29 November 2013 (the “Deed"”). Pursuant to the Deed, each of
the Covenantors shall procure their respective associates not to
directly or indirectly engage in any business in competition with
the existing businesses of the Group. Relevant information on
the Deed was disclosed in the Prospectus in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”. The Company has
received confirmations from the Covenantors of their compliance
with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors declared that they
have fully complied with the Deed for the year ended 31 December
2024. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the
confirmations from the Covenantors and concluded that the Deed
has been complied with and enforced in an effective manner.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following continuing connected
transactions during the year. The directors confirmed that those
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. All applicable percentage ratios (other
than the profits ratio) as defined in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules
in respect of the proposed annual caps for those transactions
are expected to be less than 5%. Those transactions are exempt
from shareholders’ approval under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing
Rules and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction
amounts of those continuing connected transactions in 2024:
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FRAEEF LA THERERS - EF1E
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ARBIREZBENZ - BRIFLTRAE
14.0716MER  ZEXRHGZEZFELR
FTEEAE DL E(BFALERIN BEER
5% o RiK ETRAIE14A.76(2)1F © ZER
SERPETREIENRTE  UHFEARQ
AR 2 BB o

TRENZERFEAERHN2024F 2 FE
tREERZ 55

Actual
Transaction

Transaction period Transaction items Annual Cap Amount
RZHE RHIEHR FELR ERXZH
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
From 1 January 2024 to Rental expenses to
31 December 2024 TK Technology Holdings Limited
(“TK Technology Holdings”) and
TK Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited
("TK Technology (Shenzhen)”) 62,050 62,048
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(1) Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement dated 23 January 2024 (the “"Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement”) was entered into between TK
Technology Holdings as landlord and TK Group International
(Hong Kong) Limited (“TK Group International (Hong Kong)"),
a subsidiary of the Company) as tenant in respect of the
premises located at Workshop No. 19 on 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-
Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong Premises”)
with an area of approximately 77.67 square metres for a term
of one year commencing on 1 January 2024 and expiring on 31
December 2024 at a monthly rent of HK$12,000. The property
is used as the principal place of business for the Group in Hong
Kong. At any time during the term of the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement, TK Group International (Hong Kong) may terminate
the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement by giving not less than one
month’s prior written notice to the landlord or by paying one
month’s rent to the landlord.

TK Technology Holdings is a property holding company and
indirectly held as to 45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung
and 27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to the Listing Rules, TK
Technology Holdings is an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and
Mr. Lee, and is thus a connected person of the Company.

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement, the annual
rent of the Hong Kong Premises in 2024 amounted to
HK$144,000, payable by TK Group International (Hong Kong)
in advance on the first day of each calendar month. The annual
rent payable to TK Technology Holdings was determined at
after arm’s length negotiation between the parties to the Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement. The independent property valuer
of the Company has also confirmed that the terms of the
Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement are fair and reasonable and
the rental payment under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement
reflects the prevailing market rate.
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(2) Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements

The following lease agreements were entered into between
TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord and TK Mold (Shenzhen)
Limited (“TK Mold (Shenzhen)”), TK Precision Plastics
(Shenzhen) Limited (“TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)”), YD
Mold (Shenzhen) Limited (“YD Mold"”) and TK Supply Chain
Management Services (Shenzhen) Limited (“TK Supply Chain”)
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as tenants respectively:

RAEMBA) DRI THIEE R

Agreement Parties to the Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
IE iEHE] ELEE BEnz £4 A
(RMB)
(AR%)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. T TK Technology (Shenzhen) as 22 December 2023 Workshop A, B, C, D, E and F Phase 1 January 2024 to 1,356,457
Lease Agreement landlord and TK Mold {Shenzhen) 1 of TK Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2024
and YD Mold as tenants Community, Fenghuang Sub- District,
Guangming District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
MIERERFEEHE RIBR(A(ERRE)E WBF12ANE PEMITIARBELERERLE  WMFIMIEE
RIEA(MIRARER RIMRIXE(-H)ER 20245128318
(feREHA) AB-C D EF§
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 2 TK Technology (Shenzhen) as 22 December 2023 Workshop E and F Phase 1, G and H 1 January 2024 to 330,378
Lease Agreement landlord and TK Precision Phase 2, Zone A and B Workshop J, 31 December 2024
Plastics (Shenzhen| and Phase 3 of TK Technology Park, Tangjia
TK Supply Chain as tenants Community, Fenghuang Sub-District,
Guangming District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
RIERBREEE A RIMR(RI (FRXT)E WBFANE  FERAHEREGERERILE WUEIRIEE
RIIBEITE (R RRTH s RIMRIZE(-HBREE FR: 20245128314
(feREAA) (ZHHRG - HiR : (ZH)BRJFA BE
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant TK Technology (Shenzhen) as 22 December 2023 Dormitory Block A of TK Technology Park, 1 January 2024 to 160,967
Dormitory Block A Lease landlord and TK Precision Plastics Tangjia Community, Fenghuang 31 December 2024
Agreement (Shenzhen) and TK Mold (Shenzhen) Sub-District, Guangming District,
as tenants Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIEXBEARESEEE  RIMR(RI(ERRL)E WRENANE PERITIREERGERERHE  WUFIAIEE
RIBEITE (R RRIRA RINRIZEMIES 20245128314
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TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen), YD Mold
and TK Supply Chain (collectively the “Tenants”) are entitled to
renew the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements by notifying
the landlord one month before the expiration of the Shenzhen
Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements, and Tenants are entitled to a
right of first refusal in the renewal. Moreover, in the event that
the landlord intends to sell the subject properties during the term
of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements, including any
renewal thereof, the landlord shall inform Tenants of the intended
sale in writing and Tenants are entitled to a right of first refusal
to purchase, which is deemed to be waived if Tenants do not
accept the offer within 30 days after receiving such notice. Tenants
are further entitled to terminate the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants
Lease Agreements by giving one month’s notice to the landlord
without cause. Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, being the ultimate
shareholders of TK Technology (Shenzhen), undertake to use their
best endeavour to procure TK Technology (Shenzhen) to fulfil its
obligations under the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements.

TK Technology (Shenzhen) is a company indirectly held as to 45.0%
by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and 27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to
the Listing Rules, TK Technology (Shenzhen) is an associate of Mr.
Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is thus a connected person of the
Company.

The annual rent payable to TK Technology (Shenzhen) was
determined at after arm’s length negotiation between the
parties to the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements. The
independent property valuer of the Company has also confirmed
that, the terms of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements
(including the rental payable thereunder) are fair and reasonable
and the rental payable under the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements reflects the prevailing market rate. The directors
consider that the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements have
been entered into on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group.

Pursuant to Rules 14A.81, 14A.82 and 14A.83 of the Listing
Rules, the transactions under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement
and Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements (collectively the
“Connected Lease Agreements”) have been aggregated for the
purposes of determining the category of continuing connected
transaction that the Connected Lease Agreements shall fall into
under the Listing Rules.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company have,
for the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed the
continuing connected transactions under the Connected Lease
Agreements as set out above and have confirmed that these
continuing connected transactions have been entered into by the
Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business; (ii) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the agreements
governing such transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company's shareholders as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, has
provided a letter to the Board, confirming that nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that the continuing
connected transactions abovementioned:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(i) have exceeded the annual cap.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2024 which included
the continuing connected transactions as disclosed in the section
headed "Connected Transactions” in this annual report, it has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for 29.7% of the Group’s total
sales and the sales attributable to the Group's largest customer
was approximately 8.5% of the Group's total sales. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were approximately 11.7% of the Group's total purchases and
the purchase attributable to the Group's largest supplier was
approximately 3.3% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had beneficial interests in the Group's top five suppliers or
customers referred to above.
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COMPLIANCE OF RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no material breach or non-compliance
with the applicable laws regulations by the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Award Scheme”
in this annual report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares entered into by the Company during the year under
review or subsisted at the end of the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the Listing Rules.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance were entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the year.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company,
they are advised to consult an expert.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution for their re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
AGM.

By the order of the Board
Li Pui Leung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

o
pwec

To the Shareholders of TK Group (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of TK Group (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 180 to 267, comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2024;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BN B AR S (8)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is the assessment of
expected credit losses on trade receivables.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Key Audit Matter

Bz B RS ()

HRETER

Assessment of expected credit losses on trade receivables

Refer to Note 3.1(b), Note 4.1 and Note 18(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's gross balance of trade
receivables was HK$409,412,000 against which an expected
credit loss allowance (“ECL") of HK$9,726,000 was made,
and such receivables accounted for approximately 16% of the
Group's total assets.

Management estimated the ECL on trade receivables (the "ECL
assessment”) based on estimation about probability of default
and expected credit loss rates of customers. Management
applied judgments in making the estimation, selection of the
methodology and inputs used in the ECL assessment based on
the customers’ credit risk characteristics, financial position of
major customers and forward looking information.

We considered this area a key audit matter due to the magnitude
of the balance of trade receivables and the significant judgments

and estimates involved in the ECL assessment.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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We have performed the following procedures to address this key
audit matter:

e \We obtained an understanding of the management’s
assessment process over the estimation of the ECL on
trade receivables and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty, complexity, subjectivity and other inherent risk
factors.

e \We understood, evaluated and validated management’'s key
controls over the ECL assessment.

e \We assessed the appropriateness of the methodology
adopted by management for ECL assessment based on
our understanding on the Group’s business, credit control
process and the credit risk characteristics of customers.

e \We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing analysis
of trade receivables by tracing to sales invoices and receipts.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BN B AR S (8)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BANSFONAEEERETSE

e With the assistance of our internal valuation experts, we
assessed the rationality of the key input used to calculate
the estimated probability of default and expected credit loss
rates.

e \We evaluated the financial position of major customers
by checking to available information and evaluated the
appropriateness of management’'s assessment of forward
looking information with reference to our understanding of
the industry and external macroeconomic data.

e \We tested the mathematical accuracy of the calculations of
the ECL assessment.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the
significant judgments and estimates used in the assessment
of ECL on trade receivables were supported by the available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

MAZEREN RS (48)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of
the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Tsz Fai.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B ERERER

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A318LLEE

2024 2023
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FHExT FET
Revenue WA 5 2,358,290 1,945,721
Cost of sales HEMA 7 (1,732,463) (1,432,928)
Gross profit ER 625,827 512,793
Other income H A 6 58,228 45,244
Other gains — net Hiplzs — F58 6 10,564 6,227
Selling expenses HERX 7 (71,004) (57,375)
Administrative expenses TEAX 7 (304,407) (275,152)
Net (impairment)/reversal of impairment & @&z (&), REE
losses on financial assets b= EIpER (5,583) 2,978
Operating profit R RR 313,625 234,715
Interest income FlEUWA 9 23,468 22,796
Interest expenses FMEmY 9 (4,501) (12,485)
Finance income - net IS — F 8B 18,967 10,311
Share of results of associates i i lNE 12 617 (8,032)
Profit before income tax RR B 18 B4 A& F 333,209 236,994
Income tax expense Frig TR 10 (71,359) (32,803)
Profit for the year FREF 261,850 204,191
Other comprehensive loss HiZEaEB
Item that may be reclassified to AJEEEF BB a1
profit and loss: IHH -
Currency translation differences INBRRITEEZR (58,953) (29,427)
Total comprehensive income ERFEWFEEE
for the year 202,897 174,764
Earnings per share SREF
— Basic and diluted ~HAREE 11 HK$0.32787t  HK$0.25/87C

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. R o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

EHEERER
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2024 2023
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Htat FHExT FHT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEE 13 355,743 411,804
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 14 96,204 92,201
Intangible assets ELEE 15 9,763 15,053
Financial assets at fair value through BRAGBEEAHES
profit or loss FFAEENEREE 19 43,500 33,621
Investments in associates REtE N BIRRE 12 17,812 17,195
Loans to associates EhiEIENIE P E N 35 2,424 -
Deferred tax assets EERIAE E 30 3,394 5,019
Prepayments for property, plant and Y -~ BE&EFENTER
equipment IR 9,234 5,646
538,074 580,539
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 17 419,562 360,082
Trade and other receivables B 5 N EMEWRIE 18 454,266 352,814
Restricted cash ZRHIIR 20 1,036 -
Term deposits TEHFR 20 155,200 -
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 20 1,008,605 1,158,156
2,038,669 1,871,052
Total assets EEHAK 2,576,743 2,451,591
EQUITY s
Share capital R A 21 83,326 83,326
Share premium gkl 21 251,293 251,293
Shares held for employee share award  gh{E 8 Ik 2E@) 51 2
scheme BHERRD 22 (13,103) (17,679)
Other reserves H A A 23 (1,662) 52,263
Retained earnings REE & A 24 1,391,433 1,315,974
Total equity RS 1,711,287 1,685,177
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

aHEERERGE)

As at 31 December

MW12H318
2024 2023
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Wz FET T
LIABILITIES a&
Non-current liabilities IRBER
Lease liabilities HERE 14 31,431 28,298
Deferred income RIEUT A 27 31,582 36,750
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFIE B F 30 28,466 23,400
91,479 88,448
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B o5 hEMENSRIE 28 435,904 335,196
Contract liabilities AEHEE 29 249,274 228,855
Income tax liabilities FistiaE 19,037 19,922
Bank borrowings RITIEE 26 - 25,708
Lease liabilities HERE 14 69,762 68,285
773,977 677,966
Total liabilities BEHAE 865,456 766,414
Total equity and liabilities EzkaEH8E 2,576,743 2,451,591

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in W EEHEEBBREZRBEMH T —H6
conjunction with the accompanying notes. E o

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board AWM BHRERN2026FIF17TERKEETSH
of Directors on 17 March 2025 and were signed on its behalf. B WHETIEERRESZEE -

Li Pui Leung Yung Kin Cheung Michael
FHR HEM
Director Director
EF EFF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B EREHR
Shares
held for
employee
Share Share share Other Retained
capital premium scheme reserves earnings Total
AESRH
iEEE
S RiRE iR HthitE REER @zt
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz TARL THTL THTL TEL TEL TATL
Balance at 1 January 2024 R2024F151R fhiE8 83,326 251,293 (17,679) 52,263 1,315,974 1,685,177
Comprehensive income GalE
Profit for the year FREF - - - - 261,850 261,850
Other comprehensive income EzAls 23 - - - (58,953) - (58,953)
Total comprehensive income GakRaE - - - (58,953) 261,850 202,897
Transactions with owners in their ~ EEFFANEEE A HE
capacity as owners: hRa
Employee share schemes EERHHE
- value of employee services -EERBER 8 = = = 2,364 = 2,364
Employee share schemes [EERHE
- vesting of shares held for - EERMFEIEE
employee share scheme HEhEE 2 - - 4,576 (4,576) - -
Dividends RE 31 - - - - (179151)  (179,151)
Transfer to statutory reserves BREZATRE 24 = = = 7,240 (7,240) -
Total transactions with owners BERAETHRSER - - 4,576 5028  (1862391)  (176,787)
Balance at 31 December 2024 2024512331 B M ER 83,326 251,293 (13,103) (1,662) 15391433 1,711,287
Balance at 1 January 2023 R023E1 1R MERR 83,326 251,293 (14,401) 69,506 1,215,871 1,605,595
Comprehensive income Gaks
Profit for the year ERgA - - - - 204,191 204,191
Other comprehensive income Eiira s - - - (29,427) - (29,427)
Total comprehensive income GakRAE - - - (29,427) 204,191 174,764
Transactions with owners in their ~ EEFANERE A HE
capacity as owners: RS :
Acquisition of shares WEERH - - (3,278) - - (3,278)
Employee share schemes EERHE
- value of employee services -EER%ER - - - 3,087 - 3,087
Dividends RE - - - - (94,991) (94,991)
Transfer to statutory reserves HEZETRE - - - 9,097 9,097) -
Total transactions with owners EREARTNRSEE - - (3,278) 12,184 (104,088) (95,182)
Balance at 31 December 2023 M2023 1231 R EER 83,326 251,293 (17,679) 52,263 1,315,974 1,685,177

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BHRERER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2024 2023
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HaF FHExT T
Cash flows from operating activities HREZEIZIHNREFTE
Cash generated from operations LEEENES 32(a) 420,440 455,669
Interest received BUHE 18,559 17,914
Income tax paid EATFTEH (64,878) (28,278)
Net cash generated from RETERFIEEN
operating activities e FE 374,121 445,305
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHFNRERE
Purchase of property, BEME - BEM&E
plant and equipment (85,519) (65,543)
Purchase of intangible assets BEBFEE (3,970) (3,418)
Disposals of property, Yy  mERRE
plant and equipment 32(b) 10,945 9,769
Payments for financial assets MIEAREEFEEEE
at fair value through profit or loss B AETNEREE
(DEN (590,861) (881,057)
Proceeds from disposals of financial HEZ AR BETE
assets at fair value through BEEB T ABEHN
profit or loss TREEZFEHIE 594,985 885,297
Increase in term deposits EEAFEZIE N 20 (155,200) -
Loan advanced to an associate ) —MEEE R EREER 35(d) (4,325) -
Repayment of loan to an associate —RENFAERZER 35(d) 1,031 -
Net cash used in investing activities R&EFEFIHBESESE (232,914) (54,952)
Cash flows from financing activities REREITHFNRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEBEMB A 60,000 65,000
Repayments of bank borrowings BEETEE (85,700) (387,677)
Decrease in deposits for bank borrowings $#R1TE &S - 157,138
Interest paid EAFE 32(c) (4,501) (12,485)
Principal elements of lease payments HENZOARE D 32(c) (66,217) (73,597)
Acquisitions of shares 1 B A% £ 22 — (3,278)
Dividends paid AT R 31 (179,151) (94,991)
Net cash used in financing activities @& EEFARSFE (275,569) (349,890)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBEeEEY
cash equivalents CRA) /#hnF 5 (134,362) 40,463
Cash and cash equivalents FUReMREEEY
at beginning of the year 1,158,156 1,114,456
Effects of exchange rate changes R TE (15,189) 3,237
Cash and cash equivalents FERBERBESEEY
at end of the year 1,008,605 1,158,156

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in N EEHRE REREERBEMM T — 4R
conjunction with the accompanying notes. iF o
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1

2.1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
March 2013 as an exempted company with limited liability.
The Company, an investment holding company, and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing, sales, subcontracting, fabrication and
modification of molds and plastic components in the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC"). The address of the Company's
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

As at 31 December 2024, the ultimate shareholders of
the Company are Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (collectively the “Ultimate
Shareholders”), each holding an effective equity interest of
30.61%, 19.04% and 18.36% in the Company, respectively.

On 20 December 2013, shares of the Company were listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 17

March 2025.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Compliance with HKFRS and the disclosure
requirements of HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“HKCO") Cap. 622.
HKFRS comprise the following authoritative literature:

e Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

e Hong Kong Accounting Standards

e Interpretations developed by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

2.1

SOt B RRME
—RE R
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BERAGE - EREMER R (58 AR
SEDFEEPEARAMBE(FER])
NEHEARTZAGNERE  HE K
T BEREBH - KAGGZMHERD
H#o4ik A Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands °

R2024F12 A31H » KA RMRKKE
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M2013FE12 208 » KR RBRNDESS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.2 Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVPL") which are carried at fair value.

2.3 New and amendments to standards adopted by the

Group

The Group has applied the following standards, amendments
to standards and interpretation for the first time for its annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2024:

e (Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
Non-current liabilities with covenants — Amendments to

HKAS 1;

e Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause - Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised);

e |ease Liability in Sale and Leaseback — Amendments to

HKFRS 16; and

e Supplier Finance Arrangements — Amendments to HKAS 7

and HKFRS 7.

The adoption of these standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation listed above did not have any material
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT R (E)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2 WEEEm@E)

2.4 New and amendments to standards and interpretations 2.4 BARFRMBFET REIETER R ZE

not yet adopted

New and amendments to standards and interpretations that EEAEHRAERNERBAEEBRER
have been issued but are not yet effective and have not been MEFTE] MAERT R R B ENT ¢

early adopted by the Group are as follows:

Effective for

accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RT3 BE#
ZERRH
SFHBEXN
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
BB EAE 215 (BFTA) Rz ARt 20251 H1H
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification and 1 January 2026
and HKFRS 7 Measurement of Financial Instruments
ERMBRELERFIRLEFEUY SRIASBARTENEER 20261 H1H
HEEBIETHERTA)
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting 1 January 2026
Standards — Volume 11
ERMBRELER(BETAR) ERMBRELENGHEANFERE-FNSE 20261 H1H
HKFRS 18 and HK Interpretation 5 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027
BN BHRELRF 18K LES MBHRERNEYI RIEE 2027F1A1H
fRIE N E 55
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: 1 January 2027
Disclosures
BREMBEREERFE 195 FRNHZFTEENMBAR - HE 2027F1 AR
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the ANEB T HAEHTHEIEBTEEL -
impact of these new or revised standards, amendments to HRHETT MR ENTE  Hdh A TFEAK
standards and interpretations, certain of which are relevant EEMNERER  c BIEAATEEZTNY
to the Group's operations. According to the preliminary I - FEEAZE IR - EAHEET I
assessment made by the directors of the Company, these new ZENG ISR RFEEBR T eHAE
standards, amendments to standards or interpretations are BRAFEEARTGELBBNCE o

not expected to have a material impact on the Group in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

RIER® (=A%) BRAR] 2024 F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
SR ERERME(E)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

(a)
(1)

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash flow and
fair value interest-rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.
Risk management is carried out by the senior management of
the Group under policies approved by the Board of Directors.

3

B R e B IR

3.1 I EREZE

& B B H R OR B E RS R MR
o MBREROMNERR - BRER - 3R
TRERAABENRER) - FERR
ERnBEzAR AKENEEEARE
EFZERNERTENERRENE
EREHAEEMBRAEEENELER
HEE - RAREERArAKESREEE
RBEEESHENBRETT -

Market risk (a) MiZER
Foreign exchange risk (i) SME R Bz
The Group mainly operates in the PRC and Renminbi (“RMB") REBEBFZEEREKEERE - AR
and HK$ are the functional currencies of principal subsidiaries (TARS ) ERBATAREETENE
of the Group. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risks, NAINMEEEY - AEEEHZEINE
mainly with respect to RMB, US dollar (“USD") and Euro ELXRIINERE  TEAARYE XL
dollar (“EUR"). Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends (TEZEL])EBIT(TBIT]) - REE—
have always been the concern of the Group. Foreign currency BEUREBRETERESHREMHBEE -
risk of the Group has been managed by the Group's financial AN E B /B 7540 B S 18 AN A B Y AN EE
controller and overseen by the Group's chief executive officer. o MAAEERITE AR BB R EE
In accordance with the hedging needs and the then foreign HONEE S5 o IR ¥R E E K E AN
exchange situation, the financial controller would gather and BN BHAEKKERBSELET
analyse information regarding various hedging instruments and TENERETON  WETFTILIES -
determine stop-loss thresholds. The chief executive officer THERBEEBRSETERSES/
would then obtain quotations from various banks as to the THEMBELTFERARAEREELEE
financial instruments and then evaluate and make a decision Rk o R2024F12A31H » WHEH
as to whether to enter into the relevant hedge arrangement. REENEBEL -
There is no unsettled hedging contract as at 31 December
2024.
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency REEEABEXRBH - ASEUNEE
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the respective ENEYEERBENREERINT -
balance sheet dates are as follows:
2024 2023
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =R BE =L
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FHT FHET
RMB AR 389,547 - 180,412 -
UsD eIV 218,112 14,878 178,376 40,218
EUR BT 27,224 1,435 30,768 2,549
Total Bzt 634,883 16,313 389,556 42,767
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(ifi)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i)
If HKD had strengthened/weakened by 5% against the relevant
foreign currencies, with all other variables held constant, the
profit before income tax would have been (lower)/higher as

RIS ()

Bt 7 [ B B X ()

3.1 I EREZE &)

(a) ™5 ERR (&)

SN R Bz (#8)

W& L2 B RINEFHE, B2 E5% - ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ
BEEMEERFILE - BIRFTSH AN
FMORD) /B RAT -

follows:
2024 2023

Strengthened  Weakened Strengthened Weakened
5% 5% 5% 5%
FH1E5% 8 185% F{E5% 52 1B5%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TR FTAET FAT
RMB AR 19,477 (19,477) 9,021 (9,021)
usb eV (10,162) 10,162 (6,908) 6,908
EUR BT (1,289) 1,289 (1,411) 1,411
Total FoE 8,026 (8,026) 702 (702)

Price risk (ii) 1E5E R

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk or
commodity price risk and the Group has not entered into any
long-term contracts with the suppliers. Fluctuations in the
price of raw materials are usually passed on to customers.

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk (iif)
The Group's interest-rate risk arises from bank borrowings.

Bank borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash

flow interest-rate risk. Bank borrowings at fixed rates expose

the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group currently

has not used any interest rate swap arrangements but will
consider hedging interest rate risk should the needs arise.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's interest-rate risk was
minimal, as there was no balances of bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, changes in interest rates
within an expected range had no material impact on the
interest income of cash and bank balances.

AN ER (830 R T 8 RO RE 5 (B AR R
mn B &Rk - RSB 7 i oK 22 0 e R 2%
RIERERHEH - RMHERNKER
FEETER -

BemERA BEFERE
AEBMMERBRERITEE - 8
WITEEFAEEMESRSREFNER
o EERITBECASERHAAE
BEFERR - NEE BRI &SR EM
FEEHLE  EeRERERERY
SRRIREER - B20245 128318 AR
WA RITE A - SRS B/ F =&
A/ o

N 20244F 20235128318 - FHHE

EROHEEHTEHRS RATE
ORI BMABREATE -

RTHRE () BRI 202453
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRERIEE(E)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

(i)

(ii)

Credit risk arises from cash and bank balances and trade and
other receivables.

Risk management and security

For cash and bank balances, the Group manages credit risk
by placing all the bank deposits in state-owned financial
institutions or reputable banks which are all financial
institutions with high credit rating.

The Group does not require collateral from the debtors on the
outstanding balances. To manage the credit risk in respect of
trade and other receivables, the Group performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its debtors’ financial condition. The Group has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. The Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual receivable to ensure that
the adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Based on the historical credit losses experienced and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors, the
Group maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts and actual
losses incurred have been within management'’s expectations.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group faced concentration of
credit risk as the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 30% (2023: 44%) of the total trade
receivables. The Group has been taking measures to reduce
the concentration by expanding customer base.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group formulates the credit losses of cash and bank
balances and trade and other receivables using expected credit
losses ("ECL") models according to HKFRS 9 requirements.

Cash and bank balances

The fair values of cash and bank balances including cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank balance and fixed deposit
approximate to their carrying amount and represent maximum
exposure to credit risk.

While cash and bank balances are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial as management considers
that the counter-parties are reputable banks and financial
institutions with high credit ratings. There is no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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3.1

(b)

(i)

(i)

Bt 7 [ B B X ()
B 7% L e (R 2% (48)

FERE
EERBRERESMNRITERANE S
Ko Al FE MR IR

B EERZE

MRS RRTERME - AREBBH
MERTERERNEESRBBEXEE
RFRIT(ARBEEREELEZNTRK
B) UWEREERMR -

ANEE A & ESKEARARERERIE
WM - REEERE S REMBUR
ANEERR  AEESUHEKAN
MR EETEENG - AERER
BEZEER - URBERELDRETHNEK
[l 8 B E R - AN EE SEEH X ER R
WOk IR EY AT e (] 2 B8 - DA REOR BE S AT Uk
CBEBIELRARERRE - RIFBERE
EERLBEMNEERBEREZNAELEE
£ AREHRKREEE  MELN
ERBE-—BEREERENTEHRA -

MR2024F12A31H  ARAEEBERI AR
EFPGE S EWRIELEEL30% (2023
F:44%) WASEEH —ERENE
EEFRRER ANEE-—BEFRREE &
BRFRARFER  ROEFER -

EHEERE
AEERBEAEVHEREENFIRMMA
EERBREEER([BHEEEE]
BRBETRSMRITERNRE S REM
FEYKIBNEEER -

Be RIRITHER
BREASLRASFEY XRIRSE
N E BT RE AR & RIRTTASRD
AREEEEEEERS - BAKRKE
B

BERERBRITEBRNBERTEEME
HEEESRRBERTE - D BRIR
BEEBYAEKR  THREEERR/R
ST RBERINBITRARGEER
RO REE - FEEREB VT BN
KA EABESRIN o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cContinued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach in
measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. To measure the ECL, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the estimated default
rates and loss rates, together with the forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the annual gross domestic product growth and the
annual consumer price index growth to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based
on expected changes in these factors.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2024
and 31 December 2023 was determined as follows for trade

B HP RN E(E)

Bt 7 [ B B X ()

3.1 I EREZE &)

(b) SERER ()
(i) EREENRIEE)

B 5 W R
AREEREEWHEREENFLIRES
FEAERHEEER  NmBEESE
WHRBERAEHNBEREEERE -
R ERHEEEE B3 RUEAR
RERABEERBRSH A -

BHERENERGHENRREBER
MEERPREEREENENNE R
FERERZOAEEERMSE - &
SECBMNFRALEREIRRELSE
HEEYEBRERXSZMEBRE - I
BUERZFERNBERES M AEE
SLEEE -

T EE - 22024512 A31H %2023
F12A318 ' B ZEWGIEE ERES

receivables:

BREEHNOT

More than
3 months
but not
Less than exceeding More than
31 December 2024 2024%12H31H 3 months 1 year 1 year Total
AL
PR=@EA E1EFEUT —FE E e
Expected loss rate TEHAES I = 1.48% 3.66% 100.00% 2.38%
Gross carrying amount — BREAEE-EZ R
trade receivables (HK$'000) SRIE(FHEIT) 358,739 48,030 2,643 409,412
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EEEE(TET) 5,327 1,756 2,643 9,726
More than
3 months
but not
Less than exceeding More than
31 December 2023 2023F12H31H 3 months 1 year 1 year Total
@A E
DPR=M@EA E1FEUT —F LA HBEr
Expected loss rate FEEAES B R 1.02% 1.42% 100.00% 1.34%
Gross carrying amount — FERE-Z5EK
trade receivables (HK$'000) FIE(FAT) 267,075 52,327 823 320,225
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EEREE(TET) 2,723 743 823 4,289
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cContinued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of
a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group and the
failure to make contractual payments for a period of greater
than 1 year.

Other receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 three-stage approach
to measuring ECL of financial assets included in other
receivables. The Group makes periodic collective assessments
as well as individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records and past
experience.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. Impairment on other receivables is measured
as 12-month expected credit losses when there has been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If
a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit loss.
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Notestothe(ionsohdatedFﬁnancmlEﬁatenwents(conﬂnued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

(c)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit
risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. It considers available forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the debtor's
ability to meet its obligations

e actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the debtor

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor

e significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the debtor, including changes in the payment
status of debtors in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the debtor.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has assessed that the
ECL for other receivables were immaterial. For loans to
associates, no impairment loss has been provided in 2024

(2023: HK$2,306,000).

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and bank balances. The Group's liquidity
risk is further mitigated through its own cash resources
and the availability of banking facilities to meet its financial
commitments. In the opinion of the directors, the Group does
not have any significant liquidity risk.
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(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3

3.1 I EREZE &)

B 7% B B B X (1)

(c) REBEZREM(E)

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities

(excluding non-financial liabilities) into relevant maturity

groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet

date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in

TRIOIREEERERBHBERHI
BRI SR IR - AR B HIAA B oA

]
N

SENERABECEERABRI) - K

AEBENSEREHRURR

S E
e

the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows including BETHAANOFNRAENT B - 2
interest elements computed using contractual rates, or if WMEBZE - AIIRELEANMNERAE -
floating based on rates at the year-end date.
Less than 1yearto 2 yearsto Over Carry
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total value
—E0R -FEWE WEERE HBLF B3 BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TER TER
As at 31 December 2024 R2024%12A31H
Trade and other payables S REMENFER
(excluding employee benefit (TREENES
payables and other tax TR Bt JE £+
payables) W) 306,401 - - - 306,401 306,401
Lease liabilities HEAE 73,063 13,879 19,877 - 106,819 101,193
Total e 379,464 13,879 19,877 - 413,220 407,594
Lessthan  1vyearto 2 yearsto Over Carry
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total value
—F0A —FERF WEELF BBRLF st REE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THEL THET THER TR THET THT
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31A
Bank borrowings RITEE 26,090 - - - 26,090 25,708
Trade and other payables BHREMENFR
(excluding employee benefit (TBfEENESR
payables and other tax A8 B Lt JE £+
payables) HE) 237,796 - - - 237,796 237,796
Lease liabilities HEARE 71,357 11,768 16,351 2,385 101,861 96,583
Total #y 335,243 11,768 16,351 2,385 365,747 360,087
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHIERRME(E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKEKRERE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 I EREZE &)
(¢) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBESRMRR(E)
The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing AREFRBEAKRATESATRIERL
facilities at the end of the reporting period: BEmE
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Floating interest rate FEFIZE
Expiring beyond one year —F & E|H 284,782 466,100
3.2 Capital management 32ERER
(a) Risk management (a) BEE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to NEFEEEANBEAREREFRE
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in EEHEZLENG D  HmAKREIRMED
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other WA AEMFHOEIRERNZ  URER
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to SEMNERBELUOREERKA -

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group RSN EERERNERE  KEEHe R
may vary the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue R FIREMRE S - BT
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts. HEZEENRDER -

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. REBEREABBLRNELEERE
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total Koo ZLRNIREEBEG AR BT
equity. The gearing ratio is as follows: E o AARABB/HERNT ¢

As at 31 December

M12A318
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Total borrowings BEEB5E = 25,708
Total equity i 1,711,287 1,685,177
Gearing ratio (%) BERBELE(%) - 1.5%
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

(i)

The fair values of current financial assets, including cash and
cash equivalents, and trade and other receivables, as well as
current financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and bank borrowings and lease liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts due to their short maturities. The fair value of
non-current lease liabilities approximate their carrying amounts
as the difference between the incremental borrowing rates and
market interest rates are immaterial.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group has classified its financial instruments into the
three levels prescribed under relevant accounting standards.
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair
value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by the levels of inputs to valuation techniques. The
inputs to valuation techniques are categorised into three levels
within a fair value hierarchy, as follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period. The quoted
market price used is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity securities and for instruments where
ESG risk gives rise to a significant unobservable
adjustment.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, all the
resulting fair value estimates of the Group's financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are included in level 3.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BXERERE@m)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 A REE M E)

(ii) Valuation techniques used to determine fair values (ii) AREEAABENGERM
For unlisted equity investments, specific valuation techniques HIEFMERZEEMS  ARFEER
used to value financial instruments based on the recent THEBNFEMERITEE - MR
transaction prices and trending analysis base on market data of SEBERNAILL AR TISEBENES SN
comparable companies. At o

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable (i) FRERFTEERABEBENAAEE
inputs (level 3) FE(E=E)
There is no change in level 3 items for the year: FAMEE=EHEEH :

31 December 31 December

2024 2023
2024 % 20234
12A31H 12H31H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted equity investments JELEMEREE 43,500 33,621
(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (iv) HERABBEREAABENER
The following table summarises the quantitative information TEBAE=ZEAAEBEEFEMAEA
about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair PAER ABIBENE(LER -
value measurements.
Description Fair value as at 31 December Un-observable inputs Range of inputs
Bt M2A31ANAAER TUEREAYE HABBEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
Unlisted equity investments HK$'000 HK$'000
FEmRERRE THER TR
Investment A 36,000 23,621  Expected volatility 35% 35%
REA BERIE
Risk-free rate 4% 4%
EERAHX
Investment B 7,500 10,000  Discount for lack of marketability 19% 19%
REB BRI
Discount for lack of control 16% 16%
a2 gl
Total 43,500 33,621
&z
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B ERRME (E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (Continued)
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value is as follow:
e The higher the expected volatility, the higher the fair value
e The higher the risk-free rate, the lower the fair value

e The higher the discount for lack of marketability, the lower
the fair value

e The higher the discount for lack of control, the lower the
fair value

There were no significant inter-relationships between unobservable
inputs that materially affect fair values.

Movement of financial assets at FVPL is analysed as follows:

3 HKEKRERE®

3.3 D REBEEMETE)

(iv) HEBABEREA R EENER(E)
N BN ABBEEARBENBERD
T
o JEHPRIBHA  AABEES
o HEMAMEYMS ARBEMKE

s RERBUFHYS AREEY
{8

t

o REERIEITAMMS
(i3

EEH

5
~

THBRGABBE WY EEEER
ERRBENERNEER -

BARBEGEEREDIARESHS
BAERHHFMT :

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

20245 20234

12A31H 12H31H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Beginning of the year F9) 33,621 33,621
Additions NE 590,861 881,057
Fair value change DR EEEE 9,879 -
Interest income FBUA 4,124 4,240
Disposals e (594,985) (885,297)
End of the year FR 43,500 33,621

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 of fair value
hierarchy classifications during the year ended 31 December
2024 and 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(v)

4.1

Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group includes a team that
performs the valuations of non-property items required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This
valuation team reports directly to the chief financial officer and
the audit committee. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the team, the chief financial officer
and audit committee at least once every six months, in line
with the Group’s reporting periods.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgments concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgments that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

Impairment of trade receivables

Management estimated the ECL on trade receivables based
on estimation about probability of default and expected credit
loss rates of customers. Management applied judgments in
making the estimation, selection of the methodology and
inputs used in the ECL assessment, based on the customers’
credit risk characteristics, financial position of major customers
and forward looking information. Details are disclosed in Note
3.1(b).

4.2 Allowance for inventories

In determining the net realisable value (“NRV") of inventories,
the Group would evaluate the customers’ orders, estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. If conditions which have impact on the NRV of
inventories deteriorate, additional allowances for write-down
may be required.

3
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (Continued)

4.3 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of assets with similar nature and functions. The
estimated useful lives could be changed significantly as a
result of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. The depreciation charge
will be increased when useful lives are less than previously
estimated. Write-off or write-down will be recognised when
the assets become technically obsolete or non-strategic.

4.4 Income taxes and deferred taxation

There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination of income tax is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can be
recognised. The outcome of their actual recognition may be
different.

4.5 Withholding income tax

Subsidiaries in the PRC are required to withhold income tax
on dividend declared out of profits earned after 1 January
2008 to the overseas immediate holding companies of such
subsidiaries. The directors assessed the cash requirement
of the Group and the dividend policy of its major subsidiaries
established in the PRC, based on the Group’s business plan
and financial position. According to the assessments made by
the directors, a portion of the retained earnings generated by
these subsidiaries would be distributed in the near future and
deferred tax liabilities for withholding income tax were accrued
accordingly at tax rate of 5% (2023: 5%). As at 31 December
2024, the Group did not accrue deferred income tax liabilities
of approximately HK$53,461,000 (2023: HK$65,254,000)
in respect of the undistributed retained earnings of PRC
subsidiaries of approximately HK$1,069,225,000 (20283:
HK$1,305,075,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (Continued)

4.6 Estimation of the fair value of certain financial assets

The fair value of financial assets at FVPL that are not traded in
an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The
group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of the
key assumptions used and the impact of changes to these
assumptions see Note 3.3.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors of the Group. The executive directors
review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources and have determined
the operating segments based on the internal reports that
are used to make strategic decisions. The Group's operating
segments are aggregated into a reportable segment when
they have similar economic characteristics associated
with the production process, distribution channel and type
of customers, and satisfy all conditions and meet all the
aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8. Accordingly, the executive
directors considered the nature of the Group's business and
determined that the Group has two reportable segments: (i)
mold fabrication and (ii) plastic components manufacturing.

The executive directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on their revenue and gross profit
and do not assess the assets and liabilities of the operating
segments.
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RS R R I (4]

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Information of the reportable segments for the year is set out

DEER (E)

(a) FRAIHEDMERSFIOT

as below:
Plastic components

Mold fabrication manufacturing Total

BARE TEAKRE @it
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TEL TEL FEL THL FEL AT

Revenue KA

Segment revenue DEHBA 830,133 736,483 1,660,120 1,326,095 2,490,253 2,062,578
Inter-segment revenue elimination 7 2P A (131,963) (116,857) - - (131,963) (116,857)
Revenue from external customers  MEEPIA 698,170 619,626 1,660,120  17326,095 2,358,290 1,945,721
Segment results and gross profit 2 EIEE RER 258,116 228,994 367,711 283,799 625,827 512,793

Refer to consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
reconciliation of gross profit to profit for the year.

(b) Information regarding the Group's revenue by nature:

BRAFAENEENOHE  F2HE
PHF AR R o

(b) BREAKEIRELE DR AER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12831HLLEE

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Sales of goods HEE M 2,248,215 1,875,206
Modification income IEBCON 110,075 70,515
2,358,290 1,945,721

All revenue is generated from contracts with customers and
recognised at a point in time.

Revenue of approximately HK$199,370,000 (2023:
HK$160,521,000) was derived from a single external customer.
Such revenue is attributable to the plastic components
manufacturing segment.

Sales between segments are based on the terms and
conditions agreed by the respective segments’ management.
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BHIERRME(E)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 oEER @)
(c) Information on revenue of the Group by geographical markets, (c) REBRZERZTith B iE T &b 18/ 35
based on delivery location, is as follows: ZNHBEAERAT -

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
PRC A 1,310,590 946,723
USA EJE 306,642 361,315
Europe BUM 400,546 322,999
South East Asia and Hong Kong RERREER 265,139 223,222
Others Hi 75,373 91,462
2,358,290 1,945,721
(d) Over 90% of the non-current assets other than financial (d) 0% A EWERBEE(TEIESRT
instruments, investment in associates and deferred tax assets B REERARMNREREEHIBEE)
was located in the PRC. LA o
(e) Accounting policies of revenue recognition (e) WARHIETEEER
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received WABEAEEERASEKBARPHE
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary AmEREHNERKEBRRENRARE
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of B WAEMBREEN  RE - BHRE
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after TR EERNEEANIEERNFET
eliminating sales within the Group. LAZ25 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRERIEE(E)

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(e) Accounting policies of revenue recognition

(i)

(ii)

(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when control of the products
has transferred, and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group's activities as described below. The amount
of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to sale have been resolved. Revenue is
recognised as follows:

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the customer has full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of
the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the
customer has accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance
have been satisfied.

Receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this
is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional and
only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Considerations received from customers are classified as
contract liabilities and then recognised as revenue when the
obligation is performed.

Modification income

Revenue from mold modification is recognised when control
of the modified mold has been transferred. The modified
mold has no alternative use for the Group due to contractual
restrictions. However, an enforceable right to payment does
not arise until the customer has accepted the modified mold
and confirmed the modification specified in the contract is
completed.
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BHIERRME(E)

6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS - NET 6 HWARHE M —F8

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31HLEE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Other income Hapl A
Government grants T 18 B 32,001 29,015
Sales of scrap and surplus materials HE R R R R 18,120 11,595
Storage fees [FEREE= 4,068 -
Others Hifh 4,039 4,634
58,228 45,244
Other gains - net Hibh W z- 558
Fair value gains on financial assets BAREEFEBEZEHTA
at FVPL (Note 3.3) BaWEeMmEECAREE
Was (H1713.3) 9,879 -
Gain on disposals of property, plant HEDE  WMENEED
and equipment (Note 32(b)) Wz (ffaE32(b)) 2,245 3,513
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains E X (jB1E) Was F 58 (1,735) 2,648
Others HAith 175 66
10,564 6,227
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

7 BMEETHRAX

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Changes in finished goods and RIBK G N B ah B
work in progress (45,463) 3,037
Raw materials and consumables used R B mFER 819,251 618,694
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) BERMBZ (H:E8) 725,854 589,927
Depreciation and amortisation T K B 194,248 215,233
Subcontracting fees KRIEHR 224,414 150,446
Water and electricity expenses KEEH 64,296 58,421
Transportation and travelling expenses B N ERF X 53,553 39,063
Other taxes and levies Hip i & 14,678 13,790
Repair and maintenance expenses WHEIEE A 17,616 13,412
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance FEEEBERD), BE
for loss provision of inventories (12,493) 12,187
Security and property management RENYEESIEE
expenses 8,958 8,938
Legal and professional expenses FENEERY 7,654 8,586
Advertising and promotion fees XBHEER 8,560 8,401
Utilities and postage fees HEBRIE 3,688 3,760
Auditor's remuneration 1% A B
— Audit services 1z BBk 2,092 3,294
- Non-audit services —IERBURS 429 222
Sale commission HEMS 4,065 2,867
Operating lease payments (Note 14(b)) ERENR(HE14(0) 6,561 2,439
Customs declaration charges WEE 1,196 1,728
Donations g 1,409 694
Other expenses Hipx 7,308 10,316
Total cost of sales, selling expenses SHERZA - HERIRITH
and administrative expenses B4 %8 2,107,874 1,765,455

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHIERRME(E)

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 EERAIBX

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2024 2023

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET T

Wages and bonuses T&KRIELT 539,583 486,734

Labour outsourcing costs oY SN N 105,039 45,529
Pension costs — defined contribution BIRBA - REHKETE(@)

plans (a) 29,344 18,654

Other social security costs E At RAAR 30,598 24,272

Other allowances and benefits HfbEAL M AEF| 18,926 11,651

Share award scheme & 17 22 Eh &t &) 2,364 3,087

725,854 589,927

(a) Employees in the Group's PRC subsidiaries are required (a) AEBHTEEATNEE AL HEA M

to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme F BT B IR N B VR A SR RGR IKET
administrated and operated by the local municipal government. 2  A"EFBNPFEHBARIREEENRN
The Group's PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are EHELSHI10% E20% (20234F : 10%
calculated as 10%-20% (2023: 10%-20%) of the average Z220%)stERNEEAZTEIHRZK - HE
employee salary for the year to the scheme. During the year 2024F12A31HIEFE » AEBWEF
ended 31 December 2024, no forfeited contributions were F R Ukt ZR A P& AR 4 (A ZK 3F (2023
utilised by the Group to reduce its contributions for the year F ) o N2024F 128318 AEE
(2023: Nil). As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no B 2 5T 81 8 R (20234F 12 A 31

contributions payable to the scheme (31 December 2023: Nil). B &)
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BT RN (E)

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 8 EEEAMZ @

(b) Five highest paid individuals

(b) EEBESHMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in FRN - AEEBREEREFMATEE=
the Group for the year include three (2023: three) directors #(2023F : =R)ES - A EFHR
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note MIs¥38FR G REIDHT - A » EME&
38. The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2023: two) M4 (202345 : WA) e H A T H B

individual during year are as follows:

o/ N

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A318LLEE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT

Basic salaries, housing allowances, EXRFM - BEEEL - D 4EE

share award scheme, other allowances  Er&| - EM 28 R EWIEF
and benefits in kind 4,062 4,125
Discretionary bonuses M IFIEAL 5,024 3,298
Contribution to pension scheme RIRSETEIHERR 66 54
9,152 7,477
The emoluments paid to these individuals fell within the MZEATIHHMES N FT3IHER

following bands:

Number of individuals
AE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MALEE

2024 2023
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) &4 B GBT)
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 JT- 4,000,000 7T = 2
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7t~ 4,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 JT- 5,000,000/ 7T 1 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHIERRME(E)

9 FINANCE INCOME - NET 9 MBWA-FH

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31HLEE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Interest income: FEWA -
- Bank deposits —RITTFK 19,156 18,511
— Wealth management products (a) — IR Em(a) 4,124 4,240
- Loans to associates —AEE N RIRHER 188 45
Finance income B RS URA 23,468 22,796
Interest expenses: FEFME :
— Bank borrowings —RITEE (767) (8,414)
— Lease liabilities (Note 14) —HEBEHZI4) (3,734) (4,071)
Finance cost B 75 A AR (4,501) (12,485)
Finance income — net B IS A — 58 18,967 10,311
(a) The wealth management products were placed with banks (@) B EREERNTBEMNIERIT £
in the PRC for cash management purposes with effective HReEBERAR BEREFMENTF
interest rates ranging from 1.05% to 2.70% (2023: 1.9% to 1.05% %£2.70% (2023%F : 1.9% &
3.1%) per annum and mature within six months. All wealth 31%) r YR NEAARNEE - &FF
management products were matured and redeemed by 2024F [22023% 12 A318 * i1
banks as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. Y ERHYE D HHRFITER -
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
SR ERERME(E)

10 FREHEiF X

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A318LLEE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT T

Current income tax BVER AT 15 35t
- Hong Kong profits tax —EERER 11,735 12,449
- PRC corporate income tax — R EEMER 52,258 31,346
63,993 43,795

Deferred income tax EIEFTISHR
- Hong Kong profits tax —EBBNEF 1,739 (1,762)
— PRC corporate income tax — R EPEMEH 5,627 (9,230)
7,366 (10,992)
Income tax expense FREHMAx 71,359 32,803

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and is exempted from
Cayman lIslands income tax.

No provision for income tax in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI") has been made as the Group has no income assessable
for income tax in BVI during the year (2023: Nil).

Under the current Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance, the
subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to profits tax at the
rate of 8.25% on assessable profits up to HK$2,000,000, and
16.5% on any part of assessable profits over HK$2,000,000.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") is provided on the
assessable income of entities within the Group incorporated in
the PRC, calculated in accordance with the relevant regulations
of the PRC. The applicable CIT rate is 25% (2023: 25%).
Certain subsidiaries of the Group were recognised as “New
and High Technology Enterprise” and enjoy a preferential CIT
rate of 15%.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2024

ARRRFHEREEMRIAEREE
RAR] - BHREMFSEEMEH -

HRAEEFRNTABEZHES([XREB
BRHES ) WEEBRAMSEHEA - &
EAREBE XSS HE#E (2023
F M) o

BEEMBEARBGERD - SEMB AT
2,000,000 JT 8k LA T B & 3R B i 3%
8.25% Bt KB AN F| 1S + 2,000,000
TCA £ B () FE SR B % )12 16.56% B K
BANFI SR

PEMGEMESFR(TEEMEH]) HIRA
EEETRPREMRINEEEEN
FERTIUAGHR B - HR B EEH
EREE BRCEMSHBER25%
(20234 : 25%) - NEBEE TH B AR
ERER [RFEMeE] YZH15%
WEEMSRERTX -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHIERRME(E)

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10 Fr{SHiBE % (@)

According to the CIT Law, a withholding income tax of 10% BIBCEMSHE  EPHBIINEEE
is levied on the immediate holding companies outside the f& A &) R B B8 A /)7 20084F1 A1 H
PRC when their PRC subsidiaries declare dividend out of BEMBEERAEFPEIRKE - BIEZ
profits earned after 1 January 2008. The immediate holding SHhEEIINEEERAFEK10% 8T8
companies of certain PRC subsidiaries have obtained Hong HFAEHR - & THEMNB AR EEE
Kong tax resident status, and a lower preferential 5% WARICESEERRBKEESH » Wik
withholding income tax rate is applied. 5% R EE B BT R MM TEI TS -
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs LA & B BR FTS B B s A S A A9 B 18
from the theoretical amount that would have arisen using the THEEmMEEAANEREZMNERTE
main statutory tax rate applicable to profit of the Group due to ATEMERAENIERTETR -

the following:

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Profit before income tax bR TS HE A @ A 333,209 236,994
Tax calculated at corporate income B25% TSR EGTER
tax rate of 256% fiE 83,302 59,248
Effects of: TAEENFE
- Different tax rates applied — AR RFR R (30,729) (20,503)
— Income not subject to tax — HAERBUMA (2,620) (1,861)
— Accelerated deduction of qualified — B BRI Mk
expenses (10,049) (11,486)
- Tax losses not recognised — RERBIABE 3,800 4,965
— Expenses not deductible for tax — AR 2,829 541
— Under provision in prior years —BEFERETR 1,496 574
- Withholding income tax on profit —FREERE DR
distributed from the PRC subsidiaries AR TEFORL 23,483 -
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised — BB RERE
tax losses HIiEEE (51) -
— Share of results of associates —EEEEARIEE (102) 1,325
71,359 32,803
11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 BREF
(a) Basic (a) &7
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for EREERBFTIAFARZFBRAFAD
the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares BTLRAR(TEREREERDETEFE
in issue for the year excluding shares held for employee share A& (FFEE22) ) MO INBE S ST E o

scheme (Note 22).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(a) Basic (Continued)

11 BREF &)
(a) EAE)

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2024 2023

Profit for the year (HK$'000) FWm M (FHIT) 261,850 204,191
Weighted average number of ordinary BT E AR N

shares issued (thousands) FEE(FR) 827,620 827,353

Basic earnings per share (HK$) SREARBMGET) 0.32 0.25

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
Share award granted to employees under the Group's share
award scheme (Note 25) are considered to be potential
ordinary shares. For the award shares, a calculation is done to
determine the number of shares that could have been acquired
at fair value (determined as the average annual market share
price of the Company's shares) based on the monetary value
of the outstanding award shares. The number of shares
calculated as above is compared with the number of shares
that would have been issued assuming the exercise of the

share award scheme:

(b) #58

AEEREERNFEMBRL R
BEBEEBETENETRRKNEHTE
BIRMETFOBIEL AR - REERD
RN ET & (FF3E25) 18 T & T & 8 6915
REREEREELTER - EBRG M
T RBEEETRERNONESEER -
BEERARBE(EER/RARRKRMNZF
HEETE)AIBAZRMER < 124 £
ARFEZRNEE - BRZAD ZRE
STEITTEMER BT RO B EL
[

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2024 2023

Profit for the year (HK$'000) FREM(FAET) 261,850 204,191
Weighted average number of ordinary B 27T T B AR A It

shares issued (thousands) FHE(TR) 827,620 827,353
Adjustments for share award scheme TR D SEEET 2R (FAR)

(thousands) 2,672 2,021
Weighted average number of ordinary TR BF 69 I AR N AE T

shares for diluted earnings per share HE(THR)

(thousands) 830,292 829,374
Diluted earnings per share (HK$) FREEHMET) 0.32 0.25

Diluted earnings per share approximates basic earnings per
share for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 as the
impact of potential dilutive shares is immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHIERRME(E)

12 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 12 REEE QN TNIRE
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had 43.01% and M 2024 F K 2023F12A318 K&
32% equity interests in Motlles i Matrius Fisas Navarro, S.L. ESRBEEARTEMKINER
(“Motlles”), a limited liability company incorporated in Spain 7~ A) Motlles i Matrius Fisas Navarro,
and Shenzhen Sunmerry Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen S.L.(IMotlles]) KA EFMK LA
Sunmerry”), a limited liability company incorporated in PRC, BARRYFTEERI AR AR (FEY
respectively. The principal activities of Motlles and Shenzhen HE”E |)43.01% K 32% A% #E ° Motlles
Sunmerry are provision of mold modification services in FFEVFEEN T B ERED B AREOMN
Europe and the manufacturing and sales of e-cigarettes in REEEBHMRBEENPREAEERIEE
China, respectively. BFIE -
The carrying amount of the investments has changed as KERmEZSMT :
follows:
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
At the beginning of the year F7) 17,195 25,368
Share of results JEMLZELE
— Share of net profit — B 457 617 938
— Impairment loss —REEE - (8,970)
Currency translation differences INERRITEER - (141)
At the end of the year FR 17,812 17,195
In 2023, Shenzhen Sunmerry was full impaired as it failed to 2023%F  FY|FFEEKEENEGEEEF
obtain the licence to manufacture e-cigarettes and not able to B RERR  EEBEEREHER e
continue its business operation. 2EURE
The associates are private companies with limited liability and BMENT AARETLE AR @ WEM
no quoted market price is available. IBIRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
SR ERERME(E)

12 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 12 REtE R RINIRE (@)
The Group has interests in the above two individually REE A F il fR S E R N E KB A R
immaterial associates which are accounted for using the equity MBS FERAERSEAR - BMaNaER
method. The aggregated information of the associates is BRI -
follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A3MALEE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET

Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of: RNEE E(HIA NS IHLELE ¢
Impairment loss EEE - (8,970)
Profit from operations BT 617 938
Total comprehensive income/(loss) Al (BB )85 617 (8,032)

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Share of net assets of individually DMEERTEABLATH
immaterial associates BEFE 17,812 17,195
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BRI TE ()

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 W%  BERSDHE

Furniture,
fixture and
Leasehold Plant and computer Motor Construction
Improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
HE BE - RER
NELE  BEREER EMRE "E ERIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEL TEL TEL TAT TR
Year ended 31 December 2024 E 220245
12A3181LFE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 62,528 320,247 6,320 1,616 21,093 411,804
Currency translation differences  JMEBFITEEE (1,854) (9,778) (184) (60) (748) (12,624)
Additions NE - - 2,131 5 79,189 81,931
Transfers fE 12,988 61,877 - - (74,865) -
Disposals (Note 32(b)) W& (Wztazib)) (754) (7,937) (9) - - (8,700)
Depreciation charge FELM (25,177) (87,650) (3,344) (497) - (116,668)
Closing net book amount ERREFE 41,731 276,759 5,520 1,064 24,669 355,743
At 31 December 2024 720245124318
Cost wA 253,083 1,031,543 44,509 8,753 24,669 1,362,557
Accumulated depreciationand  ZFHHERFEE
impairment (205,352) (754,784) (38,989) (7,689) - (1,006,814)
Net book amount RRFE 47,731 276,759 5,520 1,064 24,669 355,743
Year ended 31 December 2023 E£2023F12431H
ItFE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 76,456 377,097 4,745 1,981 25,693 485,972
Currency translation differences  SMEBRENEZR (1,051) (5,497 (36) (24) (517) (7,125)
Additions RE - - 4,608 459 67,267 72,334
Transfers B 19,183 52,167 - - (71,350) -
Disposals HE (485) (5,767) (4) - - (6,256)
Depreciation charge FEXH (31,575) (97,753) (2,993) (800) - (133,121)
Closing net book amount EREEFE 62,528 320,247 6,320 1616 21,093 411,804
At 31 December 2023 202312318
Cost A 254,249 1,038,265 45,147 8,896 21,093 1,367,650
Accumulated depreciation and  ZFHHERAE
impairment (191,721) (718,018) (38,827) (7,280) - (955,846)
Net book amount REFE 62,528 320,247 6,320 1,616 21,093 411,804
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation charges were included in the following categories
in the profit or loss:

13 M1% - BERRE @

FrEXHEFT ABZO TR

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHxT FHET

Cost of sales THER AN 99,955 115,446
Administrative expenses THREX 16,536 17,519
Selling expenses HERSY 177 156
116,668 133,121

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5 years

Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 years
computer equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

sheet

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASES

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance

Ot A5 ERR P (A8

14 EHEEERESR

) REHEERBREINEH

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 96,204 92,201

Lease liabilities HEBE

Current pinEl 69,762 68,285
Non-current JEREY 31,431 28,298
101,193 96,583

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability when they are not short-term nor for
low-value assets. Additions to the right-of-use assets during
the year were HK$73,521,000 (2023: HK$61,531,000).

comprehensive income

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

WHETBRBIIEEEBEEE  BIE
REGHAEEERAEARE - FRARE
fF A#EEET73,521,0007 7T (20234
61,531,000/ 7T) °

(b) REHEFESWERETN T

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {FREZAETESH
- Charged to cost of sales — BHEERAR 55,652 61,842
- Charged to administrative expenses — BITH R S0k 13,019 12,706
Expense relating to short-term and HERRMEEEEENE
low-value assets leases (Note 7) R (HE7)
— Charged to cost of sales — BHERATR 5,996 1,962
— Charged to administrative expenses —BITEHRAZIGBR 565 477
Lease modification HEB®R 175 66
Interest expense (Note 9) FEFRZ (M :E9) 3,734 4,071

RIER® (=A%) BRAR] 2024 F
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14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASES (Continued)

(c) The total cash outflow for leases were as follows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
SR ERERME(E)

14 FRAREEREE @)

(c) HENRERHABENT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Principal elements of lease payments HENTO RIS 66,217 73,597

Interest portion of lease payments MER AT EE 5 3,734 4,071
Short-term and low-value assets leases EHMEEEEEREMNK

payments 6,561 2,439

76,512 80,107

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, equipment
and vehicles. Rental contracts are made for fixed periods of 6
months to 8 years.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-
lease components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASES (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third-party financing;
and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on a rate, which are not included in
the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to
lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease
liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use
asset.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets comprise equipments and small items of office
furniture.

BT R (E)

14 FHAREEREE @)

RETIREEENE » AEHE :

o EFMEBERT  ERENFEAR
FRBNES FRE AN
A% AR EEGE=HRE
R 0%

s BAEME BERAKREMIFE
HEMNEERR(ROWHEE =77/
B)REERRFIE : &

e ETHENRBEAOMNAE - a0
B ExR - B &ER -

7N % 66 T I oK 2R ] BE R A SR B B R] AR
ENFENNRER  mMAEBENZEHEEN
FEMEEMA TS ARERFE - &
RIFEEL N EHHE N REL R
ERE - HEABREEREEELTT
EXAHA RAE -

FERAEEE—MREEFERFEHA
HABREERE)RERETENE -
MAKREREETITEBERER A
FHAREERHBEENAEAFHRA
FLATE -

HERELEGNEHEERABEEE
BEREHEBNNRABEREN B
RAFX - HHEEREH12MEA LA
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MOERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
SR ERERME(E)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 B EE

Computer Customer
software relationships Total
e EFBR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THERT TExT
Year ended 31 December 2024 E£2024%F12H31H
IEFE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 12,977 2,076 15,053
Currency translation differences INEFRITEEZR (305) (46) (351)
Additions NG 3,970 - 3,970
Amortisation charge b s odun] (6,879) (2,030) (8,909)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFEE 9,763 - 9,763
At 31 December 2024 "2024F12H31H
Cost B AN 64,504 2,763 67,267
Accumulated amortisation S (54,741) (2,763) (57,504)
Net book amount BRENFE 9,763 = 9,763
Year ended 31 December 2023 #Z=2023F12H31H
IEFE
Opening net book amount FEREEFE 17,080 2,403 19,483
Currency translation differences INERRITE =R (246) (38) (284)
Additions NE 3,418 - 3,418
Amortisation charge b iy (7,275) (289) (7,564)
Closing net book amount FERIRAZFE 12,977 2,076 15,053
At 31 December 2023 ”2023F12H31H
Cost BN 62,760 2,863 65,623
Accumulated amortisation BN (49,783) (787) (50,570)
Net book amount BRENFE 12,977 2,076 15,053
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHIERRME(E)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 15 B EE (@)

(a) Amortisation charges were included in the following categories (a) BT HEr ABSH T HZER] -
in profit or loss:

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET
Administrative expenses THAX 8,687 7,064
Cost of sales PHE K 222 500
8,909 7,564
(b) Amortisation methods and periods (b) s L 2R HIME
The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life AEBFRABESRR T EHEYHASAR
using the straight-line method over the following periods: TEAFRFENEREE T A -
Computer software 3-10 years EISE 3E104F
Customer relationships 10 years EP & 104
16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 16 ZEAE PSR T A
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Financial assets SRMEE
At amortised cost bie: 3 AN s
- Loans to associates — AL RRREER 2,424 -
— Trade and other receivables — 8 5 Kk E b GIE
(excluding non-financial assets) (TREIEREE) 412,019 321,199
- Term deposits —THFEX 155,200 -
— Restricted cash —ZRHIRE 1,036 -
— Cash and cash equivalents —HekBREZEEY 1,008,605 1,158,156
At fair value BARBERE
- Financial assets at FVPL —BAREEFEBEEE)
ABERNEREE 43,500 33,621
Financial liabilities TRAE
At amortised cost big: 3 D WIS
- Trade and other payables — B S NE MR FRIE
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (TefEfEemafs) 306,401 237,796
— Bank borrowings —RITEE = 25,708
— Lease liabilities —HE&aE 101,193 96,583
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRERIEE(E)

17 INVENTORIES 17 #8&

As at 31 December

M12831H8
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Raw materials JRA R
— At cost — B A 28,823 20,896
- At NRV — LA B IR FE 79 592
Work in progress K oh
— At cost — ¥R 256,705 256,833
- At NRV — LA IR FE 16,994 16,349
Finished goods RUEY Gh
— At cost —IRRR 116,933 65,397
- At NRV — IR BIRFAE 28 15
419,562 360,082

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and NRV. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method for the plastic
components manufacturing business and first-in-first-out
method for the mold fabrication business. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises direct materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
allocated on normal operating capacity. It excluded borrowing
costs. NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The cost of inventories for the year included in cost of
sales, selling expenses and administrative expenses were
approximately HK$726,576,000 (2023: HK$603,351,000),
HK$114,000 (2023: HK$91,000) and HK$34,605,000 (2023:
HK$30,476,000), respectively.

The Group reversed HK$16,519,000 of inventory previously
write-down during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
HK$3,305,000), upon the sales of relevant inventories that
provision had been made. The amount reversed has been
included in ‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHIERRME(E)

17 INVENTORIES (Continued) 17 FE (&)
The Group made NRV provision on inventories due to the ARAAREBTEFABRK AN ERIEE
anticipated sales of goods below cost. The movements of A WEHEEERTEEFERE -
allowance for write-down are analyzed as follow: WO BB E S AT T -

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year REH] 30,855 19,154
Provision B 3,382 15,006
Write-off due to sales [ $5 5 M 8 (16,519) (3,305)
At the end of the year RER 17,718 30,855
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EFZ R HMEWRKIEA
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Trade receivables (a) 2 5 W EIA (a) 409,412 320,225
Less: allowance for impairment B ORERE (9,726) (4,289)
Trade receivables, net E S W IE TR 399,686 315,936
Refund receivables for export tax i R B Y5k IE 1,281 3,199
Prepayments and deposits (b) TERRIBRIES(Db) 26,740 15,994
Value-added tax recoverable AU e (E 14,226 12,422
Advances to employees BEBER 4,364 3,643
Loans to associates (Note 35(d)) mEE D RIREER
(K45£35(d)) 808 -
Others H 7,161 1,620
454,266 352,814
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a) Trade receivables

The credit period granted to customers is generally between
30 and 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables from
the date of sale invoices is as follows:

18

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
SR ERERME(E)

5 Kk HEMEWEE @)

Z 5 W IE
BYEEMEES RN FE30E0H -
D ORENEIEE S E R E H RN RS
DT -

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Less than 3 months =@AURA 358,739 267,075

More than 3 months but not exceeding BiE=EAETBBE—F

1 year 48,030 52,327
More than 1 year BiB—F 2,643 823
409,412 320,225

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold and services provided in the ordinary course of business.
They are generally due for settlement within 90 days and
therefore all classified as current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional, unless they contain
significant financing components, which shall be recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

Movements of the Group's allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

B HP RN E(E)

18 EZ R H b EWRIE (&)

(a) &5 FEWRIA ()

AEEE G RYSIANRBEREE S
T

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HILEE

2024 2023

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET TET

At 1 January »1HA1H 4,289 9,668
Provision of/(reversal of) loss allowance BREREEEE,(BE)

recognised 5,583 (5,284)

Currency translation differences GNERRITEZR (146) (95)

At 31 December ®W12HA31H 9,726 4,289

(b) Prepayments and deposits mainly represent prepayments for
purchases of raw materials.

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL include the

(b) AN HRIER R T EREBERMHNE

R o

19 RARBEFEBEEZBHTTAR

HNERMEE

EESBARALBENEARSHH

following: ABEMEREERIE N IEE
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Unlisted equity investments JELMiERIRE
- At beginning and end of the year —NFIINRFER 43,500 33,621

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, all of the financial assets
at FVPL are included in level 3 and there were no transfers
between level 1, 2 and 3 of fair value hierarchy classifications
during the years.

2024 20239128318 » fiB#K
AHRhEEFEEEZHTABENSE
BEFAFZE BFRARAEBEEBR
DENE—E F_EERFE=ZEz2HEIL
EERE o

RIER® (=A%) BRAR] 2024 F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

20 BERBEEEY

As at 31 December

M®12H318
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and bank balances B4 RIRTTHE 1,164,841 1,158,156
Less: Restricted cash (a) W XIRFIFERE S (@) (1,036) -
Term deposits (b) TE HAfF R(b) (155,200) -
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 1,008,605 1,158,156

(a) Restricted cash mainly represented restricted cash for a
litigation case as at 31 December 2024.

(b) These bank deposits were with original maturity over three

months. The effective interest rate of these deposits as at 31
December 2024 was 4.88%-5.12% per annum (2023: Nil).

(c) The cash and bank balance are denominated in the following

(a)

(b)

ZRHIIREEE452024F 12 A31H
MFAREERFINIRS -

ZERTHEARARIPABBE=E
B - 202451283180 » %51
HEOEBRFFEE488%%E5.12%
(20234 : &) -

(c) MERPITHEBRU T EEEFHE
currencies:
As at 31 December
M12A31H8

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
RMB AR 934,342 1,090,683
UsD ETT 199,696 37,750
EUR BT 21,755 19,562
HK$ BT 4,464 8,340
Others Hh 4,584 1,821
1,164,841 1,158,156
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHIERRME(E)

21 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 21 BRAR KRG EE

Number of
ordinary Nominal Share
shares value premium Total
ZEREAE H{E [ gvii = wat
thousands HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFhx FET FET FET
Authorised EE
31 December 2023 and 7R2023F12A318 &
31 December 2024 2024% 12 A31H 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid ERITREZR
31 December 2023 and M2023F12A31B X
31 December 2024 2024512 A31H 833,260 83,326 251,293 334,619

(a) All shares issued rank pari passu with each other.

22 SHARES HELD FOR EMPLOYEE SHARE AWARD

(a) FAEEHTROBLFERSES -

22 HEE R RBE T ERFENRG

SCHEME
2024 2023
Number of Total Number of Total
shares consideration shares  consideration
BHEE RELE RinEE RELSE
(thousands) HK$'000 (thousands) HK$'000
(Fk) TART (FM&) FET
At 1 January M1A1H 6,508 17,679 4,578 14,401
Acquisitions BE - - 1,930 3,278
Shares vested from share award EhE- R

schemes and transferred to D=ty YN o
the grantees (957) (4,576) - -
At 31 December ®12HA31H 5,551 13,103 6,508 17,679

The Group acquires the Company’s shares through its trustee,
Bank of Communications Trustee Limited (the “Trustee”), for
the Share Award Scheme (Note 25). The total consideration
paid for acquisitions of these shares is presented as a

AEBEEZBEZTEARBRITETLEEAR
REA(ZFEADBEARRRARND - AR
Wfn S Eh st 8 (M1 3E25) - BB ZERH
MENKREBREE 2 /REARFER
RHRR - ZFERDBARTEARTEA - AR
R B ) B2 Rh AT B 15 B0 B2

deduction from equity of the Company. These shares are held
by the Trustee for the purpose of granting share to be awarded
under the Share Award Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

23 OTHER RESERVES

23 Hftf# e

Shares-based Currency
Statutory payments translation
reserves reserve reserve Total
M A

EERE MR RE B 5 @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TER TER

At 1 January 2024 M202451818 152,663 10,416 (110,816) 52,263

Share-based payment PABR 13 BERE R (T3 - 2,364 - 2,364
Transfer from shares held for REBREEANES
employee share scheme RinsrEsEmRH

upon vesting - (4,576) - (4,576)

Transfer to statutory reserves (a) & Z % T ) 7,240 — - 7,240

Currency translation differences HNERRITEZR - - (58,953) (58,953)

At 31 December 2024 20245128310 159,903 8,204 (169,769) (1,662)

At 1 January 2023 RW2023E181A8 143,566 7,329 (81,389) 69,506

Share-based payment SRR REREE (R - 3,087 - 3,087

Transfer to statutory reserves HERELTERE 9,097 - - 9,097

Currency translation differences ~ SMEBRRINEER - - (29,427) (29,427)

At 31 December 2023 R2023F12831H 152,663 10,416 (110,816) 52,263

(a) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group should make
appropriation of not less than 10% of their net income after
tax to a statutory reserve. Further appropriation is optional
when the accumulated statutory reserve is 50% or more of its
registered capital. The statutory reserves can be used to offset
accumulated losses of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

24 RETAINED EARNINGS

B HP RN E(E)

24 REEF

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

At 1 January MR1A1H 1,315,974 1,215,871
Profit for the year FREF 261,850 204,191
Dividends paid (Note 31) ERIRR(HEE31) (179,151) (94,991)
Transfer to statutory reserves (Note 23(a)) %% % TE B (H7123(a)) (7,240) (9,097)
At 31 December ®12A31H 1,391,433 1,315,974

25 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME

The Company adopted a share award scheme on 25 February
2019 (the “Share Award Scheme”) as a means to recognise
the contribution by the Group’s personnel and to provide them
with incentives to retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group. Pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme, the vesting period of the awarded shares is 5 years
from their respective grant dates.

Fair value of the awarded shares granted represents the
market value of those awarded shares at their respective grant
dates. The fair value is recognised as an expense over the
relevant service period, which is the years to which the bonus
relates and the vesting period of the shares.

The Group planned to use the shares held for employee share
award scheme to award the grantees of the Share Award
Scheme (Note 22). As at 31 December 2024, the Share Award
Scheme transferred 957,077 ordinary shares of the Company
(2023: Nil) to the grantees upon vesting of the awarded shares.

25 EE R E

AN 201942 A 25 B H A% 10 2B
TEI([ IR @GS ) - tERRAIARE
BAEFEERMURREHEHHRE RS
AAEENBELSERERELERMN
218 - REBERGOEEEFE - ZERMHH
REH AT B A ARESE -

X RE R AR BEREZFREE
BORESEEREAHNTE - ARE
EFEARRE RS B (BN EFEAL BBV /2 [
B R BB ) AR AR o

AEBASFEAREERDEFED
BED SE B ET B (B 5E22) BOAAR A o R
2024F 128318 - IR{DIEE TSI B8
AR 1 55 B I [R5 A 88385957, 07 7R AR
RAEIE@IR (2023F : &) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SR ERERME(E)

25 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (continued)

(a) Movements in the number of awarded shares are as follows:

(continued)

25 EERHDEE (&)
(a) BHEMRMDEBESBHWT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2024 2023
At 1 January M1B1H 6,312,009 4,578,000
Granted % - 1,999,974
Forfeited U (98,398) (265,965)
Vested =] (957,077) -
At 31 December M12H8318 5,256,534 6,312,009

(b) Awarded shares granted and outstanding have the following
grant dates and vest dates with zero exercise price:

(b) ERHRBETEIIRBERMNE THIEH
HEEEEBRE  TREAT :

Number of Number of Number of Number of
shares shares shares shares
Grant date Vest date granted forfeited vested outstanding
i BRI 7B BITEM
B A HEA REBE REBE REOBE REBE
31 January 2019 31 January 2024 1,153,815 (196,738) (957,077) -
201914318 2024F1H31H
20 January 2020 31 January 2025 1,811,792 (226,021) - 1,585,771
202041 H20H 20251 H31H
20 April 2022 19 April 2027 1,886,026 (127,331) - 1,758,695
202247208 2027F4A19H
2 June 2023 2 June 2028 1,999,974 (87,906) - 1,912,068
2023%6H2H 20286 H2H
Total 5,256,534
mEt

The Group has to estimate the expected employee retention
rate of the share award scheme in order to determine the
amount of share-based compensation expenses charged to
profit or loss. As at 31 December 2024, the expected retention
rate was 92% (2023: 92%).
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25 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (continued)

(c) Details of the awarded shares granted for the Employee share

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B HP RN E(E)

25 EERHBEE (@)

scheme of the Group and movements during the year ended
31 December 2024 and 2023 are set out as follows:

(c

) B E2024F %2023 12 A31 B It F

B - sLAKE R 8 Bt 81 ey 52
BB RESHHEIMT

Number of Awarded Shares

EBRO#A

Fair value at  Unvested Unvested

the date of as at Granted Vested Lapsed  Forfeited Cancelled as at

grant (HK$ 1 January during during during during during 31 December

Grant date Vest date per share) 2024 the year the year the year the year the year 2024

RUAME  R20245F R2024%

DMAER 1A1H 12A31H

BRERH FREAH (k&) ABE  FRRE  FABE  FRAM FARK FREH KER

31/01/2019 31/01/2024 4.78 957,077 - (957,077) - - - -

20/01/2020 31/01/2025 2.76 1,588,615 - - - (2,844) - 1,585,771

20/04/2022 19/04/2027 242 1,819,775 - - - (61,080) - 1,758,695

02/06/2023 02/06/2028 1.53 1,946,542 - - - (34,474) - 1,912,068
Total

st 6,312,009 - (957,077) - (98,398) - 5,256,534

Number of Awarded Shares
REMR(HEE

Fairvalueat  Unvested Unvested

the date of as at Granted Vested Lapsed Forfeited  Cancelled as at

grant (HK$ 1 January during during during during during 31 December

Grant date Vest date per share) 2023 the year the year the year the year the year 2023

RMAME  R2023% 720235

DAEE 1R18 12A318

RitBH GEOH (BRET) AGE  EREH ERBE FRXM MR FREE 58

31/01/2019 31/01/2024 478 1,015,544 - - - (58,467) - 957,077

20/01/2020 31/01/2025 276 1,676,430 - - - (87,815) - 1,588,615

20/04/2022 19/04/2027 242 1,886,026 - - - (66,251) - 1,819,775

02/06/2023 02/06/2028 1.53 - 1,999,974 - - (53,432) - 1,946,542
Total

st 4,578,000 1,999,974 - - (265965) - 6,312,009

There are no directors entitled to the employee share scheme
(2023: Nil). The numbers of Awarded Shares granted to the
five highest paid individuals of the year end 31 December
2024, on 31 January 2019, 20 January 2020, 20 April 2022 and
2 June 2023, were 125,130, 407,076, 365,939 and 271,448
respectively. As of 31 December 2024, the total number of
unvested Awarded Shares granted to these five highest paid
individuals were 1,044,463 (2023: 1,169,593).

MEEEZHEBRMTE(20234F -
M) o PA201941 A31H - 202091 A20
H 20224 520H K% 20236 A2 B #%
FEHZE2024F12A3BItFERUES
A TR BN BB 9 Rl &125,130
f% - 407,076 % - 365,939 I& & 271,448
f% o #E2024F12 8318 » R F%ZER
(VASTSE AT NG w0 E N k1 R e
1,044,4630% (20234 : 1,169,593/%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
SR ERERME(E)

26 BORROWINGS 26 &8
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current FERNHA
Bank borrowings - unsecured IRITIEE — EIEH = 25,708
Less: current portion of non-current B FERNERFE R R REIE
borrowings - (25,708)
Current BN HA
Current portion of non-current borrowings ~ 3EBNHA{E &M R BN EE 5 - 25,708
Total borrowings BEHRE - 25,708

(a) The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in (a) EEMERAMER NIEEE :
the following currencies:

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T T
usD e - 24,082
HK$ BT = 1,626
- 25,708
(b) All borrowings were at floating rates and the exposure of (b) EEERZHFI RS - Y F X
the borrowings to interest-rate changes and the contractual BERE REEBBEZHHESANE
repricing dates at the balance sheet date were 6 months or BB ACEAKIARN -

less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHIERRME(E)

26 BORROWINGS (Continued) 26 B E (&)

(c) The borrowings are repayable as follows: (c) EEENRUTHRERNES :

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Within 1 year 1FR - 25,708
(d) As at 31 December 2024, The Group has no borrowings (2023: (d) 2024F12H31H @ "&EBIW & &
the effective weighted average interest rates was 5.29% per B (2023F : EEMEFHFANE L

annum). 5.29%) °

(e) The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its (e) B E2024F N 2023F 12 A31 B IE#F

bank borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2024 and B AEBRETHIETEENTKRZ
2023. o

27 DEFERRED INCOME 27 EEWA
The amount represented various grants received from local Z FIATE B B b 5 B R R &%
government authorities in the PRC. The movements in TE{#B) o BT A ZEN LT ¢

deferred income are as follows:

2024 2023

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET T

At 1 January BR1A18 36,750 43,412
Additions 0 9,013 9,851
Recognised in the profit or loss RIBEFER (13,086) (15,738)
Currency translation differences INERRITE =R (1,095) (775)
At 31 December Mm12A318 31,582 36,750
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B IS RERMEE(E)

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28 ES R HMENRIE
As at 31 December
M®12A831H

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHT
Trade payables (a) & 5 e E(a) 292,330 227,712
Wages and staff welfare benefits payable [EftTE NIEEET] 117,135 88,257
Accrual for expenses and other payables  JEETBIS R H b fE 3018 14,071 10,084
Other taxes payable HAth fE T F I8 12,368 9,143
435,904 335,196

(a) The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the goods/ (a) BESEMNFIBERER,MREEKA M
services receipt date is as follows: BRER DTN -

As at 31 December

M12A318
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
0 -90 days 0 — 90H 214,374 177,935
91 - 120 days 91 — 120H 47,414 31,423
121 — 365 days 121 — 365H 22,236 10,577
Over 365 days iHia365H 8,306 7,777
292,330 227,712
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

29 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the advance
payments made by customers related to contracts with
customers while the underlying goods and services are yet
to be provided. The increase in contract liabilities was mainly
attributable to a increase in sales orders on hand that are not
fully satisfied.

Revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates
to carried-forward contract liabilities for sales of goods was
HK$197,985,000 (2023: HK$129,007,000).

The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to
sales orders on hand that are partially or fully unsatisfied
as at 31 December 2024 was HK$889,097,000 (2023:
HK$830,602,000).

Management expects that 98% of the transaction price
allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations as of 31
December 2024 will be recognised as revenue during the
next reporting period. The amount does not include variable
consideration which is constrained.

BT R (E)

29 EWATE

AEENEHNBREIEELBREPIE
F & % 5 R 4R £t 09 48 BE 7 am Se AR 75 AT
XANWBANRE - ANEEENERMR
RARTRTERNETFHEREEZM -

RARESHEERREAEERRNGEE
AHBEBBHRA 197,985,000 T
(20234 : 129,007,000/ 7T) °

M2024F12 8318 » HH K2 AR THK
MEFHETENRFERGT SRR
889,097,000 7t (20234 : 830,602,000
BT °

EIRETEH - R2024F12A31H © O/
ERATHEHNEEOHRZERPIS% K
RTEREHEERABKRA - 2B
EZR B A]ERE o

BTEE (%) BRAR 2024F 3k
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows: &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
SR ERERME(E)

30 ELEFTSH

RRBEEERBESFTOT

As at 31 December

M®12A831H
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Before offsetting 3K 88 Al
Deferred income tax assets: BEFTBREE ¢
—to be recovered after more than 12 months ~ — ¥ A 281218 B 12 Uk E] 17,758 17,202
— 1o be recovered within 12 months — #1218 A Rk E 7,925 12,199
25,683 29,401
Deferred income tax liabilities: BEFTBREE
- to be settled after more than 12 months  — ERBRB12E B4 4&EE (44,044) (47,054)
- to be settled within 12 months — R 1218 A REEE (6,711) (728)
(50,755) (47,782)
After offsetting KEHEZ
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTREE 3,394 5,019
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMSHEE (28,466) (23,400)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are as follows:

BEFREHREERABNESMT :

Accrued
Tax expenses and Deferred Lease
Deferred income tax assets losses  impairment income liabilities Total
JEstBI%
BEREHEE HEER RAE EZBA HERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL ThT ThEr TEL THT
As at 1 January 2024 1202451718 6,276 5,923 5,400 11,802 29,401
Recognised in profit or loss REREA (3,172) (761) (599) 1,298 (3,234)
Currency translation differences NERRTEER (198) (143) (177) 34 (484)
As at 31 December 2024 M2024F12A318 2,906 5,019 4,624 13,134 25,683
As at 1 January 2023 20231 418 5,207 5,720 6,399 14,238 31,564
Recognised in profit or loss RERHED 1,152 375 (888) (2,227) (1,588)
Currency translation differences INEFRTEZE (83) (172) (111) (209) (575)
As at 31 December 2023 72023512318 6,276 5,923 5,400 11,802 29,401
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHIERRME(E)

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 30 IEZEFTSH (&)

Accelerated
tax  Withholding  Right-of-use

Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation income tax assets Total
EEFMEHREE MEHETE AMAEHR EREEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
b b it it
As at 1 January 2024 2024561718 (35,646) (728) (11,408) (47,782)
Recognised in profit or loss INERTER 3,560 (6,000) (1,692) (4,132)
Currency translation differences INERRITEZR 1,176 17 (34) 1,159
As at 31 December 2024 2024124318 (30,910) (6,711) (13,134) (50,755)
As at 1 January 2023 7202361718 (43,732) (3,681) (13,830) (61,243)
Recognised in profit or loss RIERER 7,394 2,964 2,222 12,580
Currency translation differences INERRITEER 692 (11) 200 881
As at 31 December 2023 M2023F12 318 (35,646) (728) (11,408) (47,782)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses B EE N ARER EEEEG
carry-forward to the extent that the realisation of the related B R R E SRR B I A E N IEE
tax benefits through the future taxable profits is probable. ERER - 2024F 128318 © BER
As at 31 December 2024, no deferred tax asset has been SR {35 P TE 6548 126,062, 00058 7T (2023
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses amounting to F128318 : 107,114,000 7T ) B RIE
HK$126,062,000 (31 December 2023: HK$107,114,000) as its ERHIEEE - DHRHESIBGEERET
realisation is uncertain. Such tax losses were mainly incurred o BATEER I TEAREESTH
from certain subsidiaries which are incorporated in Hong Kong BT E FUB AT AL R e &R
and may be carried forward indefinitely. st o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

31 DIVIDENDS 31 RE
Year ended 31 December
BE12ANALEE
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interim dividend paid of HK4.0 cents HEARR B B AR T @405l
(2023 Interim: HK2.8 cents) (2023 B : 2.8l Ik fT
per ordinary share 33,330 23,331
Proposed final dividend of HK8.8 cents EEORER B TR E RS .8
(2023 Final: HK7.5 cents) il (202345 KH : 7.5:81l)
per ordinary share 73,327 62,495
Proposed special dividend of HK10.0 cents =45 R B FARE@A%10.0
(2023: HK10.0 cents) per ordinary share 1 (20234F = 10.071L) 83,326 83,326
189,983 169,152
The dividends paid in 2024 and 2023 were HK$179,151,000 2024 F K2023FRA KR E 5 Bl A
(HK21.5 cents per share) and HK$94,991,000 (HK11.4 cents 179,151,000 T (B R 21581 ) &
per share) respectively. A final dividend and special dividend 94,991,000 L (TR 11.481L) - K
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024 of HK8.8 ARAIBREERRBEF R LLEESE
cents and HK10.0 cents per share, respectively, amounting to 2024F12A31 B L FEMRBAKRERE
a total of approximately HK$73,327,000 and HK$83,326,000, RIR% B 5 Bl A ER%8.878 L K 10.0 1L -
respectively, is to be approved at the forthcoming annual % B 4% 5 Bl % /73,327,000 % 7T &
general meeting. 83,326,000/8 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHIERRME(E)

32 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

(a)

CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated

from operations:

32 SRS FRERM:E

(@) FRATISHATE N BEEMBRSOERK

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Profit before income tax & FT1S 8 AT 4 7 333,209 236,994
Adjustments for: -
Depreciation of property, plant and W BELEETE
equipment 116,668 133,121
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEETE 68,671 74,548
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for FE(BERELD), B
inventories (Note 7) (K1aE7) (12,493) 12,187
Share of results of associates i NI E (617) 8,032
Amortisation of intangible assets L A 8,909 7,564
Share award scheme (Note 8) f& 10 52 @A+ &I (HYaE8) 2,364 3,087
Lease modification HEEH (175) (66)
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for TREEREBERE
impairment losses on financial assets (B fEEE) 5,583 (2,978)
Fair value gains on financial assets at BARBEF=EHES
FVPL FFABENEREEZ
A EERE (9,879) -
Gain on disposals of property, plant and HEME  HENLEED
equipment (Note 6) Wz (Btate) (2,245) (3,5613)
Finance income - net (Note 9) B RS — S FEE (H779) (18,967) (10,311)
491,028 458,665
Changes in working capital: EEECEE
Contract liabilities aHatE 20,419 27,900
Inventories FE (46,987) 19,593
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H A FEW IR (105,776) (6,098)
Trade and other payables B 5 R HEAFER IR 62,792 (44,391)
Increase in restricted cash PR 38 2 1 N (1,036) -
Cash generated from operations KEFSIRE 420,440 455,669
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

32 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from

disposals of property, plant and equipment comprise:

32 SR ERERKME @)

b) REHRERERAN  HEVE  BH

KR BB FIARLE -

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Net book amount disposed of EHEREFE 8,700 6,256
Gain on disposals (Note 6) HE W (fEe6) 2,245 3,513
Proceeds from disposals HERNERIE 10,945 9,769
(c) The movements in liabilities from financing activities: (c) REMEBEETHMNEEES :
Leases Borrowings Total
HE BE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T

As at 1 January 2024 120241818 96,583 25,708 122,291
Cash flows ReEnE

Principal amounts PN (66,217) (25,700) (91,917)

Interest payments R B R (3,734) (767) (4,501)
Other changes Hih %

New leases e 73,521 = 73,521

Lease modification HEBNH 1,053 - 1,053

Foreign exchange adjustments PE 5, 3 28 (3,747) (8) (3,755)

Interest expense M EHZ 3,734 767 4,501
As at 31 December 2024 7"2024%12A31H 101,193 - 101,193
As at 1 January 2023 A2023F1H1H 116,218 347,015 463,233
Cash flows ReEnE

Principal amounts ViNG (73,597) (322,677) (396,274)

Interest payments FEAT (4,071) (8,414) (12,485)
Other changes H b e

New leases yHE 61,531 - 61,531

Lease modification THEBM (5,334) . (5,334)

Foreign exchange adjustments P 3, 5 2 (2,235) 1,370 (865)

Interest expense F B 4,071 8,414 12,485
As at 31 December 2023 #2023F12H318 96,583 25,708 122,291
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

32 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(d) Non-cash investing and financing activities represented the
acquisition of right of use assets (Note 14).

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2023: Nil).

34 COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments:

& IRk ME(E)

32 EHERERERMT @)

(d) FRERERBETHIEBSEARESL
E(HzE14) »

33 HZAREE

MN2024F12A31H » AEEWET(E
KA BE(2023F12H318 « #) -

34 &iE
(a) EAAEHE
REREE T EAFRIE

As at 31 December

M12A318
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Additions of plant and equipment: NEME L&
— Contracted but not provided for — B BRI 20,663 13,695

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases premises under non-cancellable operating
lease agreements. The Group had future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as

O

KERERIE

AEEREBEITBHEEHERZHE
WME - AEBERBETAIHELEHES
MEVRR AR E KRR T

follows:
As at 31 December
M®12H318
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Not later than one year —F R

- to related companies il NG 2,798 2,286
- to third parties —FE=5 200 143
2,998 2,429
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
SR ERERME(E)

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3B EHEIRS
(a) Names and relationship (a) BB R EIE
The following companies and individuals were related parties LTRARRENALTAEE2024F X
of the Group that have transactions or balances with the Group 2023F12A31B L FERAEBER S
for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023: AR AR EBRER S
Name of the related party Relationship with the Group
2k Yt HEASENER
TK Technology Holdings Limited Entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
RIMBEEBERAR] BERREHNEE
TK Technology (Shenzhen) Limited Entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
ROIRB ORI BR AR RIERRIEH O E S
Shenzhen Sunmerry Associate
S IEIES S ik /N
Motlles i Matrius Fisas Navarro, S.L. Associate

VNG

(b) Transactions with related parties during the year (b) FAREB LIRS
The following transactions with entities controlled by Ultimate FAREEEGERTIESIN BB EST
Shareholders were undertaken by the Group during the year. RS ©

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2024 2023

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Payments of leases HEMR 55,524 61,418
Interest expense paid on lease liabilities HeaEnefER% 1,674 1,836

Operating lease expenses LETAERY 4,850 1,631
Total HEt 62,048 64,885
The amounts mainly represented rental payments for land and ZHEXTEBEAEIR  WHAEREM
buildings used for factory, office and other facilities purposes. BT HRIEFNESMNK - BE
The related additions of right-of-use assets for the year ended 2024F12A3MBILFE  FHEEE
31 December 2024 were approximately HK$62,231,000 (2023: HERE 462,231,000 7T (20234

HK$61,531,000). 61,531,000/87C) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BRI TE ()

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35 BB ARS @)
(c) Key management personnel compensation (c) TEEEE AESFH

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLLEE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - Fekitsl 31,271 27,621
Share award scheme f& (7 12 BT B 691 1,148
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRESE A — R EHR G2 156 163
32,118 28,932

(d) Loans to associates (d) EEE N TIRMEER

Year ended 31 December

BE12A3MBLEE

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Beginning of the year £ - 2,297
Additions o 4,325 -
Repayments B (1,031) -
Interest charged U HR B, 188 45
Allowance for impairment (Note3.1(b)) BB (HFE3.1(b) - (2,306)
Currency translation differences GNESRRITE =R (250) (36)
Balance at end of year FRER 3,232 -
No allowance for impairment was recognised in relation to the RERNW Eat ML ATIREN ST
loans to associates during the year (2023: HK$2,306,000). IR E RS (20234 : 2,306,000/87T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

oF 8 H5 s ak B et (A8 )

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Loans to associates (Continued)

35 BEEEA RS (#)
(d) BB D TRESER @R

As at 31 December
R12H31H
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAT

Loans to associates
— Non-current
— Current

2,424 -
808 -

Balance at end of year

3,232 -

During the year, the Group provided a loan to associates
amounting to EUR500,000 (equivalent to HK$4,325,000). The
loans to associates is unsecured, subject to interest rate of 5%
per annum and repayable within 5 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHIERRME(E)

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 36 AARIEEABRRFEEES
OF THE COMPANY
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (a) K RRIBEEEEBR
As at 31 December
®12A31H
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR E 229,259 231,471
Deferred tax assets BEREFRIBEE 63 37
229,322 231,508
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries g Sy NCIE QL] 427,710 413,786
Other receivables H Ath fE Y5k I8 717 -
Cash and cash equivalents RENESEEY 220 113
428,647 413,899
Total assets EEHRE 657,969 645,407
Equity R
Share capital A% A 83,326 83,326
Share premium gkl 425,815 425,815
Shares held for employee share award BLiE B D S22 E)E 2l
scheme Eech=0)igv) (13,103) (17,679)
Other reserves H bt 8,204 10,416
Retained earnings IR & 153,727 143,022
Total equity ERBE 657,969 644,900
Liabilities aE
Current liabilities REERE
Other payables H At T k1B = 507
Total liabilities EEHAE - 507
Total equity and liabilities ERRAEHASE 657,969 645,407
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board RARBEEBBEREEEEN202543
of Directors on 17 March 2025 and was signed on its behalf: A178#E - YR THNESREREES
Li Pui Leung Yung Kin Cheung Michael
MR SEA
Director Director
EE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
O RS HRRMIEE(4B)

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 36 X ARIEEEBRRREEES @)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Other reserves of the Company (b) KRB EHAMEEE
Other reserves represent for employee award share scheme HihEiEiEES EEIIRMETEIFHAE -
reserve.
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
At 1 January M1A1H 10,416 7,329
Employee share award schemes — & B i i2Eh A8 —
value of employee services EEBRBEE (2,212) 3,087
At 31 December M12A318 8,204 10,416
(c) Retained earnings of the Company (c) AN EHREEEF
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
At 1 January M1A1H 143,022 69,470
Profit for the year F R F 189,856 168,543
Dividends A% 8 (179,151) (94,991)
At 31 December »12A31H 153,727 143,022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37 SUBSIDIARIES

BT R (E)

37 B A=

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2024 and 2023, all of which are limited liability

AT AR20244F 2023912 A31 B H
FEWBRARI(HABRAR)IIEK :

companies:
2024 and
Place of Principal activities and Particulars of 2023
Company name incorporation place of operation issued share capital Interest held
2024 R
2023F
Pk EMRIHE FEEERLCEHE BRITRAEFE BEER
TK Group International BVI Trading of plastic products 50,000 ordinary shares of 100%
(Hong Kong) Limited * and molds/Hong Kong USD1 each
RISERR(FE)AERAR® EBEREREE YBEMREEES/EE  50,000RBREEIETHLER
TK Plastic (Suzhou) Limited # PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid-in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%
products/PRC
RIZBHR(FMN)BRA R i HEEBHE,/TH E & 710,000,000/ 7T
TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited * PRC Fabrication of mold/PRC Paid-in capital of HK$132,000,000 100%
RIBE(RIDBRRA i BESME /hE EURE 4132,000,0005 T
TK Precision Plastics PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid-in capital of HK$166,000,000 100%
(Shenzhen) Limited * products/PRC
RIBeTZ (RN AR R AN i HEBRaL/ hE B & 75166,000,0007 7T
TK Precision Plastics PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid-in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%
(Huizhou) Limited* products/PRC
RIBeNTZ (BN AR AN e HEBRaL/ hE E & 7£10,000,0007% T
TK Mold Germany GmbH Germany Fabrication of mold/Germany  Paid-in capital of EUR25,600 100%
TK Mold Germany GmbH el BEEUE /BE B A 25,60081 7T

* Shares held directly by the Company

#

Significant restrictions

Registered as wholly owned foreign enterprises under PRC laws

Cash and bank balances held in certain Asian countries

(including PRC) are subject to local exchange control
regulations. These regulations provide for restrictions on
exporting capital from those countries, other than through

normal dividends. The carrying amount of the cash and bank

balances included within the consolidated financial statements
to which these restrictions applied is HK$575,102,000 (2023:

HK$927,869,000).

* AREEEFERDG
* REFEDEEEM BN EHEALE

EARRH

RETEMNER(BEFR)BFENRS
MRITHBBETE M INEE HIER -
ZEEFE B ZERAREE AR N
PRl (IEEERERRIN o 5T AE BFEF 750
FNERAZERGINE S RRITEHRD
BR ® & A575,102,00078 JT (2023 4
927,869,000/ 7T) °

o

RIER® (=A%) BRAR] 2024 F
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& IR R M ()

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive

officer is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2024:

38 EEEARER

(a) EBERESITTHRAEME

BEERITRAHNFMEZINT

HZE2024F128318 LEE :

Employer's
contribution
to retirement

Discretionary benefit
Name Fees Salary bonus scheme Total
BHRERGHE
#E ik e B WEEHR H
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
THER TER THER THER THR
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Li Pui Leung FHREE 500 2,344 3,609 18 6,471
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (i) SEALEN 500 2,095 3,187 18 5,800
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBRE 500 1,458 1,709 18 3,685
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa RRERE 250 2,066 1,854 18 4,188
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy BLIEL 340 - - - 340
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong LENEL 340 - - - 340
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung 2EUTt 340 - - - 340
2,770 7,963 10,359 72 21,164
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHIERRME(E)

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 38 EETFA R ER @)
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERBESTHAEMS (@)
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023: B Z2023F12A31B LEE :
Employer's
contribution
to retirement
Discretionary benefit
Name Fees Salary bonus scheme Total
RARERIETE
#e ik &e BETEL  HEFEX &5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThET TERL TiEm TR

Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Li Pui Leung FHRAE 500 2,580 2,327 18 5,425

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (i) SEALEN) 500 2,172 2,078 18 4,768

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBRE 500 1,414 1,188 18 3,120

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa REERE 250 1,923 1,288 18 3,479

Independent non-executive Directors BIFHTES

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy ELTELT 340 - - - 340

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BEREE 340 - - - 340

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung 2BUL T 340 - - - 340
2,770 8,089 6,881 72 17,812

(i)~ Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael is also the chief executive officer.

=

i) SEMFETNRITHEH -
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38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(b) Directors’ other benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking for the year (2023: Nil).

None of the directors of the Company waived any emoluments
for the year (2023: Nil).

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to joint, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office for the year (2023: Nil).

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of the
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with the directors of the Company for the year (2023:
Nil).

Saved for the transactions disclosed in Note 35, there were no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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SR ERERME(E)

38 EETFARER @)

(b) ESHMWER

FA-EAESHERTEARFNE
B 8 B 55 75 A B B L b AR %5 S AN B
FEWCR KT (20234 « &) -

FR - BEARAESHRETAHNE
(202345 : &) -

FAN - AEEBERE SN M B
- EARSIFEEMALEEKEAR
EMAREERHRESKIEABBHE
(2023%F : #&) -

FAR-BMEUNES  ZFEFEHE
ANEBLREARREZTAHENERS
R@mANER  EERREMRZ 5 (2023
FE) -

BRETEESBPT I BHIRR BN - MERKF
=S RS I NVNTSIE -] VAR S CIEERN
SEXBER BEARAEZERNETEH
BEYARERAEARENEARS X%
PEREH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

39.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting (see (c) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.

RIS ()

39 Hitt A ME AN ST BRBE

39.1 EOtR B R

(a)

(b)

ZEA

o) NG
MEARSASEEEEHIENER(E
REBEER)  EXKEAXXERZ
HERMESNAZLR  BAENES
HEBRADNTERNZEZFTOR
B AIASEZEGZESR - BEH#E
BEASEZAE WEAREZES
AR - MBARRENRELEERT
BEAHARK-

SEARBIZEHNRS » X5 iﬁ%&ﬂi
BIRWaR ) THIE -  RERBETE

Mo BRIFRXDBE Tﬂaﬁﬂ'\ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁéF
HIRERIERIF © M B AR H SR

RORFEFELEY  UERELEH
PR ERER— 2 -

/N

S NREASESEEEATENA
EEGIELARZEGENER  BES
RT'$EIHEN%1W%%R%°
R E DR BT R AFERIR
ERERER(RTX ) AK-

ii
HF
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RS R R I (4]

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(c) Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of
movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates are recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest
in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-accounted
investees have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested

for impairment in accordance with the policy described in Note
39.7.
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(c)

Hi B E RN ST BREE
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Continued)

(d) Changes in ownership interests

The group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the company.

When the group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity
is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial assets. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This might mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

39.3 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

39.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). RMB and HK$ are the functional
currencies of principal operating subsidiaries of the Group.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the presentation and functional currency of the
Company.
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Notestothe(ionsohdatedFﬁnancmlEﬁatenwents(conﬂnued)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income within
‘Other gains — net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

e income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transaction); and

e all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress is property, plant and equipment on
which construction work has not been completed and stated
at cost. Cost includes acquisition and construction expenditure
incurred, interest and other direct costs attributable to the
development. Depreciation is not provided on construction in
progress until the related asset is completed for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’'s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 39.7).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘Other gains — net’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.6 Intangible assets

(a) Computer software
Acquired software licenses are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software.

(b) Customer relationships
Customer relationships acquired as part of a business
combination are recognised at fair value and carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

39.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets. Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRERIEE(E)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.8 Financial assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit or
loss); and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial assets
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DA RS R R P (4]

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 39 H gt BE AN T BEME

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) (&)

39.8 Financial assets (Continued) 98 EMEE (&)

(c) Measurement (Continued) (c) FHE(&)
Debt instruments EHETA
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends BERETANBEFERRNAERE B
on the Group's business model for managing the asset and BENEREALREENRE S TERE
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three 2o REBIRBUA T =Tt H XNEE
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its BIEETHE

debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or
loss and presented in other gains — net together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial assets is derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains — net. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within ‘other
gains — net’ in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
SR ERERME(E)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

(d

~—

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

39.9 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with bank, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and bank overdrafts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.10Share capital and shares held for employee share

scheme

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back or
a share-based payment plan, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income
taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the owners of
the Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related
income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
owners of the Company.

39.11Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

39.12Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRERIEE(E)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.13Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets
are capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

39.14Current and deferred income tax

(a)

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it
is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either based
on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of
the uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHEIIEHRERNEE(E)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 39 Hitt AT B E AW 5T BRI E
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) (4&)
39.14Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 39.14 BN EA & IR SE AT 15 8% (48)

(b) Deferred income tax

(b) JEFEFTIEH

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.15Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits and accumulating sick leave that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognised
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations within
“trade and other payables” in the consolidated balance sheet.

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate fund. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the Company's
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.16Share-based payments

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based compensation
plans, under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments (award
shares) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the award shares is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the award shares
granted.

The grant by the Company over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiaries in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value,
is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to
investments in subsidiaries, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

39.17Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to operating costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are included in deferred income and are credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the related
assets.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.18Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable,

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date,

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees,

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-
of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 39 H gt BE AN T BEME

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) (&)

39.18Leases (Continued) 3918 HE (@)
Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance HENZRAS RPBRAZBELD
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease fe o B ISP AEEEA R BRI - A
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on 2NN B ESENEE R —5 -

the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the FRESEEKAE  BEATRIEA
following:
e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability, e HEBEBEMVIFESE "
e any lease payments made at or before the commencement e HERBRHBHKZAIZNMEMNEE
date less any lease incentives received, NRREEAEREEERSR -
e any initial direct costs, and o EAVIBEEKLS K
e restoration costs. o BIEER-
Entity-specific details about the Group's leasing policy are BEAEEHERRENEEEEFEN
provided in Note 14. BosE14424 -
39.19Interest income 3919 R 2 U A
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basic using T B U A(E F B R F R IE IR B ) 7
the effective interest method. R o
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FIVEYEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEMBEBE
Year ended 31 December

BE12A31ALEE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAT FHET FET
Revenue N 2,033,419 2,404,398 2,279,321 1,945,721 2,358,290
Profit for the year FRaH 209,687 282,383 226,909 204,191 261,850

As at 31 December

M12831H

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FTAET
Total assets BERTE 2,572,311 2,851,160 2,697,523 2,451,591 2,576,743
Total liabilities BERE 1,177,756 1,229,241 1,091,928 766,414 865,456
Total equity BEmiasE 1,394,555 1,621,919 1,605,595 1,685,177 1,711,287

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2024






	COVER

	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER


